
MICHIGAN STRATEGIC FUND  
BOARD MEETING  

January 28, 2014 
Time 10:00 am 

 
AGENDA 

 
 Adoption of Proposed MSF Meeting Minutes – December 18, 2013 [Action Item] 
 Public Comment [Please limit public comment to three (3) minutes] 
 Communication [Information – Andrea Robach] 
  
 A. Business Investment 
  1. Entrepreneurship – [Action Items-Roselyn Zator] 
   2014 Entrepreneurial Support Services RFP – Award Recommendation 
   2014 Early Stage Funding RFP –Award Recommendation  
  
  2. Business Growth - [Action Item-Ken Murdoch] 
   Kalitta Air, LLC – MBDP  
  
  3. Access to Capital 
   Canton Renewables, LLC-Sauk Hills Project – Bond Authorization – [Action Item-Eric Hanna] 
   Detroit Ventures Partners Award – PM Ventures Development Fund – [Action Item-Mike Flanagan] 
 
 B. Community Vitality – [Action Items-Joe Martin] 
  Strathmore Apartments LDHA, LLC – MCRP 
  Ashley Owner, LLC – MCRP/Brownfield TIF 
  Midland DTH, LLC – MCRP/Brownfield TIF 
    
 C. Administrative 
  Consent Agenda Process Approval – [Action Item-Karla Campbell] 
   
 D. Consent Agenda – [Action Item] 
   Mid Towne Hospitality, LLC – MCRP – [Action Item-Joe Martin] 
  Manufacturing Support Services RFP – [Action Item – Jacob Schroeder] 
  Energy Office RFP – [Action Item – Robert Jackson] 
  MTRAC – Advanced Transportation Amendment – [Action Item-Roselyn Zator] 
  2014 Business Incubator RFPs – [Action Item-Roselyn Zator] 
  Job Creation/MBT Credit Amendments: 
  McLaren Performance Technologies, Inc. – [Action Item-Marcia Gebarowski] 
  The Minacs Group (USA), Inc. – [Action Item-Marcia Gebarowski] 
 
 E. Informational 
   CCO Quarterly Report 
   FY 2014 1st Quarter Delegated Approval Report – MBDP & MCRP 
   FY 2014 1st Quarter Delegated Approval Report – CDBG 
   FY 2014 1st Quarter Delegated Approval Report – MSDF-SSBCI     
 
      
             
      

 



MICHIGAN STRATEGIC FUND BOARD MEETING 
    December 18, 2013 

PROPOSED MEETING MINUTES 
 
A meeting of the Michigan Strategic Fund [MSF] Board was held on Wednesday, December 18, 2013, at 
the Michigan Economic Development Corporation [MEDC], Lake Michigan Room, 300 N. Washington 
Square, Lansing, Michigan. 
 
MEMBERS PRESENT:     
Craig DeNooyer  
Steve Hilfinger (serving on behalf of Michael Finney, designation attached) 
Bill J. Martin 
Michael J. Jackson, Sr. 
Richard Rassel 
W. Howard Morris (via conference call) 
Steve Arwood 
Andrew Lockwood (serving on behalf of Treasurer Clinton, designation attached) 
Shaun Wilson 
 
MEMBERS ABSENT:     
None 
 
CALL TO ORDER:       Mr. Hilfinger called the meeting to order at 1:34 p.m.   
 
ADOPTION OF MSF PROPOSED MEETING MINUTES – NOVEMBER 20, 2013:   
Mr. Hilfinger asked if there were any questions from the Board. Mr. Martin asked that the minutes be 
revised to remove Mr. Boji and Ms. Keeley as absent members, since their resignations from the MSF 
Board had been accepted by Governor Snyder. There being no further questions, Steve Arwood motioned 
for the approval of the amended November 2013 meeting minutes. Craig DeNooyer seconded the motion. 
The motion carried – 9 ayes, 0 nays, 0 recusals, 0 absent.  
 
PUBLIC COMMENT:   
Mr. Hilfinger asked if there was anyone in the audience present who wished to make a public comment. 
There was none.  
 
COMMUNICATION:  Andrea Robach, MSF Board Relations Liaison and Executive Assistant, notified 
the Board members of the following: 
 
 1) There is a slight change in the order of the agenda, due to two previously tabled items which 
 Are required to come back before the Board as “Old Business” and must be discussed first. 
 2) At the table is a letter from the Village of Dexter in support of the Chelsea Area Wellness  

Project; agenda item A1. A copy of this letter will be attached to the December meeting minutes.  
 

OLD BUSINESS 
 
Resolution 2013-204 Chelsea Area Wellness Foundation 
Mr. Arwood motioned for this item be brought back to the table for discussion. Richard Rassel seconded the 
motion. Eric Hanna, Director, Debt Capital, provided the Board with information regarding this action 
item. Chelsea-Area Wellness Foundation (“CWF”) is seeking financing to purchase land and an 
approximately 48,000 square foot building CWF currently leases located at 2810 Baker Road, Dexter, in 
Washtenaw County.  The facility will provide the community with fitness facilities, meeting space, health 
education classes, medical integration programming and other wellness related offerings. CWF indicates 



that it employs 65 individuals.  It is anticipated when full membership is attained, CWF will employ 
approximately 100 full time and part time jobs for skilled, certified and unskilled employees 
 
Recommendation 
Based upon a determination by Miller, Canfield, Paddock and Stone, P.L.C. and the State of Michigan 
Attorney General’s office that the project complies with state and federal law requirements for tax exempt 
financing, staff recommends the adoption of a Bond Authorizing Resolution in the amount of  not to exceed 
$12,000,000.   

Board Discussion 
Mr. Hilfinger asked if there were any questions from the Board. As this was an item previously tabled due 
to contention between the Village of Dexter and the Chelsea Area Wellness Foundation, Mr. Hanna 
provided a letter from the Village which explained that the two parties had loosely come to an agreement 
regarding the proposed project, and that the Village, based on these terms, was now in support of the 
project. Each Board member received a copy of this letter at the table, however it was not read into the 
minutes of the meeting. Following this, brief discussion regarding the agreement ensued. There being no 
further questions, Andrew Lockwood motioned for the approval of Resolution 2013-204. Steve Arwood 
seconded this motion. With a roll call vote of all members, the motion carried; 9 ayes, 0 nays, 0 
recused, 0 absent.  

Resolution 2013-205 Wealthy Street Historic Development, LLC 
Steve Arwood motioned for this item to be brought back to the table for Board Discussion. Richard Rassel 
seconded the motion. Amy Lux, Renaissance Zone Specialist, provided the Board with information 
regarding this action item. Wealthy Street Historic Development, LLC (the “Company”) and the City of 
Grand Rapids (the “City”) are requesting an amendment to the Renaissance Zone Development Agreement: 
Zone Extension (the “Zone Agreement”) to remove the job creation milestone from the agreement. The 
Michigan Economic Development Corporation (“MEDC”) is also requesting an amendment to the granting 
MSF Resolution 2009-021 (the “Granting Resolution”) to remove the requirement for certain parties from 
the resulting Zone Agreement. 
 
Recommendation 
The MEDC recommends the MSF Board approve an amendment of the Company’s Renaissance Zone 
Development Agreement and the Granting Resolution as follows: Remove the job creation milestone from 
the Zone Agreement; Revoke Condition#2 of the Granting Resolution, which requires of the escrow 
account arrangement; and Amend Condition #3 of the Granting Resolution to remove the Grand Rapids 
EDC, Kent County, and the MEDC as required parties. All other terms and conditions of the Agreement 
and the Granting Resolution remain unchanged 

Board Discussion 
Mr. Hilfinger asked if there were any questions from the Board. Mr. Martin asked to confirm that this 
instance was a special situation, and that the MSF was not planning to allow the same exceptions to occur 
for future projects. Ms. Lux confirmed that yes, there were no plans for similar exceptions to occur. There 
being no further questions, Bill Martin motioned for the approval of Resolution 2013-205. Craig DeNooyer 
seconded this motion. The motion carries; 9 ayes, 0 nays, 0 recusals, 0 absent. 

    PRIVATE ACTIVTY BONDS 

Resolution 2013-206 Green Box NA Detroit, LLC-Solid Waste 
Eric Hanna, Director, Debit Capital, provided the Board with information regarding this action item. 
The Michigan Strategic Fund induced a $3,200,000 project on behalf of Green Box NA Detroit, LLC (the 
“Company”) at its December 21, 2011 meeting.  The Company is asking for a two year extension to 
Resolution 2011-170 until December 18, 2015.  The extension request to the Inducement Resolution is due 



to the need to move the induced project closer to the incoming waste stream.  Additionally, the Company 
was unable to build in Romulus due to the inability to use the proper size cranes to construct the facility.  
The location was too close to the airport for the proper cranes heights required to construct the facility.  The 
proposed location is now in the Detroit, Wayne County area.   

Recommendation 
Staff recommends the approval of the amending resolution to extend the expiration date for the inducement 
resolution to December 18, 2015.   

Board Discussion 
Mr. Hilfinger asked if there were any questions from the Board. There being none, Andrew Lockwood 
motioned for the approval of Resolution 2013-206. Craig DeNooyer seconded this motion. With a roll call 
vote, the motion carries: 9 ayes, 0 nays, 0 recused, 0 absent.  

RENAISSANCE ZONES 

Amy Lux, Renaissance Zone Specialist, provided the Board with information regarding these action items.  
 
Resolution 2013-207 Specialty Lifting Equipment, Inc. 
Specialty Lifting Equipment, Inc. (“Specialty”) requests and Michigan Economic Development Corporation 
(“MEDC”) Staff recommends that the Michigan Strategic Fund (“MSF”) Board approve a resolution to 
transfer the Renaissance Zone time extension designation to Specialty for the site previously occupied by 
Apiaries & Orchard Forklift, Inc. (“A&O”) in the Village of Edmore within the Montcalm & Gratiot 
County Renaissance Zone.  

Recommendation 
MEDC Staff recommend that the MSF Board approve Specialty Lifting Equipment, Inc.’s request to 
transfer the Renaissance Zone time extension designation from Apiaries & Orchard Forklift, Inc. to 
Specialty, provided an assignment and assumption agreement is executed. 

Board Discussion 
Mr. Hilfinger asked if there were any questions from the Board. Mr. Arwood asked to confirm that this was 
a reassignment, not a revocation. Ms. Lux confirmed that he was correct. There being no further questions, 
Craig DeNooyer motioned for the approval of Resolution 2013-207. Mike Jackson seconded this motion. 
The motion carries; 9 ayes, 0 nays, 0 recusals, 0 absent.  

Resolution 2013-208 Ryan’s Equipment, Inc.  
Michigan Economic Development Corporation (“MEDC”) Staff requests the Michigan Strategic Fund 
(“MSF”) Board approve a resolution revoking the Renaissance Zone designation for Ryan’s Equipment, 
Inc.’s (the “Company”) site in the Village of Edmore Subzone within the Montcalm & Gratiot Counties 
Renaissance Zone. The Company has fallen substantially short of both milestones, having created just 3 
full-time jobs and having invested less than $130,000 since designation. 

Recommendation 
MEDC Staff recommend that the MSF Board approve the revocation of the Renaissance Zone designation 
for Ryan’s Equipment, Inc.’s site in the Village of Edmore Subzone within the Montcalm & Gratiot 
Counties Renaissance Zone, effective December 31, 2013 for property tax purposes and immediately for 
other tax purposes. 



Board Discussion 
Mr. Hilfinger asked if there were any questions from the Board. Mr. Arwood asked if the local unit of 
government has the right to pursue repayment of the tax capture from the company. Ms. Lux stated that 
they did not, at this time. There being no further questions, Richard Rassel motioned for the approval of 
Resolution 2013-208. Bill Martin seconded the motion. The motion carries; 9 ayes, 0 nays, 0 recusals, 0 
absent.  

Mr. Rassel Recused 

Resolution 2013-209 Johnson Controls 
Josh Hundt, Director, Development Finance, provided the Board with information regarding this action 
item. Mr. Hundt introduced Dave DeGraaf – Johnson Controls – Vice President and General Manager of 
Advanced Power Solutions Division – JCI, Kevin Kuznicki – VP & General Counsel – Johnson Controls 
and Dave Ladd – Consultant – Kelley Cawthorne. Mr. DeGraaf gave the Board a brief summary of their 
request, the company history, and the negotiations that ensued with the MEDC/MSF staff, in coming to the 
proposed agreement.  

Johnson Controls APS Production, Inc. (the “Company”) is requesting an amendment to the Company’s 
Renaissance Zone Development Agreement (the “Agreement”) to reduce the required capital investment, 
reduce the required job creation, and to provide an additional option to remedy an event of default, among 
other things. As a result of these amendments the MEDC is recommending a reduction in the term of the 
Renaissance Zone from fifteen years to ten years According to the Company’s Renaissance Zone Progress 
Report of activity through December 31, 2012, the Company has reported investing $149.8 million and the 
creation of 100 jobs since the time of the Renaissance Zone designation. These figures fail to meet the 
requirements of the original Renaissance Zone Development Agreement. 

 Based on the Agreement, the Company was required to invest $220 million by December 31, 2011 and 
create 548 new full-time jobs at the property by December 31, 2013. The Company explains that the 
shortfall is due to slower than anticipated development of the marketplace for advanced energy storage 
systems The Company has requested to amend the Agreement to reduce and extend their capital investment 
requirement to $150,000,000 by December 31, 2013. Additionally, the Company has requested to reduce its 
job creation requirement from 548 new full-time jobs at the property by December 31, 2013 to 175 new 
full-time jobs in the City of Holland and Holland Charter Township by December 31, 2013, 200 cumulative 
new full-time jobs in the City of Holland and Holland Charter Township by December 31 2014, and 225 
cumulative new full-time jobs in the City of Holland and Holland Charter Township by December 31, 2016. 

Recommendation 
The MEDC recommends the MSF Board approve the amendments to the Agreement, as outlined in the 
Briefing Memo, effective immediately, in order for the Company to be in compliance and to accommodate 
a more gradual capital investment and job creation timeline. 

Board Discussion 
Mr. Hilfinger asked if there were any questions from the Board. Extensive discussion ensued between the 
Board, Mr. Hundt, and the guests representing JCI. The majority of this conversation revolved around the 
details of the negotiated agreement between the MEDC/MSF and JCI, which were outlined in the Briefing 
Memo, and the Resolution. In summary, the terms of the agreement are much more realistic based on the 
current market, and JCI is confident that further amendments will not be necessary. There was also 
extensive discussion as to the issue of compliance; that JCI was not necessarily giving anything up should 
they once again become noncompliant. Mr. DeNooyer asked Mr. Hundt and the JCI members present why 
we have agreements in place, when often it is our policy to revise these agreements? Mr. Hundt stated that 
JCI is a company whose work is important to the economy of the State, and that it is our policy to work 
with companies, when possible, to still encourage their success. Mr. Martin asked if by making such efforts 



to bring this company into compliance on their agreement, was the MSF setting precedent, or opening the 
doors for other incentive seekers who may have fallen into noncompliance, to ask for similar treatment. Mr. 
Hundt commented that he did not believe that was the case. There being no further questions, Mike Jackson 
motioned for the approval of Resolution 2013-209. Andrew Lockwood seconded the motion. The motion 
carries; 8 ayes, 0 nays, 1 recused, 0 absent.  

Mr. Rassel Returns 

21st CENTURY MICHIGAN 

Resolution 2013-210 Energy Acceleration RFP 
Robert Jackson, Deputy Director, Michigan Energy Office, provided the Board with information regarding 
this action item. The Michigan Economic Development Corporation (“MEDC”) Requests the MSF to 
authorize a RFP on the Advanced Energy Acceleration Services (“AEAS”) grant. The purpose of the AEAS 
grant is to provide funding to a Michigan non-profit organization, through the competitive RFP process, for 
advanced energy acceleration services. These services will help businesses make capital investments and 
create new jobs in Michigan.  The Michigan Energy Office (“MEO”) will administer the AEAS grant. 

Recommendation 
Staff makes the following recommendations with respect to the program: Allocation of $2.5 million from 
the FY 2014 appropriation to the AEAS RFP, and Authorization to issue the proposed RFP.  

Board Discussion 
Mr. Hilfinger asked if there were any questions from the Board. Mr. Jackson noted at this time that the 
original request was for the Board to authorize a public hearing. However Kevin Francart, the Chief 
Compliance Officer to the MSF had confirmed that it was not statutorily necessary to hold a public hearing 
for this program. That being the case, the request was now for approval to post the RFP. Discussion 
regarding the revised timeline of the process, and potential applicants followed. There being no further 
questions, Steve Arwood motioned for the approval of Resolution 2013-210. Mike Jackson seconded this 
motion. The motion carried; 9 ayes, 0 nays, 0 recusals, 0 absent.  
 
Resolution 2013-211 Van Andel Institute Program 
Roselyn Zator, Director, Entrepreneurship and Innovation provided the Board with information regarding 
this action item. The MEDC requests the MSF approve allocating $500,000 for a one-year agreement to the 
Van Andel Institute to continue its Tuberous Sclerosis Complex (TSC) research program. Pursuant to 
Section 1034b of Public Act 0059 of 2013, the MSF is directed to allocate $500,000.00 to the Van Andel 
Institute to be used as a match for funding received from the department of defense and the national 
institutes of health for advanced medical research. 
 
Recommendation 
MEDC Staff recommends that the MSF Board approves allocating $500,000 to the Van Andel Institute for 
a one-year agreement.  

Board Discussion 
Mr. Hilfinger asked if there were any questions from the Board. He confirmed that this was a request that 
was required to go before the MSF Board for approval. There being no further questions, Craig DeNooyer 
motioned for the approval of Resolution 2013-211. Bill Martin seconded the motion. The motion carried; 
9 ayes, 0 nays, 0 recusals, 0 absent.  

Resolution 2013-212 Michigan Accelerator Fund 1 
Michael Flanagan, Director, Equity Capital, provided the Board with information regarding this action 



item. The Michigan Accelerator Fund 1 (“MAF”), an early stage venture capital fund awarded through the 
Accelerator Fund Program in 2010, has requested a waiver from requirements of an investment conflicts 
provision in the Side Letter Agreement (“Side Letter”) between MAF and the Michigan Strategic Fund 
(“MSF”), executed on January 27, 2011. The provision states that partnership investments shall not be 
permitted in portfolio companies that are a client of or under any contract with the fund group or any of 
their respective affiliates.  MAF is interested in investing in Grand Rapids Aseptic Manufacturing 
(“GRAM”), which has been contracted with two MAF affiliates, The Charter Group, a Grand Rapids based 
M&A advisory firm, and StillPoint Capital, LLC (“StillPoint”), a Tampa, Florida based investment banking 
and registered representative licensing firm.   John Kerschen and Dale Grogan, both managing partners of 
MAF, are also principals at The Charter Group and were both licensed as registered representatives through 
StillPoint.   

Recommendation 
MEDC Staff recommends that the MSF Board approve a waiver from requirements of the investment 
conflicts provision in the Side Letter Agreement, Section 10(b)(i)(1), in this instance, in order to allow 
MAF to make an investment into GRAM. 

Board Discussion 
Mr. Hilfinger asked the Board if there were any questions. There being none, Richard Rassel motioned for 
the approval of Resolution 2013-212. Shaun Wilson seconded the motion. The  motion carries; 9 ayes, 0 
nays, 0 recusals, 0 absent.  

 
ADMINISTRATIVE: APPOINTMENTS 

Karla Campbell, MSF Fund Manager, provided the Board with information regarding these action items.  
 
Mr. Wilson Recused 
 
Resolution 2013-213 Develop Michigan, Inc. – Investment Advisory Committee Appointment 
Pursuant to the Loan Agreement between the Michigan Strategic Fund (“MSF”) and Develop Michigan, 
Inc. (“DMI”) and its corresponding investment into its subsidiary private equity fund, the MSF is afforded 
the ability to name a representative to the Investment Advisory Committee which reviews a variety of 
matters related to the funds operations including variances from investment mix, loan to value and asset 
class/product type.   

Recommendation 
The MEDC Staff recommends the appointment of Eric Hanna to the Investment Advisory Committee until 
replaced, subject to the appointment requirements of the Operating Agreement.   

Board Discussion 
Mr. Hilfinger asked if there were any questions from the Board. There being none, Steve Arwood motioned 
for the approval of Resolution 2013-213. Andrew Lockwood seconded this motion. The motion carries; 8 
ayes, 0 nays, 1 recused, 0 absent. 

Mr. Wilson returns. 

Resolution 2013-214 HWD Manager, Inc.  
On August 25, 2013 the MSF approved a $5,649,071 equity contribution into HWD Investors, LLC for the 
Flint Cornerstone Project. The project involves the redevelopment of four city blocks in Downtown Flint to 
create an emerging health and wellness district. HWD Manager, Inc. was formed as the managing entity of 



URC FJ, LLC and will own approximately 80% of URC FJ, LLC per the NMTC structure. The sole 
shareholder of the HWD Manager, Inc. is HWD Investors, LLC, whose sole members will be Uptown 
Reinvestment Corporation, and the Michigan Strategic Fund. The Board of Directors for HWD Manager, 
Inc. will initially consist of two directors appointed by URC and one director appointed by the MSF. 
 
Recommendation 
MEDC staff recommends the appointment of the Joseph Martin to sit on the Board of Directors for HWD 
Manager, Inc. 

Board Discussion 
Mr. Hilfinger asked if there were any questions from the Board. There being none, Bill Martin motioned for 
the approval of Resolution 2013-214. Andrew Lockwood seconded the motion. The motion carries; 9 
ayes, 0 nays, 0 recused, 0 absent. 

Steve Hilfinger asked for a motion to adjourn the meeting. Steve Arwood motioned for approval. Bill 
Martin seconded the motion. The meeting was adjourned at 2:42 pm. 

 
 
 

 

 

 



 

 

MEMORANDUM 

Date:  January 28, 2014 

To:  Michigan Strategic Fund Board 

From:  Roselyn Zator, Managing Director, Entrepreneurial Services 

Subject:   FY 2014 Entrepreneurial Support Services Programs – Funding recommendation   
    
 
Action 
The MEDC requests that the MSF Board approves funding of $6,450,000 to Grand Valley State 
University Michigan Small Business Development Center (GVSU MI-SBDC) for its Entrepreneurial 
Support Services Programs including its Business Acceleration Services Fund, SBIR/STTR Federal Grant 
Match Program, and the Consulting and Business Counseling Services for Companies. 

Background  
On October 23, 2013 the MSF Board approved the release of the 2014 Entrepreneurial Support Services 
Request for Proposals in the amount of $6,450,000.  Four proposals were received, see Exhibit A.  The 
written reviews were completed and the JEC met to discuss and agree to a consensus score, and 
recommended funding of the highest scoring proposal.  GVSU MI-SBDC scored the highest with the 
score of 95.4.   

Recommendation 
MEDC Staff recommends that the MSF Board approve $6.45 million to be awarded to Grand Valley State 
University Michigan Small Business Development Center for the following programs: 
• Business Accelerator Services Fund ($1,733,248 for two years, $1,500,000 will be granted to 

specialized service providers to directly assist companies): GVSU MI-SBDC would administer a 
pool of capital that may be accessed by any of the SmartZones to assist a company with specialized 
business acceleration services and resources.  Prior to this award the awardee managed a similar 
program for the last 2 years, disbursed $3 million in grants to help companies create 116 jobs and 
raise over $31 million in capital formation.  

• SBIR / STTR Federal Grant Match ($2,293,472 for two years, $2,076,500 will be granted to 
companies as matching funds to Federal SBIR/STTR grants): GVSU MI-SBDC would administer 
a pool of capital that provides commercialization matching funds to companies receiving Federal 
SBIR / STTR grants.  Prior to this award the awardee managed a similar program for the last 6 years, 
disbursed $7 million in grants (matching $59 million in SBIR/STTR grants) to help companies create 
306 jobs and raise $100 million in capital formation. 

• Consulting and Business Counseling Services for Companies ($2,423,280 for one year): GVSU 
MI-SBDC would provide consulting and business counseling services to small and start-up 
competitive-edge technology companies in Michigan, and/or provide business development training 
and follow-on implementation services to Michigan manufacturers and related companies including 
advanced manufacturing companies to assist them in growing their top and bottom lines, creating and 
retaining jobs, and increasing their Michigan investment. Since 2002, the awardee has assisted 
157,710 entrepreneurs, helped small business owners start 4,012 businesses, created and retained 
57,812 jobs, and raised over $2.1 billion in capital. 

 



MICHIGAN STRATEGIC FUND 
 

RESOLUTION 
2014- 

 
ENTREPRENEURIAL SUPPORT SERVICES RFP AWARD 

 
WHEREAS, Public Acts 215 and 225 of 2005 (“Act”) established the 21st Century Jobs 

Trust Fund initiative;  
 

WHEREAS, MCL 125.2088k created the Strategic Economic Investment and 
Commercialization Board (“SEIC Board”) for the purposes of awarding grants and loans for 
basic research, applied research, university technology transfer, and commercialization of 
products, processes and services to encourage the development of competitive edge technologies 
to create jobs within the State of Michigan;  
 

WHEREAS, pursuant to Executive Order 2010-8, the Governor ordered the SEIC Board 
abolished and all powers, duties, and functions of the SEIC Board transferred to the Michigan 
Strategic Fund (“MSF”), including those powers, duties, and functions provided under MCL 
125.2088k;  
 

WHEREAS, on April 11, 2011 a public hearing was held and public comments were 
received on a Request for Proposals (“RFP”) to award grants to non-profit organizations that 
provide specialized entrepreneurial support services to companies and institutions in 
commercializing competitive edge technologies and building innovative businesses with the 
potential for high growth and job creation (“Entrepreneurial Support Services RFP”);  
 

WHEREAS, on October 23, 2013, the MSF Board approved the issuance of the 
Entrepreneurial Support Services RFP; 

 
WHEREAS, the Act requires that proposals be evaluated by a joint evaluation 

committee (“JEC”) and the MSF Board selected a JEC and approved scoring and evaluation 
criteria at its October 23, 2013 meeting; 

WHEREAS, four proposals were received in response to the Entrepreneurial Support 
RFP; 

WHEREAS, the JEC scored and ranked the four proposals in accordance with the 
scoring and evaluation criteria approved by the MSF Board; 

 WHEREAS, the Grand Valley State University Michigan Small Business Development 
Center (“GVSU-SBDC”) received the highest score and the MEDC recommends that the MSF 
award a grant of up to $6.45 million to GVSU-SBDC to provide entrepreneurial support services 
(the “GVSU-SBDC Grant”); and 

WHEREAS, the MSF Board wishes to approve the GVSU-SBDC Grant. 



 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, the MSF Board approves the GVSU-
SBDC Grant;  

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, the MSF Board may, at its sole discretion, extend the 
term of the GVSU-SBDC Grant for up to an additional three years and may increase the amount 
of the GVSU-SBDC Grant, subject to available funds for so long as the GVSU-SBDC Grant is 
active; and  

 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that MSF Fund Manager or the MSF Chairperson, 

with only one required to act and in coordination with MEDC Staff, is authorized to negotiate 
final terms and conditions of the GVSU-SBDC Grant and to execute all documents necessary to 
effectuate the GVSU-SBDC Grant. 
 

 

Ayes: 

Nays: 

Recused: 

Lansing, Michigan 
January 28, 2014 
 
 



Exhibit A - Scores of Proposals (Sorted in Descending Order) 

Organization 
Requested 

Amount 
Final 
Score 

Recommended 
Award 

GVSU Michigan Small 
Business Development 
Center (GVSU MI-SBDC) $6,450,000 95.4 $6,450,000 

Michigan Women’s 
Foundation $500,000 55.2 0 

Michigan Medical Device 
Consortium $275,000 49.6 0 

Adrian College $280,000 25.0 0 

Total $7,505,000   

 



 

 

MEMORANDUM 

Date:  January 28, 2014 

To:  Michigan Strategic Fund Board 

From:  Paula Sorrell, Vice President, Entrepreneurial Services 

Subject:   FY 2014 Early Stage Funding Program – Funding recommendation   
    
 
Action 
The MEDC requests that the MSF Board approves funding of $7,958,000 to Invest Michigan for its Early 
Stage Funding Program. 

Background  
On October 23, 2013 the MSF Board approved the release of the 2014 Early Stage Funding Programs 
Request for Proposals in the amount of $7,958,000.  Eight proposals were received, see Exhibit A.  The 
written reviews were completed and the JEC met to discuss and agree to a consensus Written Score.  The 
JEC recommended oral interviews for four of the top scoring applicants, and then the top two applicants 
of the oral interviews were asked to submit more detail substantiating their experience in managing a pre-
seed fund.  The JEC determined the Oral Score for the four applicants by assigning a score of -10 to +10 
to each applicant.    The Final Score was determined by summing the Written Score and the Oral Score.  
The JEC recommended funding of the highest scoring proposal.  Invest Michigan scored the highest with 
the score of 84.6.   

Invest Michigan requested $7,958,000 of which $6,764,300 will be used for investments.  Within this 
amount $5,264,300 will be used for pre-seed equity and loan investments in early stage competitive edge 
technology companies, $500,000 for pre-seed micro equity or loan investments of $50,000 or less, and 
$1,000,000 for grants to assist university technology commercialization projects.   

The JEC recommendation was based upon Charles Moret’s (President of Invest Michigan) experience of 
managing a $20 million pre-seed fund in Connecticut where  he was directly responsible for providing all 
hands-on work of marketing,  handling inquiries, negotiating with prospects, structuring investments, 
underwriting, presenting to the investment committee, documenting and closing transactions. After three 
years and 46 pre-seed investments, the Connecticut Pre-Seed Fund is reporting that 34  companies remain 
operating, 6 raised $15.5 million in seed financing, 1 did an  IPO, 2 defaulted, 1 paid-off, and 2 were 
write-offs.  The Fund is considered successful and sustainable given the large number of companies 
operating and attracting seed investment, the one IPO, and the creation of 150 jobs created from the Pre-
Seed Fund portfolio. For the last year, Charles has played an integral role at TechTown in Detroit 
managing technology commercialization projects. 

Recommendation 
MEDC recommends that the MSF Board approve $7.958 million to be awarded to Invest Michigan.    

 

 



MICHIGAN STRATEGIC FUND 
RESOLUTION 

 
2014- 

 
EARLY STAGE FUNDING RFP AWARDS 

 
WHEREAS, Public Acts 215 and 225 of 2005 (“Act”) established the 21st Century Jobs 

Trust Fund initiative;  
 

WHEREAS, MCL 125.2088k created the Strategic Economic Investment and 
Commercialization Board (“SEIC Board”) for the purposes of awarding grants and loans for 
basic research, applied research, university technology transfer, and commercialization of 
products, processes and services to encourage the development of competitive edge technologies 
to create jobs within the State of Michigan;  
 

WHEREAS, pursuant to Executive Order 2010-8, the Governor ordered the SEIC Board 
abolished and all powers, duties, and functions of the SEIC Board transferred to the Michigan 
Strategic Fund (“MSF”), including those powers, duties, and functions provided under MCL 
125.2088k;  
 

WHEREAS, on April 11, 2011 a public hearing was held and public comments were 
received on a Request for Proposals (“RFP”) to make awards to non-profit organizations that 
invest in pre-seed and early stage companies that require capital to transition from research to 
early stages of the commercialization process in the competitive edge technology sectors (“Early 
Stage Funding RFP”);  
 

WHEREAS, on October 23, 2013, the MSF Board approved the issuance of the Early 
Stage Funding RFP;  

 
WHEREAS, the Act requires that proposals be evaluated by a joint evaluation 

committee (“JEC”) and the MSF Board selected a JEC and approved scoring and evaluation 
criteria at its October 23, 2013 meeting; 

WHEREAS, eight proposals were received in response to the Entrepreneurial Support 
RFP; 

WHEREAS, the JEC scored and ranked the eight proposals in accordance with the 
scoring and evaluation criteria approved by the MSF Board; 

 WHEREAS, the proposal submitted by Invest Michigan, a Michigan non-profit 
corporation, received the highest score and the MEDC recommends that the MSF award a grant 
of up to $7,958,000 to Invest Michigan for its Early Stage Funding Program (the “Invest 
Michigan Grant”); and 

WHEREAS, the MSF Board wishes to approve the Invest Michigan Grant. 



 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, the MSF Board approves the Invest 
Michigan Grant; 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, the MSF Board may, at its sole discretion, extend the 
term of the Invest Michigan Grant for up to an additional three years and may increase the 
amount of the Invest Michigan Grant, subject to available funds for so long as Invest Michigan 
Grant is active; and  

 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that MSF Fund Manager or the MSF Chairperson, 

with only one required to act and in coordination with MEDC Staff, is authorized to negotiate 
final terms and conditions of the Invest Michigan Grant and to execute all documents necessary 
to effectuate the Invest Michigan Grant. 

 
Ayes: 

Nays: 

Recused: 

Lansing, Michigan 
January 28, 2014 
 
 

 
 

 



Exhibit A - Scores of Proposals (Sorted in Descending Order of Final Score) 

Organization 
Requested 

Amount 

Written 
Score 

(Range 
0-100) 

 

 

Oral Score 

Range (-10 
to +10) 

 

Final Score 
Recommended 

Award 

Invest Michigan $7,958,000 78.6 6.0 84.6 $7,958,000 

Antanda $7,958,000 77.4 5.8  83.2  

Ann Arbor Spark $7,800,000 82.0 -10.0 72.0  

MI Pre Seed Fund II $7,958,000 74.2 -5.0 69.2  

Michigan Initiative for 
Innovation and 
Entrepreneurship $2,850,000 65.4   65.4  

Henry Ford Health 
System $1,000,000 61.6   61.6  

Primas Civitas $7,958,000 48.0   48.0  

Global Food 
Protection Institute $2,894,300 44.6   44.6  

Total $46,376,3000     

 



 

MEMORANDUM 

Date: January 28, 2014 

To: Michigan Strategic Fund (“MSF”) Board Members 

From: Kenneth Murdoch, Development Finance Manager 

Subject:   Kalitta Air, LLC (“Company” or “Applicant”) 
  Michigan Business Development Program Performance-based Grant Request 

 

 

Request 
This is a request from the Applicant for a $2 million Performance-based grant. This project involves the 
creation of 200 Qualified New Jobs, and a capital investment of up to $9,730,431 in Oscoda Charter 
Township, Michigan.  
 
Background  
The Applicant is a Federal Aviation Administration certified provider of aircraft maintenance, repair and 
overhaul services. The Company began service in November of 2000 and operates out of eight hangers at 
the Wurtsmith Airport located in Oscoda Charter Township, Michigan. 
 
The Company will be constructing a new 80,000 square foot airplane hangar. The new hangar will be 
larger than the ones the Company currently uses and will allow the Company to offer nose to tail service 
and repair on B-747-400’s, B747-8’s and the Dreamliner aircrafts. 
 
The incentive will assist the Company with the construction of the new hangar in Oscoda Charter 
Township, Michigan, which will result in job creation and investment related to the aircraft repair 
industry. 
 
The Applicant has not directly received any incentives from the MSF in the past. In April of 2008 the 
Company benefitted from a $1.3 million CDBG grant to Oscoda Charter Township that was used to make 
improvements to a township owned hangar being used by Kalitta Air and the parking lot servicing the 
hangar. The project is located in the former Oscoda-Wurtsmith Renaissance Zone which expired at the 
end of 2011. 
 
The Applicant plans to construct a new aircraft hangar in Oscoda Charter Township, Michigan, make 
investments and create jobs related to aircraft maintenance and repairs. 
 
Considerations  
 

a) The Applicant is a “Qualified Business”, as defined in MCL 125.2088r(9)(b), that is located and 
operates in Michigan. 

b) The project will be located in Oscoda Charter Township. The 36T has offered a “staff, financial, 
or economic commitment to the project” in the form of  tax increment financing via the Oscoda-
Wurtsmith Airport Local Development Financing Authority (LDFA) approved by MSF on 
December 27, 2012.  An estimated value of state and local taxes $2.3 million will be generated by 

 



 

the LDFA overall. An estimated $140,085 of State Education Tax will be generated for tax 
increment revenue by the project, which will then be contributed to safety, infrastructure 
improvements and repairs that will support the project.   

c) The Applicant has demonstrated a need for the funding based on the need to justify additional 
operating expenses of operating from a rural and northern location and limitations on available 
workforce. 

d) The Applicant plans to create 200 Qualified New Jobs above a statewide base employment level 
of 699. 

e) Pursuant to the program guidelines, the following was taken into consideration for the proposed 
project:  the project involves competition for aircraft maintenance and service operators in the 
southern states, and this project diversifies Michigan’s economy.  

 
Recommendation 
MEDC Staff recommends (the following, collectively, “Recommendation”): 
 

a) Approval of the MBDP Proposal as outlined in the attached term sheet (collectively, “MBDP 
Proposal”); 

b) Closing the MBDP Proposal, subject to available funding under the MBDP at the time of closing 
(“Available Funding”),  satisfactory completion of due diligence, (collectively, “Due Diligence”), 
finalization of all MBDP transaction documents, and further subject to the following terms and 
conditions: 

a. Commitment will remain valid for 120 days with approval for MSF Fund Manager to 
extend the commitment an additional 60 days; 

b. MSF Fund Manager, in coordination with MEDC staff, can negotiate final milestone 
performance terms from that contained in the Term Sheet, and additional and other terms 
so long as the additional and other terms are not otherwise materially adverse to the MSF, 
to accommodate final signing of the Transaction Documents. 

 
 

 

  

Kalitta air, LLC 

2 





MICHIGAN STRATEGIC FUND 
 

RESOLUTION 2013- 
 

APPROVAL OF A MICHIGAN BUSINESS DEVELOPMENT PROGRAM GRANT TO 
KALITTA AIR, LLC 

 
 WHEREAS, the Michigan legislature passed legislation establishing the 21st Century Jobs Trust Fund 
initiative that was signed into law;  
  
 WHEREAS, the Michigan Economic Development Corporation (“MEDC”) provides administrative services 
to the Michigan Strategic Fund (“MSF”) for 21st Century Jobs Trust Fund programs; 
 
 WHEREAS, pursuant to MCL 125.2088r, the MSF shall create and operate the Michigan Business 
Development Program (“MBDP”) to provide grants, loans and other economic assistance to qualified businesses that 
make qualified investments or provide qualified new jobs in Michigan; 
 
 WHEREAS, on December 21, 2011, by Resolution 2011-184, the MSF (i) created the MBDP, (ii) adopted the 
guidelines for the MBDP (“Guidelines”), and (iii) approved the MSF Fund Manager to negotiate the final terms and 
conditions of the written agreements to be used to memorialize MBDP awards on the MSF’S behalf in accordance with 
the Guidelines (“Transaction Documents”); 
 
 WHEREAS, the Guidelines require that MBDP awards over $1 million must be approved by the MSF Board; 
 
 WHEREAS, Kalitta Air, LLC (“Company”) has requested a performance based MBDP grant of up to $2 
million (“Grant  Request”),  along with other general terms and conditions which are outlined in the term sheet attached 
as Exhibit A (“Term Sheet”); 
 
 WHEREAS, the MEDC has recommended to the MSF Advisory Committee that the MSF approve the 
Company’s Grant Request in accordance with the Term Sheet, subject to: (i) available funding, (ii) final due diligence 
performed to the satisfaction of the MEDC; and (iii) execution of the Transaction Documents within 120 days of the 
date of this Resolution (“Time Period”), or this Resolution shall have no effect; provided however, at the sole discretion 
of the MSF Fund Manager, the Time Period may be extended for up to an additional 60 days (“MBDP Award 
Recommendation”); and  
 
 WHEREAS, the MSF Advisory Committee has indicated its support of the MBDP Award Recommendation.  
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, the MSF Board approves the MBDP Award Recommendation.  
 
 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, the MSF Board approves the MSF Fund Manager to negotiate final 
milestone performance terms from that contained in the Term Sheet, and additional and other terms so long as the 
additional and other terms are not otherwise materially adverse to the MSF, to accommodate final signing of the 
Transaction Documents. 
 
 

Ayes: 
 
Nays: 
   
Recused:  

Lansing, Michigan  
January 28, 2014 

 











 

MEMORANDUM  
 
Date:   January 28, 2014 
 
To:   Michigan Strategic Fund Board 
 
From: Eric Hanna, Director, Debt Capital Programs 

Diane Cranmer, Private Activity Bond Specialist 
 
Subject:  Private Activity Bond – Bond Authorizing  

Canton Renewables, LLC – Sauk Trail Hills Project 
Solid Waste – Not to Exceed $13,300,000 – New/Refinancing  

_____________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
Request: 
Canton Renewables, LLC (the “Company”) is seeking financing for the costs of construction relating to a 
renewable natural gas facility at the Sauk Trail Hills Landfill located at, or adjacent to, 5011 South Lilley 
Road, Charter Township of Canton, Wayne County.  The Company indicates it will produce renewable 
natural gas that will be derived from the biogas extracted from the solid waste landfill that can be used as 
a renewable energy resource. 
 
The project qualifies for private activity tax-exempt bond financing under the “solid waste facility” 
exemption. 
 
The Company indicates that the project will result in 2-3 permanent jobs. 
 
Background: 
Canton Renewables, LLC is a Michigan limited liability company established in 2010.  The Company 
advises it is an affiliate and wholly owned subsidiary of Mavrix, LLC (“Mavrix”), which is an affiliate 
and an indirect wholly owned subsidiary of Clean Energy Fuels Corporation (“Clean Energy”).  Clean 
Energy owns 100% of the membership interest in Clean Energy Renewable Fuels, LLC which owns 
100% of the membership interest in Mavrix.   
 
Recommendation: 
Based upon a determination by Lewis & Munday, A Professional Corporation, and the State of Michigan 
Attorney General’s office that the project complies with state and federal law requirements, for tax 
exempt financing, staff recommends the adoption of a Bond Authorizing Resolution in the amount of  not 
to exceed $13,300,000.   

 





RESOLUTION TO AUTHORIZE THE ISSUANCE OF THE MICHIGAN 
STRATEGIC FUND SOLID WASTE FACILITY LIMITED OBLIGATION 

REVENUE BONDS (CANTON RENEWABLES, LLC – SAUK TRAIL HILLS 
PROJECT), SERIES 2014 (THE “BONDS”) 

              
Resolution 2014-        

 
Background 

 
 A.  The Michigan Strategic Fund (the “Fund”) is authorized by 1984 PA 270, 
as amended (the “Act”), to issue bonds and loan the proceeds of such bonds to 
finance and/or refinance a project (as defined in the Act). 
 
 B.  Canton Renewables, LLC, a Michigan limited liability company (the 
“Company”), has requested a loan from the Fund to (i) finance or refinance a portion 
of the costs of the acquisition, construction, installation, improving, and/or 
equipping of certain landfill gas collection and processing facilities at the Sauk Trail 
Hills Landfill located in the Charter Township of Canton, Wayne County, Michigan 
(collectively the “Project”), (ii) fund a debt service reserve fund, and (iii) pay all or a 
portion of the costs of issuance for the Bonds.  The Project is owned by the 
Company, and pursuant to a Management Services Agreement, between Mavrix, 
LLC (“Mavrix”) and the Company, Mavrix (or its parent company Clean Energy 
Renewable Fuels, LLC or one or more of its subsidiaries) will perform certain 
administrative, managerial, and telecommunication activities related to the 
operation of the Project. 
 
 C.  The Company has requested the Fund to issue the Bonds in a principal 
amount not to exceed $13,300,000 pursuant to this resolution (the “Resolution”) and 
a trust indenture (the “Indenture”), between the Fund and The Bank of New York 
Mellon Trust Company, N.A., as trustee (the “Trustee”), dated as of February 1, 
2014, to obtain funds which will be loaned to the Company pursuant to a loan 
agreement, dated as of February 1, 2014, between the Fund and the Company (the 
“Loan Agreement”) for the purpose of financing or refinancing the Project, funding 
the debt service reserve fund and paying all or a portion of the costs of issuance for 
the Bonds. 
 
 D.  The Bonds will be placed by First Southwest Company, as representative (the 
“Representative”) on behalf of itself and Westhoff, Cone & Holmstedt (together with the 
Representative, the “Placement Agents”) to investors pursuant to a Bond Placement 
Agreement by and among the Fund, the Placement Agents and the Company (the “Bond 
Placement Agreement”). 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, Be It Resolved by the Board of the Fund: 
 

1 
 



 SECTION 1.  Issuance of Bonds; Limited Obligation.  For the purpose of 
making the loan requested by the Company, the issuance of the Bonds is 
authorized. 
 
 The terms of the Bonds shall be substantially in the form contained in the 
Indenture, with the changes permitted or required by action of the Fund or the Indenture.  
The Bonds shall bear the manual or facsimile signature of a member of the Fund's Board 
of Directors (a “Member”) or of a Fund employee authorized by Board Resolution to sign 
Bond documents on behalf of the Fund (an “Authorized Officer”), and the official seal of 
the Fund (or a facsimile of the seal) shall be impressed or imprinted on the Bonds. 
 

The Bonds and the interest and any premium on the Bonds are not a debt or 
obligation of the State of Michigan or a debt or general obligation of the Fund 
within the meaning of any constitutional or statutory provision or limitation and do 
not constitute a charge against the credit or taxing powers of the State of Michigan 
or the general funds or assets of the Fund (including funds relating to other Fund 
loans or activities), but shall be a limited obligation of the Fund payable solely from 
the revenues derived from the Loan Agreement and otherwise as provided in the 
Indenture. 
 
 SECTION 2.  Approval, Execution, and Delivery of Documents.  The forms of 
the following documents, on file with the staff of the Fund and which have been 
endorsed by the staff of the Fund the date of adoption of this Resolution, are 
approved: 
 
 a. Loan Agreement 
 b. Indenture  
 c. Bond Placement Agreement 
 
 Any Member or Authorized Officer is authorized to execute and deliver the 
Loan Agreement, and the Indenture and any Member and an Authorized Officer are 
authorized to execute and deliver the Bond Placement Agreement, in substantially 
the forms approved, with such completions as are authorized by this Resolution and 
any changes as are considered necessary or desired by them, permitted by the Act 
or otherwise by law, and not materially adverse to the Fund. 
 
 SECTION 3.  Completion of Document Terms.  The following terms shall be 
as approved by the Member executing the Bond Placement Agreement: 
 

a. The interest rate applicable to the Bonds, which shall not be more than 
9% per annum, 

 
b. The purchase price of the Bonds, which shall not be less than 96% of the 

face amount of the Bonds, 

2 
 



 
c. The final maturity date on the Bonds which shall not be later than 

January 1, 2023, and 
 

d. The aggregate principal amount which shall not exceed $13,300,000. 
 
 SECTION 4.  Sale and Delivery of the Bonds.  The Bonds shall be sold by the 
Placement Agents to investors in accordance with the terms of the Bond Placement 
Agreement.  A Member or an Authorized Officer shall execute and seal the Bonds, if 
necessary, and deliver the Bonds upon receipt of the following documents and 
payment of the purchase price for the Bonds by the investors: 
 

a. an opinion of bond counsel to the Fund acceptable to the Fund and the Attorney 
General of the State of Michigan (the “Attorney General”), 

 
b. an opinion of special counsel to the Company and necessary certificates and 

representations of the Company acceptable to the Fund, the Attorney General, 
and bond counsel,  

 
c. an opinion of counsel, experienced in securities law, acceptable to the Fund and 

the Attorney General, or other evidence acceptable to the Fund and the Attorney 
General, that the Bonds are being sold in compliance with applicable laws and 
regulations relating to registration and sale of securities, and  

 
d. an approving opinion of the Attorney General. 

 
Upon receipt, the Bond proceeds shall be paid over to the Trustee to be credited in 
accordance with the Indenture. 
 
 SECTION 5.  Preliminary Limited Offering Memorandum and Limited 
Offering Memorandum.  The use and distribution by the Placement Agents of a 
Preliminary Limited Offering Memorandum to solicit offers to purchase the Bonds, 
in substantially the form on file with the Fund and on which an Authorized Officer 
shall endorse the date of adoption of this Resolution, is ratified.  The Placements 
Agents’ distribution of a Limited Offering Memorandum, in substantially the same 
form as the Preliminary Limited Offering Memorandum, is approved.  Any Member 
or Authorized Officer may approve changes in the Limited Offering Memorandum 
as may be necessary or desirable, permitted by the Act or otherwise by law, and not 
materially adverse to the Fund.   
 

SECTION 6.  Designation of Certain Parties.  The Bank of New York Mellon 
Trust Company, N.A.’s acceptance of its duties as Trustee shall be evidenced by its 
execution of the Indenture. 
 

3 
 



 SECTION 7.  Authorization of Filings and Other Documents.  Any Member or 
Authorized Officer, as well as counsel to the Fund, is authorized to apply for or 
submit, execute, and deliver the other certificates, documents, opinions, and papers 
to any party or governmental agency as may be required by the Loan Agreement, 
the Indenture, or the Bond Placement Agreement or as may be necessary to 
effectuate the valid issuance, sale, and delivery of the Bonds as tax-exempt bonds or 
otherwise as contemplated by those documents and this Resolution. 
 
 SECTION 8.  Conflict and Effectiveness.  This Resolution shall become 
effective upon adoption.  If the Indenture, the Bonds, the Loan Agreement and Bond 
Placement Agreement are not delivered on or before March 4, 2014, the authority 
granted by this Resolution shall lapse. 
 
Adopted. 
 
 
 Ayes: 
 
 
 
 Nays: 
 
 
January 28, 2014 Meeting 
Lansing, Michigan 
 
 
2013-0042494-A/MSF Canton Renewables LLC/Resolution 

4 
 



 
MEMORANDUM 
 
DATE:   January 28, 2014 

TO:   Michigan Strategic Fund Board 

FROM:   Michael Flanagan, Director of Equity Programs 

SUBJECT: Pure Michigan Venture Development Fund:  Award Modification –  
                                      Detroit Venture Partners 
 
REQUEST 
MEDC Staff is requesting a modification to the award made to Detroit Venture Partners (“DVP”) through the 
Pure Michigan Venture Development Fund (“Program” or “VDF”), to allow DVP to have a final close of 
greater than $50 million. 
 
BACKGROUND 
On October 23, 2013, the MSF Board approved an award of $2.25 million to Detroit Venture Partners through 
the Pure Michigan Venture Development Fund.  Under the Program Guidelines, funds are required to have a 
target fund size no greater than $50 million.  DVP met this requirement with a $50 million target fund size, as 
reflected in their Private Placement Memorandum provided at application.  However, DVP has recently 
informed MEDC staff that it will exceed its initial target fund size of $50 million and will likely have a final 
close that is closer to $65 million.   
 
MEDC staff views this as a positive development.  From an economic development perspective, the additional 
funds raised mean additional private capital leveraged on top of the MSF commitment and a great 
accomplishment by the fund.  It also likely means more investments in Michigan companies.  The original 
intent of the Program guideline limiting target fund size to under $50 million was to ensure that the Program 
target venture funds with realistic goals, consistent with new venture funds.  It was also designed to encourage 
funds to close out their fund raising and begin investing sooner.  It was not intended to penalize funds that 
were able to exceed those goals within a reasonable timeframe.  However, unfortunately, the guideline as 
written has had the unintended consequence of doing just this.  Staff hopes to rectify this currently by allowing 
for the greater than $50 million fund size. 
 
Incidentally, the Program also required that funds could not have raised more than $25 million at the time of 
application to ensure that the MSF commitment was relevant and could make a positive impact on future fund 
raising.  DVP had approximately $21 million raised at the time of application in February, 2013.  The Fund has 
subsequently stated that the MSF commitment was instrumental in raising additional funds since that time. 
 
As a reminder, Detroit Venture Partners was founded in November 2010, and is a Detroit based venture fund 
that makes seed and early stage investments in all-digital technology companies.  The General Partners of DVP 
are Dan Gilbert, the Founder and Chairman of Quicken Loans and majority owner of the Cleveland Cavaliers; 
Josh Linkner, Founder and former Chairman and CEO of ePrize; and Brian Hermelin, Managing Director of 
Rockbridge Growth Equity.  DVP is focused on creating a strong nexus of technological innovation in Detroit, 
Michigan.   
 
RECOMMENDATION 
Staff recommends that the MSF Board approve a resolution allowing Detroit Venture Partners to exceed its 
initial target fund size of $50 million, which will have a positive economic impact on Detroit and Michigan 
generally.  

 



MICHIGAN STRATEGIC FUND 
RESOLUTION 

 
2014- 

 
REVISED PURE MICHIGAN VENTURE DEVELOPMENT FUND AWARD 

 
WHEREAS, Public Acts 215 and 225 of 2005 established the 21st Century Jobs Trust Fund 

initiative (the “Act”); 
 

WHEREAS, MCL 125.2088k created the Strategic Economic Investment and 
Commercialization Board (“SEIC Board”) for the purposes of awarding grants and loans for basic 
research, applied research, university technology transfer, and commercialization of products, processes 
and services to encourage the development of competitive edge technologies to create jobs within the 
State of Michigan; 
 

WHEREAS, pursuant to Executive Order 2010-8, the Governor ordered the SEIC Board 
abolished and all powers, duties, and functions of the SEIC Board transferred to the Michigan Strategic 
Fund (“MSF”), including those powers, duties, and functions provided under MCL 125.2088k; 

 
WHEREAS, the Michigan Economic Development Corporation provides administrative services 

for the Michigan Strategic Fund (“MSF”) for 21st Century Jobs Fund programs (“21CJF Programs”); 
 
WHEREAS, at its June 27, 2012 meeting the MSF has approved the guidelines and process for 

the Pure Michigan Venture Development Fund (“PMVDF Program”), which included provisions required 
by MCL 125.2088k and established a competitive proposal process for making awards to qualified 
venture funds, and engaged Credit Suisse Asset Management LLC (“Credit Suisse”) to assist in the 
independent peer review of applications received under the PMVDF Program; 

 
WHEREAS, at its January, 23 2013 meeting, the MSF Board authorized a second round of 

applications for the PMVDF Program; 
 
WHEREAS, in the second round under the PMVDF Program, eight proposals were received and 

reviewed by Credit Suisse; 
 
WHEREAS, the MSF Board selected Detroit Venture Partners as a recipient of a PMVDF award 

at its October 23, 2013 meeting; 
 
WHEREAS, Detroit Venture Partners has recently informed MEDC Staff that it will exceed its 

initial target fund size of $50 million and will likely have a final close that is closer to $65 million; 
 
WHEREAS, MEDC Staff recommends that the MSF Board authorize Detroit Venture Partners 

to raise funds in excess of its initial $50 million target fund size; and 
 
WHEREAS, the MSF Board wishes to authorize Detroit Venture Partners to raise funds in 

excess of its initial $50 million target fund size. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, the MSF Board authorizes Detroit Venture 

Partners to raise funds in excess of its initial $50 million target fund size.  
 
Ayes:  



 
Nays:   
 
Recused:  

 
Lansing, Michigan 
January 28, 2014 

 
 

 



 
MEMORANDUM  

Date:   January 28, 2014 

To:  Michigan Strategic Fund  

From:  Joseph Martin, Manager, Community Revitalization and Brownfield Programs 
 Stacy Esbrook, Community Assistance Team Specialist 

Subject:   Strathmore Apartments Limited Dividend Housing Association, LLC 
  Michigan Community Revitalization Program  

Request for Approval of a $3,500,000 Performance-Based Other Economic 
Assistance 

  

Request 
Strathmore Apartments LDHA, LLC along with University Cultural Center Association (Co-Applicants) 
are requesting approval of a Michigan Community Revitalization Program (MCRP) incentive in the 
amount of $3,500,000 in the form of a performance-based other economic assistance (equity 
contribution). The company anticipates that the project could result in eligible investment of $21,602,000 
and total capital investment in the amount of $28,446,000 in the City of Detroit and the creation of three 
full-time jobs and one part-time job. 
 
Background  
Strathmore Apartments LDHA, LLC was created at the behest of McCormick Baron Salazar and 
University Cultural Center Association (UCCA) as a partnership for the redevelopment of subject 
property. McCormack Baron Salazar was incorporated in 1973 and has distinguished itself as a nationally 
acclaimed for-profit residential development company specialized in the revitalization of urban 
neighborhoods. McCormack Baron Salazar has extensive experience in the adaptive reuse and 
rehabilitation of historic structures and the integration of new construction into urban historic districts. 
The firm has developed 2,487 units of residential housing and 948,624 square feet of retail/commercial 
space in historic buildings and districts. University Cultural Center Association, a subsidiary of Midtown 
Detroit Inc., has been responsible for the redevelopment efforts in Midtown Detroit for over two decades. 
They have successfully leveraged private investment and public support from a wide circle of funding 
sources to grow and redeveloped this critical job creation and cultural center of Detroit. 
 
The Co-Applicants have not received any incentives from the MSF previously.  
 
The Co-Applicants plan to historically renovate the former Strathmore Hotel on approximately 0.78 acres 
of property located at 70 West Alexandrine in the City of Detroit.  The project will convert the vacant and 
blighted 8-story building into 129 one and two-bedroom apartments with 2,000 square feet of retail space 
on the first floor and includes parking improvements on the adjacent site.  Sixty percent of the residential 
units will be market-rate units. 
 
The project is located in a downtown and qualifies for an MCRP award because it is functionally obsolete 
and a historic resource. 
 
The project’s statutory requirements are addressed in Appendix A, a project map is provided in 
Appendix B. 
 

 



 

Deal Structure 
Strathmore Apartments Limited Dividend Housing Association, LLC will be the property owner and is 
the entity responsible for the redevelopment and management of the property, including making the 
eligible investment and providing the cash flow to service all debt payments arising from the transaction. 
It is proposed that UCCA and the MSF would enter into a to be formed limited liability company (LLC) 
which would combine grants and other soft monies provided for the project through UCCA, and the 
proposed MCRP contribution. This LLC will then use the funds to provide low cost loan(s) to the project, 
rather than a direct equity investment in the property owner. This structure maximizes the value of the 
Low Income Housing and Historic Tax Credits (LIHTC) to the tax credit investor. At the end of the 15-
year LIHTC compliance period, the tax credit investor would exit the structure, and transfer the property 
to Midtown Detroit, Inc. or a related entity. It is currently contemplated that concurrent with the tax credit 
investor exit, the MSF will exercise a membership redemption agreement for the fair market value of its 
membership interest in the LLC. Depending on the fair market value of the project at the end of 15 years, 
it is possible that under certain parameters the MSF will maintain soft loans to the new property owner to 
increase the amount of its equity investment that is repaid. 
 
It is proposed that free cash flow of the LLC will be split based on the MSF and UCCA proportional 
contributions to the LLC. Before making payments on the LLC’s loans, the project owner will pay 
$500,000 in deferred developer fees owed to McCormack Baron Salazar and UCCA. Payment on the City 
of Detroit HOME Funds will be made coincident with payments to the MSF as a percentage of free cash 
flow which is yet to be determined. At present the free cash flow is anticipated to deliver a 1.40x Debt 
Service Coverage Ratio (DSCR) to cover the HUD 221(d)4 debt. Based on current projections, 
approximately $130,000 in free cash flow will be available to be split on a stabilized value. Free cash 
flow is limited based on the income restrictions placed on the property.    
  
A summary of the anticipated sources to the project can be found here: 
TOTAL DEVELOPMENT SOURCES   

Amount Senior Debt       
221(d)4         $4,954,500  
Subordinate Debt/Grants       
MCRP Equity Contribution     $3,500,000  
Other: Detroit CITY HOME   $4,795,000  

Other: 
Midtown Detroit, 
Inc.   $2,539,000  

Deferred Fees/Cash Equity 
 

        
Deferred Developer Fees     $500,000  
Cash Equity Owner       $12,157,500  
TOTAL DEVELOPMENT SOURCES   $28,446,000  

 
EQUITY PURCHASE 
Co-Applicants:  Strathmore Apartments Limited Dividend Housing Association, LLC, 

University Cultural Center Association, and a yet to be identified 
investment LLC  

 
MSF Investment Amount: $3,500,000 
 
Interest Purchased: MSF will acquire an equity interest in a newly formed LLC with UCCA, 

and that LLC will make loans to Strathmore Apartments Limited 

 



 

Dividend Housing Association, LLC. The MSF will provide no 
guarantees on debt and accept no recourse obligation. 

 
“Put” Right: The MSF will receive a “Put” right requiring the investment LLC and/or 

UCCA to repay in full the entire contribution provided to the partnership 
and any earned but unpaid profits available at the time of the notice to 
exercise the Put on terms and conditions acceptable to the MSF. 

   
Membership Change: The MSF will have certain rights to block or consent to any material 

change in the membership of the project owner entity. It is anticipated 
that the Tax Credit Investor may require some limitations on these rights 
which, so long as they do not create a violation of law or policy are 
anticipated to be acceptable. 

  
Sale/Liquidation: At the conclusion of the 15-year Low Income Housing Tax Credit 

Compliance Period, UCCA/Midtown Detroit, Inc. will have the right of 
first refusal to purchase the property and related assets. Concurrently, the 
MSF will have the option to enter into a membership redemption 
agreement to sell its equity interest in the LLC at fair market value. It is 
also contemplated that the MSF may have the option to continue in the 
structure by making soft loans to the new property owner if necessary to 
maximize the amount of its initial equity investment that is repaid. 

 
Management: The MSF Fund Manager or his/her designee shall have the right to 

appoint at least one-third of the management team of the LLC.  
 
Timing of Funding: The investment is authorized to fund on or about the date of the closing 

of the other project financing which shall include at a minimum the 
funding provided by University Cultural Center Association to complete 
the capitalization of the LLC.  

 
Final Terms and Conditions: Due to the complex nature of the transaction, the MSF Fund Manager is 

authorized to execute final terms and conditions so long as the following 
conditions are met: 

• The Investment Amount is not exceeded 
• The “Put” right is substantially preserved  
• The final terms comply with the CRP Guidelines and MSF Act 

 
The Applicant's financial need for a community revitalization incentive: 
The project’s cash flow is significantly constrained by the mixed-income structure of this transaction.  Of 
the 129 units, 40 percent have income restrictions. The income restrictions are partially offset by the Low 
Income Housing Tax Credit equity, but the project was only able to secure just under $5 million in hard 
senior financing based. The debt was sized to meet a 1.20 DSCR.  
 
Whether the project is financially and economically sound: 
Upon completion, it is anticipated that the project will have no more than $5 million in hard debt with 
regularly scheduled debt service requirements arising from the HUD 221(d)4 senior loan. The excess cash 
flow will then be split up amongst three obligations: deferred developer fee payments, City of Detroit 
HOME Loan, and equity. The cash flow projections show the project on a stabilized basis will not have 
over leveraged on debt and will be financially and economically sound. However, it should be noted that 

 



 

unless rents significantly increase from current levels, the cash distribution to the MSF on an annual basis 
will be severely limited. 
 
According to market information compiled in 2013 by Baker Tilly for this project, demand and absorption 
for rental housing in Midtown is high and continues to increase. The 129-units being added by this project 
is within the sufficient capture rate defined by HUD supported housing (capture rate is defined as the 
percentage of households with sufficient income to pay the rent for the project). Most notably, the project 
would need to capture between 1.4 and 1.9% of existing available renters in the area, which is well below 
the maximum threshold of 10%. Additionally, the number of household with incomes between $35,000 
and $99,000 is expected to grow by 241 households per year in the study area between 2012 and 2017.  
This will only further increase the need for market rate housing. Lastly, a number of appraisals within 
downtown and Midtown  Detroit have noted developments reporting 100% occupancy with waiting-lists.  
These studies took into account the potential redevelopments of Griswold Apartments, Capitol Park, 
David Whitney Building, and the Milner Hotel, determining there was sufficient demand to meet the 
supply. 
 
Recommendation 
The MEDC staff recommends approval of an MCRP performance-based equity contribution under other 
economic assistance in the amount of $3,500,000 for Strathmore Apartments LDHA, LLC.  The 
commitment will remain valid until July 27, 2014 (180 days after approval) with approval for the MSF 
Fund Manager to extend the commitment an additional 180 days. 

 



 

APPENDIX A 
 

MCRP PROGRAM AND ITS GUIDELINES 
On December 21, 2011, the MSF Board approved the Michigan Community Revitalization Program 
(MCRP) and its guidelines. The primary intended objective of the MCRP is to provide incentives to 
persons that make eligible investments on eligible property in Michigan. 
 
SOURCE OF INFORMATION 
It is the role of the Project Management staff (MEDC Staff) to review for eligibility, completeness, and 
adherence to MCRP guidelines, the information provided by the applicant and to manage the MSF’s 
investment. Explanatory and background information is supplied in summary form to provide context for 
the request and is drawn exclusively from materials submitted by the applicant, and, as applicable, from 
other relevant third party sources utilized by staff. 
 
As required under the program, the following statutory criteria shall be considered by the MSF, as MEDC 
Staff believes each is reasonably applicable to proposed project:  
 

A. The importance of the project to the community in which it is located: 

This project will restore the historic Strathmore Hotel into a vibrant mixed-use building in the 
heart of Midtown, Detroit.  The building is an eyesore and highly visible at one of the busiest 
intersections of Woodward Avenue.  The site location is walkable to the Eds & Meds anchors of 
Detroit Medical Center, Wayne State University campus and Wayne State School of Medicine. 
The redevelopment of this building is crucial to growth and stability of the neighborhood given 
its visibility and size.  Upon completion, the building will add much needed market-rate and 
affordable housing to the neighborhood.  The retail space will add needed support amenities to 
the neighborhood, which both supports and attracts residents.    
 

B. If the project will act as a catalyst for additional revitalization of the community in which it 
is located: 

The redevelopment of the Strathmore supports the numerous redevelopment efforts of the 
Midtown area and will help to stabilize the neighborhood and attract future development. 
 

C. The amount of local community and financial support for the project: 

The project is being supported by the City of Detroit with a HOME cash flow loan in the amount 
of $4,795,000 for 40 years and with a 10% Payment In Lieu Of Taxes (PILOT) estimated at 
$4,900,000. 

 
D. The extent of reuse of vacant buildings, reuse of historical buildings, and redevelopment of 

blighted property: 

The Strathmore is a contributing building in a locally designated historic district. The building 
has been vacant for many years, has been vandalized and used as a graffiti canvas multiple times 
over. The current owner has had to have multiple trees removed from the interior of the building 
in order to keep it insured while structuring the development. 
 
 
 
 

 



 

E. Creation of jobs: 

The project is expected to result in the creation of three full-time jobs and one part-time job. The 
average hourly wage is estimated to be $20 for the full-time jobs and $12 for the part-time job. 
 

F. The level of private sector and other contributions, including, but not limited to, federal 
funds and federal tax credits: 

The project is being supported by the City of Detroit with a HOME cash flow loan in the amount 
of $4,795,000 for 40 years and with a 10% Payment In Lieu Of Taxes (PILOT) estimated at 
$4,900,000.  Midtown Detroit Inc. is contributing $2,539,000 in local foundation support from 
the Hudson-Webber Foundation and Invest Detroit, Core Strategic Fund.  The affordable housing 
portion of this project (40% of the residential units) has been awarded a Low Income Housing 
Tax Credit in the amount of $859,774.  The project will also obtain Federal Historic Tax Credits 
in the amount of $4,793,000. 

 
G. Whether the project increases the density of the area: 

Redevelopment of the Strathmore will increase the density of the area by adding 129 residential 
units to the neighborhood. 
 

H. Whether the project promotes mixed-use development and walkable communities: 

This project will add much needed residential and retail space to Midtown. The neighborhood, 
and more specifically, Woodward Avenue and Alexandrine, will become more walkable as a 
result of the redevelopment of the Strathmore.  Not only will the additional 129 filled residential 
units add foot traffic to the neighborhood, but the redevelopment of the vacant building will make 
the neighborhood safer by removing a space for squatters or other criminal activity. 
 

I. Whether the project converts abandoned public buildings to private use: 

The vacant building that will be rehabilitated as a result of this project is not public. 
 

J. Whether the project promotes sustainable development: 

Restoration of a historic building is considered to be a sustainable practice. Improvements to the 
energy efficiency of the building envelope will be made and all residential units will be upgraded 
with high efficiency heating and cooling systems. 
 

K. Whether the project involves the rehabilitation of a historic resource: 

The Strathmore is a contributing building in a locally designated historic district under Public Act 
196. 
 

L. Whether the project addresses area-wide redevelopment: 

The Midtown area has been the target for local and state revitalization efforts by providing 
housing and amenities that support people moving into the area who have been drawn by anchor 
institutions including Wayne State University and Detroit Medical Center. This project fits into 
the ongoing redevelopment efforts. 
 
 

 



 

M. Whether the project addresses underserved markets of commerce: 

Rental housing is in high demand in Midtown, Detroit, but there is a low stock of quality, market 
rate housing.  This project will convert an 8-story vacant building into 129 units of residential 
space and 2,000 square feet of retail.  
 

N. The level and extent of environmental contamination: 

The project is not qualifying as a facility and environmental contamination is limited to asbestos 
and lead containing materials on the interior. Appropriate abatements will be conducted.  
 

O. If the rehabilitation of the historic resource will meet the federal Secretary of the Interior's 
standards for rehabilitation and guidelines for rehabilitating historic buildings 
(36 CFR 67): 

The building will be rehabilitated in accordance with the federal Secretary of the Interior’s 
Standards. 
 

P. Whether the project will compete with or affect existing Michigan businesses within the 
same industry: 

This project will not compete with or affect any existing Michigan businesses. 
 

Q. Any other additional criteria approved by the board that are specific to each individual 
project and are consistent with the findings and intent of this chapter: 

No additional factors need to be considered for this project. 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 



 

APPENDIX B 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 



 

APPENDIX A 
 

MCRP PROGRAM AND ITS GUIDELINES 
On December 21, 2011, the MSF Board approved the Michigan Community Revitalization Program 
(MCRP) and its guidelines. The primary intended objective of the MCRP is to provide incentives to 
persons that make eligible investments on eligible property in Michigan. 
 
SOURCE OF INFORMATION 
It is the role of the Project Management staff (MEDC Staff) to review for eligibility, completeness, and 
adherence to MCRP guidelines, the information provided by the applicant and to manage the MSF’s 
investment. Explanatory and background information is supplied in summary form to provide context for 
the request and is drawn exclusively from materials submitted by the applicant, and, as applicable, from 
other relevant third party sources utilized by staff. 
 
As required under the program, the following statutory criteria shall be considered by the MSF, as MEDC 
Staff believes each is reasonably applicable to proposed project:  
 

A. The importance of the project to the community in which it is located: 

This project will restore the historic Strathmore Hotel into a vibrant mixed-use building in the 
heart of Midtown, Detroit.  The building is an eyesore and highly visible at one of the busiest 
intersections of Woodward Avenue.  The site location is walkable to the Eds & Meds anchors of 
Detroit Medical Center, Wayne State University campus and Wayne State School of Medicine. 
The redevelopment of this building is crucial to growth and stability of the neighborhood given 
its visibility and size.  Upon completion, the building will add much needed market-rate and 
affordable housing to the neighborhood.  The retail space will add needed support amenities to 
the neighborhood, which both supports and attracts residents.    
 

B. If the project will act as a catalyst for additional revitalization of the community in which it 
is located: 

The redevelopment of the Strathmore supports the numerous redevelopment efforts of the 
Midtown area and will help to stabilize the neighborhood and attract future development. 
 

C. The amount of local community and financial support for the project: 

The project is being supported by the City of Detroit with a HOME cash flow loan in the amount 
of $4,795,000 for 40 years and with a 10% Payment In Lieu Of Taxes (PILOT) estimated at 
$4,900,000. 

 
D. The extent of reuse of vacant buildings, reuse of historical buildings, and redevelopment of 

blighted property: 

The Strathmore is a contributing building in a locally designated historic district. The building 
has been vacant for many years, has been vandalized and used as a graffiti canvas multiple times 
over. The current owner has had to have multiple trees removed from the interior of the building 
in order to keep it insured while structuring the development. 
 
 
 
 

 



 

E. Creation of jobs: 

The project is expected to result in the creation of three full-time jobs and one part-time job. The 
average hourly wage is estimated to be $20 for the full-time jobs and $12 for the part-time job. 
 

F. The level of private sector and other contributions, including, but not limited to, federal 
funds and federal tax credits: 

The project is being supported by the City of Detroit with a HOME cash flow loan in the amount 
of $4,795,000 for 40 years and with a 10% Payment In Lieu Of Taxes (PILOT) estimated at 
$4,900,000.  Midtown Detroit Inc. is contributing $2,539,000 in local foundation support from 
the Hudson-Webber Foundation and Invest Detroit, Core Strategic Fund.  The affordable housing 
portion of this project (40% of the residential units) has been awarded a Low Income Housing 
Tax Credit in the amount of $859,774.  The project will also obtain Federal Historic Tax Credits 
in the amount of $4,793,000. 

 
G. Whether the project increases the density of the area: 

Redevelopment of the Strathmore will increase the density of the area by adding 129 residential 
units to the neighborhood. 
 

H. Whether the project promotes mixed-use development and walkable communities: 

This project will add much needed residential and retail space to Midtown. The neighborhood, 
and more specifically, Woodward Avenue and Alexandrine, will become more walkable as a 
result of the redevelopment of the Strathmore.  Not only will the additional 129 filled residential 
units add foot traffic to the neighborhood, but the redevelopment of the vacant building will make 
the neighborhood safer by removing a space for squatters or other criminal activity. 
 

I. Whether the project converts abandoned public buildings to private use: 

The vacant building that will be rehabilitated as a result of this project is not public. 
 

J. Whether the project promotes sustainable development: 

Restoration of a historic building is considered to be a sustainable practice. Improvements to the 
energy efficiency of the building envelope will be made and all residential units will be upgraded 
with high efficiency heating and cooling systems. 
 

K. Whether the project involves the rehabilitation of a historic resource: 

The Strathmore is a contributing building in a locally designated historic district under Public Act 
196. 
 

L. Whether the project addresses area-wide redevelopment: 

The Midtown area has been the target for local and state revitalization efforts by providing 
housing and amenities that support people moving into the area who have been drawn by anchor 
institutions including Wayne State University and Detroit Medical Center. This project fits into 
the ongoing redevelopment efforts. 
 
 

 



 

M. Whether the project addresses underserved markets of commerce: 

Rental housing is in high demand in Midtown, Detroit, but there is a low stock of quality, market 
rate housing.  This project will convert an 8-story vacant building into 129 units of residential 
space and 2,000 square feet of retail.  
 

N. The level and extent of environmental contamination: 

The project is not qualifying as a facility and environmental contamination is limited to asbestos 
and lead containing materials on the interior. Appropriate abatements will be conducted.  
 

O. If the rehabilitation of the historic resource will meet the federal Secretary of the Interior's 
standards for rehabilitation and guidelines for rehabilitating historic buildings 
(36 CFR 67): 

The building will be rehabilitated in accordance with the federal Secretary of the Interior’s 
Standards. 
 

P. Whether the project will compete with or affect existing Michigan businesses within the 
same industry: 

This project will not compete with or affect any existing Michigan businesses. 
 

Q. Any other additional criteria approved by the board that are specific to each individual 
project and are consistent with the findings and intent of this chapter: 

No additional factors need to be considered for this project. 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 



 

APPENDIX B 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 



MICHIGAN STRATEGIC FUND 
 

RESOLUTION 2014-  
 

APPROVAL OF A MICHIGAN COMMUNITY REVITALIZATION PROGRAM EQUITY 
CONTRIBUTION AWARD TO ONE OR MORE OF STRATHMORE APARTMENTS LIMITED 

DIVIDEND HOUSING ASSOCIATION, LLC AND UNIVERSITY CULTURAL CENTER 
ASSOCIATION (OR SUCH OTHER CO-APPLICANTS) 

(STRATHMORE APARTMENTS PROJECT) 
 

 
 WHEREAS, the Michigan legislature amended the Michigan Strategic Fund Act, MCL 125.2011 
et. seq.,  to add Chapter 8C (being MCL 125.2090a – MCL 125.2090d, as later amended) to enable the 
Michigan Strategic Fund (“MSF”) to create and operate the Michigan Community Revitalization Program 
(“MCRP”) to provide incentives in the form of grants, loans and other economic assistance for 
redevelopment of communities in Michigan;  
  
 WHEREAS, the Michigan Economic Development Corporation (“MEDC”) provides 
administrative services to the MSF for the MCRP; 
 
 WHEREAS, on December 21, 2011, by Resolution 2011-185, the MSF (i) created the MCRP, 
(ii) adopted the guidelines for the MCRP, as later amended (“Guidelines”), and (iii) approved the MSF 
Fund Manager to negotiate the final terms and conditions of the written agreements to be used to 
memorialize MCRP awards on the MSF’S behalf in accordance with the Guidelines (“Transaction 
Documents”); 
 
 WHEREAS, the Guidelines require that MCRP awards over $1 million must be approved by the 
MSF Board; 
 
 WHEREAS, Strathmore Apartments Limited Dividend Housing Association, LLC and 
University Cultural Center Association, or such other entities formed or to be formed in furtherance of the 
of the Strathmore Apartments project (“Co-Applicants”) have requested a performance based equity 
contribution to one or more of the Co-Applicants in furtherance of up to $3,500,000 (“Equity Award 
Request”), along with other general terms and conditions which are outlined in the term sheet attached as 
Exhibit A (“Term Sheet”); 
 
 WHEREAS, the MEDC has recommended that the MSF approve the Equity Award Request in 
accordance with the Term Sheet, subject to: (i) available funding, (ii) final due diligence performed to the 
satisfaction of the MEDC; and (iii) execution of the Transaction Documents for the Equity Award 
Request within 180 days of the date of this Resolution (“Time Period”), or this Resolution shall have no 
effect; provided however, at the sole discretion of the MSF Fund Manager, the Time Period may be 
extended for up to an additional 180 days (“MCRP Award Recommendation”); and  
 
 WHEREAS, the MSF Advisory Committee has indicated its support of the MCRP Award 
Recommendation. 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, the MSF Board approves the MCRP Award Recommendation; 
and 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, the MSF Fund Manager, in coordination with MEDC Staff, is 
authorized to negotiate the final terms and conditions of, and sign, the Transaction Documents necessary 
to effectuate the MCRP Award Recommendation. 
  
  
 
 Ayes: 

 



 
 Nays:  
 
 Recusals:  
  
Lansing, Michigan 
January 28, 2014  

 



Exhibit A 

Terms Sheet 

EQUITY PURCHASE 
Co-Applicants:  Strathmore Apartments Limited Dividend Housing Association, 

LLC, University Cultural Center Association, and a yet to be identified 
investment LLC  

MSF Investment Amount: $3,500,000 

Interest Purchased: MSF will acquire an equity interest in a newly formed LLC with UCCA, 
and that LLC will make loans to Strathmore Apartments Limited 
Dividend Housing Association, LLC. The MSF will provide no 
guarantees on debt and accept no recourse obligation. 

“Put” Right: The MSF will receive a “Put” right requiring the investment LLC and/or 
UCCA to repay in full the entire contribution provided to the partnership 
and any earned but unpaid profits available at the time of the notice to 
exercise the Put on terms and conditions acceptable to the MSF.  

Membership Change: The MSF will have certain rights to block or consent to any material 
change in the membership of the project owner entity. It is anticipated 
that the Tax Credit Investor may require some limitations on these rights 
which, so long as they do not create a violation of law or policy are 
anticipated to be acceptable. 

Sale/Liquidation: At the conclusion of the 15-year Low Income Housing Tax Credit 
Compliance Period, University Cultural Center Association will have the 
right of first refusal to purchase the property and related assets. 
Concurrently, the MSF will have the option to enter into a membership 
redemption agreement to sell its equity interest in the LLC at fair market 
value. It is also contemplated that the MSF may have the option to 
continue in the structure by making soft loans to the new property owner 
if necessary to maximize the amount of its initial equity investment that 
is repaid. 

Management: The MSF Fund Manager or his/her designee shall have the right to 
appoint at least one-third of the management team of the LLC.  

Timing of Funding: The investment is authorized to fund on or about the date of the closing 
of the other project financing which shall include at a minimum the 
funding provided by University Cultural Center Association to complete 
the capitalization of the LLC.  

 
Final Terms and Conditions: Due to the complex nature of the transaction the MSF Fund Manager is 

authorized to execute final terms and conditions so long as the following 
conditions are met: 



• The Investment Amount is not exceeded 
• The “Put” right is substantially preserved  
• The final terms comply with the CRP Guidelines and MSF Act 

 



 
MEMORANDUM  

Date:   January 28, 2014 

To:  Michigan Strategic Fund  

From:  Joseph Martin, Manager, Community Revitalization and Brownfield Programs 
 Shane Schamper, Specialist, Community Development Incentives 
 Stacy Esbrook, Specialist, Community Assistance Team  

Subject:   Ashley Owner, LLC 
  Request for Approval of an Act 381 Work Plan and a $1,000,000 Michigan 

Community Revitalization Program Performance-Based Grant 
  

Request 
The project requests to use both the Brownfield Act 381 Program and the Michigan Community 
Revitalization Program (MCRP) for the project located at 1526 Centre Street, Detroit.  The City of Detroit 
Brownfield Redevelopment Authority has submitted an Act 381 Work Plan (Work Plan) request for the 
approval of state school tax capture for eligible activities in the amount of $482,075.  Ashley Owner, LLC 
(Applicant) is requesting approval of an MCRP Performance-based Grant in the amount of $1,000,000.  
The applicant anticipates that the project could result in eligible investment of $6,048,710 and total 
capital investment in the amount of $8,248,415 in the City of Detroit and the creation of 10 full-time and 
30 part-time jobs. 
 
Background  
Ashley Owner, LLC is owned by ASH ASAP B-1, LLC, which is jointly owned by Princeton Domino 
Investments LLC and Lamont Street Partners.  The managing member of Ashley Owner, LLC is Matthew 
Lester. 
 
Princeton has over 20 years of experience of redeveloping and repositioning undervalued real estate. 
Princeton owns and operates over 80 properties and controls more than 16,000 apartment units across 
eight states. Of the 16,000 units, 11,000 are located in the state of Michigan. Over the past 18 months, 
Princeton has acquired two additional properties in Detroit, including the Claridge House Apartments and 
Grand Park Centre. 
 
The Applicant has not received any incentives from the MSF previously.  
 
The MCRP Applicant plans to renovate the nearly vacant historic Milner Hotel into 61 market-rate one 
and two-bedroom apartments on floors three through nine; 5,200 square feet of commercial office space 
on the second floor; and the first floor/garden level will host two retails units for a combined 2,300 square 
feet. The property is located at 1526 Centre Street in the City of Detroit on approximately 0.14 acres, and 
is currently owned by Ashley Owner, LLC.  
 
The project is located within the boundaries of the City of Detroit which is a Qualified Local 
Governmental Unit, and the property has been determined to be a contributing building in a locally 
designated historic district under Public Act 196.  The property is the subject of a Brownfield Plan, duly 
approved by the City of Detroit on October 17, 2013. 
 
The project’s statutory requirements are addressed in Appendix A and a project map is provided in 
Appendix B.   

 



 

Recommendation 
The MEDC staff recommends approval of an MCRP performance-based grant in the amount of 
$1,000,000 and approval of state school tax capture for the Act 381 eligible activities totaling $482,075 
described above.  The commitment will remain valid until July 27, 2014 (120 days after approval) with 
approval for MSF Fund Manager to extend the commitment an additional 120 days. 
  

 



 

APPENDIX A 
 

MCRP PROGRAM AND ITS GUIDELINES 
On December 21, 2011, the MSF Board approved the Michigan Community Revitalization Program 
(MCRP) and its guidelines. The primary intended objective of the MCRP is to provide incentives to 
persons that make eligible investments on eligible property in Michigan. 
 
SOURCE OF INFORMATION 
It is the role of the Project Management staff (MEDC Staff) to review for eligibility, completeness, and 
adherence to MCRP guidelines, the information provided by the applicant and to manage the MSF’s 
investment. Explanatory and background information is supplied in summary form to provide context for 
the request and is drawn exclusively from materials submitted by the applicant, and, as applicable, from 
other relevant third party sources utilized by staff. 
 
As required under the program, the following statutory criteria shall be considered by the MSF, as MEDC 
Staff believes each is reasonably applicable to proposed project:  
 

A. The importance of the project to the community in which it is located: 

Redevelopment of the Milner Hotel is important to the revitalization of downtown Detroit.  The 
hotel is located in a section of the city that has seen a vast amount of investment in the past 
decade.  The project is walkable to Comerica Park, Ford Field, Greektown district, and Harmonie 
Park (a/k/a Paradise Valley).  Upon completion, the Ashley will add much needed market-rate 
residential units to the entertainment district and will increase the walkability of the neighborhood 
by adding foot traffic and retail amenities. 
 

B. If the project will act as a catalyst for additional revitalization of the community in which it 
is located: 

The public will benefit from the project by increasing the aesthetic and economic viability of a 
historic district within the city. It is anticipated that the completion of this project will draw 
attention from new developers and the availability of conventional financing back to Detroit. 
 

C. The amount of local community and financial support for the project: 

The City of Detroit has approved an Obsolete Property Rehabilitation Act abatement, valued at 
approximately $2,005,660 in tax savings over 12 years. Invest Detroit has approved a 
subordinated loan in the amount of $1,000,000. 
 

D. The applicant's financial need for a community revitalization incentive: 

The project’s development team is contributing equity to the project in an amount equal to 
approximately 11% of the total development cost.  Additionally, they have been able to secure 
conventional senior financing for the project in a depressed market. Despite their efforts, the 
project has a financing gap that MEDC staff is proposing to fill with a MCRP performance based 
grant.  Additionally, the MCRP grant will allow the project to have projected stabilized debt 
service coverage of over 1.31 to 1. 
 

E. The extent of reuse of vacant buildings, reuse of historical buildings, and redevelopment of 
blighted property: 

The Milner Hotel is a contributing building in the locally designated historic district of Madison-
Harmonie.  

 



 

F. Creation of jobs and areas of high unemployment: 

This project is expected to create approximately 10 new, full-time jobs and approximately 30 
part-time jobs. The average hourly wage is estimated to be $20 for the full-time jobs and $15 for 
the part-time jobs.  The City of Detroit unadjusted unemployment rate was 16.2% in October, 
2013.  This compares to the statewide unadjusted average of 8.3% in October, 2013. 

 
G. The level of private sector and other contributions, including, but not limited to, federal 

funds and federal tax credits: 

The City of Detroit has approved an Obsolete Property Rehabilitation Act abatement, valued at 
approximately $2,005,660 in tax savings over 12 years.  The project will utilize Federal Historic 
Tax Credits that are valued at $1,300,000. Invest Detroit has approved a subordinated loan in the 
amount of $1,000,000. 
 

H. Whether the project is financially and economically sound: 

The project is financially sound based on current market projections and has satisfactory cash 
flow to pay off the permanent debt, plus provide a reasonable return to the developer.  According 
to market information compiled in 2013 by Integra Realty Services, Inc., demand for rental 
housing in both Midtown and Downtown Detroit is high and continues to increase.  The demand 
has been driven by an economic recovery and more businesses locating to these two particular 
areas within the City.  The overall vacancy rate for Downtown Detroit has been steadily 
decreasing since 2009 and was around 8.0% for all rental housing and 3.0% for “Class A” rental 
properties in 2013.  Additionally, a number of developments have reported 100% occupancy with 
waiting-lists.  The study took into account the potential redevelopments of Griswold Apartments, 
Capitol Park, David Whitney Building, and the Milner Hotel, determining there was sufficient 
demand to meet the supply. 
 

I. Whether the project increases the density of the area: 

The project will increase the density of the area by activating the space that is currently neglected 
within the building.  The project will maximize the full space in the building by converting the 
hotel rooms into market-rate apartments, and by activating the first floor/garden level space for 
retail use. 
 

J. Whether the project promotes mixed-use development and walkable communities: 

The project will convert a single-use building that is currently substandard and underutilized, into 
a mixed-use building featuring residential, commercial office and retail space.  The project will 
add to the walkability of the neighborhood by adding more residents and foot traffic for the 
surrounding businesses. 
 

K. Whether the project converts abandoned public buildings to private use: 

The building that will be rehabilitated as a result of this project is not public. 
 

L. Whether the project promotes sustainable development: 

Restoration of a historic building is considered to be a sustainable practice. Improvements to the 
energy efficiency of the building envelope will be made and all residential units will be upgraded 
with high efficiency heating and cooling systems. 
 

 



 

M. Whether the project involves the rehabilitation of a historic resource: 

“The Milner Hotel” is a contributing building in the locally designated historic district of 
Madison-Harmonie under Public Act 196. 
 

N. Whether the project addresses area-wide redevelopment: 

The project is located in Detroit’s entertainment district and is walkable to Comerica Park, Ford 
Field, Harmonie Park and Greektown.  This area of Detroit’s downtown has seen massive 
investment and redevelopment over the past decade and this project will add to the existing 
efforts. 
 

O. Whether the project addresses underserved markets of commerce: 

Rental housing is in high demand in downtown Detroit, but there is a low stock of quality, market 
rate housing.  This project will convert low quality hotel units into 61 market-rate rental units that 
will fit with the market demand in terms of size and function.  The project will also add two 
commercial units to the neighborhood, which will be quickly filled with micro-amenities that will 
support the neighborhood residents.  
 

P. The level and extent of environmental contamination: 

The project is not qualifying as a facility and environmental contamination is limited to asbestos 
and lead containing materials on the interior. Appropriate abatements will be conducted.  

Q. If the rehabilitation of the historic resource will meet the federal Secretary of the Interior's 
standards for rehabilitation and guidelines for rehabilitating historic buildings 
(36 CFR 67): 

The building will be rehabilitated in accordance with the federal Secretary of the Interior’s 
Standards. 

R. Whether the project will compete with or affect existing Michigan businesses within the 
same industry: 

This project will not compete with or affect any existing Michigan businesses. 

S. Any other additional criteria approved by the board that are specific to each individual 
project and are consistent with the findings and intent of this chapter: 

No additional factors need to be considered for this project. 

ADDITIONAL STATUTORY CRITERIA UNDER ACT 381: 
a) Reuse of functionally obsolete buildings and/or redevelopment of blighted property: 

 
Even though this project is not qualifying as functionally obsolete or blighted, it has been a drain 
on the downtown Detroit entertainment district with its substandard hotel space and the clientele 
such space attracts.   

b) Cost gap that exists between the property and a similar greenfield property: 
 

The Brownfield Tax Increment Financing is needed to offset the costs of demolition and asbestos 
abatement associated with the project; these costs would not be associated with a similar 
greenfield development.   

  

 



 

c) Whether project will create a new brownfield property in the State: 
 
No new Brownfields will be created by this project. 
 

d) Other Factors Considered 
 
No additional factors need to be considered for this project. 
 

 
Act 381 TIF:  There are 23.8308 non-homestead mills available for capture, with state school millage 
equaling 23.8308 mills (100%) and local millage is unavailable due to application of an Obsolete 
Properties Rehabilitation Act exemption on the property that will be in effect throughout the Brownfield 
TIF capture period. The value of the OPRA is estimated to exceed $2 million and is considered to be an 
adequate local contribution to the project for a local match to school tax capture. The requested tax 
capture for eligible activities breaks down as follows: 
 
 School tax capture (100%)  $ 482,075 
 Local tax capture (0%)  $ 0 
 TOTAL  $ 482,075 
 
COST OF ELIGIBLE ACTIVITIES 
 
 Demolition  $ 200,000 
 Asbestos Abatement   210,500 

 Sub-Total  $ 410,500 
Contingency (15%)  + 61,575 
 Sub-Total  $ 472,075 
Brownfield/Work Plan Preparation  + 10,000 

 TOTAL  $ 482,075 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 

  

 



 

APPENDIX B 
 

 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 



 

APPENDIX A 
 

MCRP PROGRAM AND ITS GUIDELINES 
On December 21, 2011, the MSF Board approved the Michigan Community Revitalization Program 
(MCRP) and its guidelines. The primary intended objective of the MCRP is to provide incentives to 
persons that make eligible investments on eligible property in Michigan. 
 
SOURCE OF INFORMATION 
It is the role of the Project Management staff (MEDC Staff) to review for eligibility, completeness, and 
adherence to MCRP guidelines, the information provided by the applicant and to manage the MSF’s 
investment. Explanatory and background information is supplied in summary form to provide context for 
the request and is drawn exclusively from materials submitted by the applicant, and, as applicable, from 
other relevant third party sources utilized by staff. 
 
As required under the program, the following statutory criteria shall be considered by the MSF, as MEDC 
Staff believes each is reasonably applicable to proposed project:  
 

A. The importance of the project to the community in which it is located: 

Redevelopment of the Milner Hotel is important to the revitalization of downtown Detroit.  The 
hotel is located in a section of the city that has seen a vast amount of investment in the past 
decade.  The project is walkable to Comerica Park, Ford Field, Greektown district, and Harmonie 
Park (a/k/a Paradise Valley).  Upon completion, the Ashley will add much needed market-rate 
residential units to the entertainment district and will increase the walkability of the neighborhood 
by adding foot traffic and retail amenities. 
 

B. If the project will act as a catalyst for additional revitalization of the community in which it 
is located: 

The public will benefit from the project by increasing the aesthetic and economic viability of a 
historic district within the city. It is anticipated that the completion of this project will draw 
attention from new developers and the availability of conventional financing back to Detroit. 
 

C. The amount of local community and financial support for the project: 

The City of Detroit has approved an Obsolete Property Rehabilitation Act abatement, valued at 
approximately $2,005,660 in tax savings over 12 years. Invest Detroit has approved a 
subordinated loan in the amount of $1,000,000. 
 

D. The applicant's financial need for a community revitalization incentive: 

The project’s development team is contributing equity to the project in an amount equal to 
approximately 11% of the total development cost.  Additionally, they have been able to secure 
conventional senior financing for the project in a depressed market. Despite their efforts, the 
project has a financing gap that MEDC staff is proposing to fill with a MCRP performance based 
grant.  Additionally, the MCRP grant will allow the project to have projected stabilized debt 
service coverage of over 1.31 to 1. 
 

E. The extent of reuse of vacant buildings, reuse of historical buildings, and redevelopment of 
blighted property: 

The Milner Hotel is a contributing building in the locally designated historic district of Madison-
Harmonie.  

 



 

F. Creation of jobs and areas of high unemployment: 

This project is expected to create approximately 10 new, full-time jobs and approximately 30 
part-time jobs. The average hourly wage is estimated to be $20 for the full-time jobs and $15 for 
the part-time jobs.  The City of Detroit unadjusted unemployment rate was 16.2% in October, 
2013.  This compares to the statewide unadjusted average of 8.3% in October, 2013. 

 
G. The level of private sector and other contributions, including, but not limited to, federal 

funds and federal tax credits: 

The City of Detroit has approved an Obsolete Property Rehabilitation Act abatement, valued at 
approximately $2,005,660 in tax savings over 12 years.  The project will utilize Federal Historic 
Tax Credits that are valued at $1,300,000. Invest Detroit has approved a subordinated loan in the 
amount of $1,000,000. 
 

H. Whether the project is financially and economically sound: 

The project is financially sound based on current market projections and has satisfactory cash 
flow to pay off the permanent debt, plus provide a reasonable return to the developer. 
 

I. Whether the project increases the density of the area: 

The project will increase the density of the area by activating the space that is currently neglected 
within the building.  The project will maximize the full space in the building by converting the 
hotel rooms into market-rate apartments, and by activating the first floor/garden level space for 
retail use. 
 

J. Whether the project promotes mixed-use development and walkable communities: 

The project will convert a single-use building that is currently substandard and underutilized, into 
a mixed-use building featuring residential, commercial office and retail space.  The project will 
add to the walkability of the neighborhood by adding more residents and foot traffic for the 
surrounding businesses. 
 

K. Whether the project converts abandoned public buildings to private use: 

The building that will be rehabilitated as a result of this project is not public. 
 

L. Whether the project promotes sustainable development: 

Restoration of a historic building is considered to be a sustainable practice. Improvements to the 
energy efficiency of the building envelope will be made and all residential units will be upgraded 
with high efficiency heating and cooling systems. 
 

M. Whether the project involves the rehabilitation of a historic resource: 

“The Milner Hotel” is a contributing building in the locally designated historic district of 
Madison-Harmonie under Public Act 196. 
 

N. Whether the project addresses area-wide redevelopment: 

The project is located in Detroit’s entertainment district and is walkable to Comerica Park, Ford 
Field, Harmonie Park and Greektown.  This area of Detroit’s downtown has seen massive 

 



 

investment and redevelopment over the past decade and this project will add to the existing 
efforts. 
 

O. Whether the project addresses underserved markets of commerce: 

Rental housing is in high demand in downtown Detroit, but there is a low stock of quality, market 
rate housing.  This project will convert low quality hotel units into 61 market-rate rental units that 
will fit with the market demand in terms of size and function.  The project will also add two 
commercial units to the neighborhood, which will be quickly filled with micro-amenities that will 
support the neighborhood residents.  
 

P. The level and extent of environmental contamination: 

The project is not qualifying as a facility and environmental contamination is limited to asbestos 
and lead containing materials on the interior. Appropriate abatements will be conducted.  

Q. If the rehabilitation of the historic resource will meet the federal Secretary of the Interior's 
standards for rehabilitation and guidelines for rehabilitating historic buildings 
(36 CFR 67): 

The building will be rehabilitated in accordance with the federal Secretary of the Interior’s 
Standards. 

R. Whether the project will compete with or affect existing Michigan businesses within the 
same industry: 

This project will not compete with or affect any existing Michigan businesses. 

S. Any other additional criteria approved by the board that are specific to each individual 
project and are consistent with the findings and intent of this chapter: 

No additional factors need to be considered for this project. 

ADDITIONAL STATUTORY CRITERIA UNDER ACT 381: 
a) Reuse of functionally obsolete buildings and/or redevelopment of blighted property: 

 
Even though this project is not qualifying as functionally obsolete or blighted, it has been a drain 
on the downtown Detroit entertainment district with its substandard hotel space and the clientele 
such space attracts.   

b) Cost gap that exists between the property and a similar greenfield property: 
 

The Brownfield Tax Increment Financing is needed to offset the costs of demolition and asbestos 
abatement associated with the project; these costs would not be associated with a similar 
greenfield development.   

  
c) Whether project will create a new brownfield property in the State: 

 
No new Brownfields will be created by this project. 
 

d) Other Factors Considered 
 
No additional factors need to be considered for this project. 
 

 



 

 
Act 381 TIF:  There are 23.8308 non-homestead mills available for capture, with state school millage 
equaling 23.8308 mills (100%) and local millage is unavailable due to application of an Obsolete 
Properties Rehabilitation Act exemption on the property that will be in effect throughout the Brownfield 
TIF capture period. The value of the OPRA is estimated to exceed $2 million and is considered to be an 
adequate local contribution to the project for a local match to school tax capture. The requested tax 
capture for eligible activities breaks down as follows: 
 
 School tax capture (100%)  $ 482,075 
 Local tax capture (0%)  $ 0 
 TOTAL  $ 482,075 
 
COST OF ELIGIBLE ACTIVITIES 
 
 Demolition  $ 200,000 
 Asbestos Abatement   210,500 

 Sub-Total  $ 410,500 
Contingency (15%)  + 61,575 
 Sub-Total  $ 472,075 
Brownfield/Work Plan Preparation  + 10,000 

 TOTAL  $ 482,075 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 

  

 



 

APPENDIX B 
 

 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 



MICHIGAN STRATEGIC FUND 
 

RESOLUTION 2014- 
 

APPROVAL OF A MICHIGAN COMMUNITY REVITALIZATION PROGRAM  
PERFORMANCE-BASED GRANT AWARD FOR ASHLEY OWNER LLC 

 
 WHEREAS, the Michigan legislature amended the Michigan Strategic Fund Act, MCL 125.2011 
et. seq.,  to add Chapter 8C (being MCL 125.2090a – MCL 125.2090d), as later amended, to enable the 
Michigan Strategic Fund (“MSF”) to create and operate the Michigan Community Revitalization Program 
(“MCRP”) to provide incentives in the form of grants, loans and other economic assistance for 
redevelopment of communities in Michigan;  
  
 WHEREAS, the Michigan Economic Development Corporation (“MEDC”) provides 
administrative services to the MSF for the MCRP; 
 
 WHEREAS, on December 21, 2011, by Resolution No. 2011-185, the MSF (i) created the 
MCRP, (ii) adopted the guidelines for the MCRP, as later amended (“Guidelines”), and (iii) approved the 
MSF Fund Manager to negotiate the final terms and conditions of the written agreements to be used to 
memorialize MCRP awards on the MSF’S behalf in accordance with the Guidelines (“Transaction 
Documents”); 
 
 WHEREAS, the MCRP Applicants request a performance based grant award from the MSF 
under the MCRP for the Project in an amount not to exceed up to $1,000,000 (“Award Request”), along 
with other general terms and conditions for the Award Request which are outlined in the term sheet 
attached as Exhibit A (“Term Sheet”); 

 
 WHEREAS, the MEDC recommends that the MSF approve the Award Request in accordance 
with the Term Sheet, subject to: (i) available funding, (ii) final due diligence performed to the satisfaction 
of the MEDC; and (iii) execution of the Transaction Documents within 120 days of the date of this 
Resolution (“Time Period”), or this Resolution shall have no effect; provided however, at the sole 
discretion of the MSF Fund Manager, the Time Period may be extended for up to an additional 120 days 
(“MCRP Award Recommendation”); and  
 
 WHEREAS, the MSF Advisory Committee has indicated its support of the MCRP Award 
Recommendation 

 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, the MSF Board approves the MCRP Award 

Recommendation; 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, the MSF Fund Manager, in coordination with MEDC Staff, is 

authorized to negotiate the final terms and conditions of, and sign, the Transaction Documents necessary 
to effectuate the MCRP Award Recommendation. 
 
 

Ayes:  

Nays:   

Recused:    

Lansing, Michigan 
January 28, 2014  

 



 

Exhibit A 
 

Terms Sheet 
 

1. Applicant Name: Ashley Owner LLC 

2. MCRP Incentive Type: Performance Based Grant 

3. Maximum Amount of MCRP 
Incentive: 

Lesser of 25% of the Eligible Investment, as defined below, or 
$1,000,000 (“MCRP Incentive Award”).   
 

4. Project Description (“Project”): Rehabilitation of an approximately 60,000 square foot building in 
the City of Detroit, Wayne County, Michigan.  The property will 
be converted into nine (9) floors (2nd through 10th floors) of loft-
style residential apartments consisting of 61 units.  The first floor 
will be maintained as commercial and retail rental space. 
 

5. Anticipated Minimum Eligible 
Investment:   

 
 

$4,838,968 The Eligible Investment on the Project is 
anticipated to include:  

• Demolition 
• Building 

Alteration/Rehabilitation/Improvement 
• Site Improvements 
• Addition of Machinery, Equipment or 

Fixtures to the Project 
• Professional Fees  

 
 
 

 



RESOLUTION 2014- 
MICHIGAN STRATEGIC FUND 

 
City of Detroit Brownfield Redevelopment Authority 

The Ashley Project 
City of Detroit 

 
 At the meeting of the Michigan Strategic Fund (“MSF”) held on January 28, 2014, in 
Lansing, Michigan. 
 
 WHEREAS, Michigan Economic Growth Authority (“MEGA”) has been established 
by 1995 PA 24, as amended (the “Act”); 
 
 WHEREAS, 2002 PA 727 amended 1996 PA 381, MCL 125.2651 et seq, to 
empower local brownfield redevelopment authorities to request the MEGA Board to approve 
a brownfield project work plan and, thereby, capture taxes levied for school operating 
purposes for the project; 
 
  WHEREAS,  Executive Order 2012-9 transferred all the authority, powers, duties, 
functions, responsibilities, records, personnel, property, unexpended balances of 
appropriations, allocations or other funds of the MEGA to the MSF; 
 
 WHEREAS, captured school operating tax revenues may be used under 1996 PA 
381 as amended, for infrastructure improvements that directly benefit eligible property, for 
lead or asbestos abatement, and for structure demolition and site preparation that are not 
response activities under the Natural Resources and Environmental Protection Act, 1994 PA 
451; 
 
 WHEREAS, the City of Detroit Brownfield Redevelopment Authority (the 
“Authority”) has submitted a work plan for property located at 1526 Centre Street within the 
City of Detroit, known as the Ashley Project (the “Project”); 
 

WHEREAS, the City of Detroit is a “qualified local governmental unit” and is 
eligible to provide for a) demolition; b) lead and asbestos abatement; c) public infrastructure 
improvements; d) site preparation; e) brownfield work plan preparation and review costs and 
f) interest  as provided under 2007 PA 204 and;    
 
 WHEREAS, the Authority is requesting MSF approval to capture additional taxes 
levied for school operating purposes to provide for the reimbursement of the cost of eligible 
activities on an eligible property; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Michigan Economic Development Corporation (“MEDC”) provides 
administrative services to the MSF, and has reviewed the application and recommends 
approval of the Brownfield Work Plan by the MSF Board. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the MSF Board authorizes the 
Authority to capture taxes levied for school operating purposes in substantially the same 
proportion as the 100% to 0% ratio currently existing between school and local taxes for non-
homestead properties, due to the application of an Obsolete Properties Rehabilitation Act 



exemption to the property throughout the capture period, to reimburse the cost of demolition, 
and lead and asbestos abatement as presented in the revised Work Plan dated December 20, 
2013.  Any change in millage that increases the capture percentage of school operating taxes 
by more than 5 percentage points must be approved by the MSF Board.  The authorization is 
based on the Authority capturing all available local operating mills for the term of the capture 
period.  The authorization for the capture of taxes levied for school operating purposes is 
based on a maximum of $472,075 for the principal activity costs of non-environmental 
activities and a contingency, and a maximum of $10,000 for Brownfield/Work Plan 
preparation, and with the capture of taxes levied for school operating purposes being limited 
to a maximum of $482,075.  
  

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the MSF Board authorizes the MSF Fund 
Manager, to provide written notification to the Authority, in the form of a letter which 
incorporates the terms set forth in this Resolution and consistent with the limitations of the 
Act, and that this approval is further conditioned upon the Authority, or the City of Detroit as 
appropriate, maintaining adequate records regarding: a) all taxes captured for the project; and 
b) receipts or other appropriate documentation of the cost of eligible activities.  The records 
shall be made available for review upon request by MSF or MEDC staff.  Eligible activities 
authorized by this resolution must be completed within three (3) years.  
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that no taxes levied for school operating purposes 
shall be used to reimburse interest costs related to the eligible activities for the Project. 
 
 

Ayes:    
 
 Nays:    

 
 Recused: 
 
 
January 28, 2014  
Lansing, Michigan
 
 



 
MEMORANDUM  

Date:   January 28, 2014 

To:  Michigan Strategic Fund  

From:  Joseph Martin, Manager, Community Revitalization and Brownfield Programs 
 Julius Edwards, Community Development Incentives 
 Nate Scramlin, Community Assistance Team  

Subject:   Midland DTH LLC 
Request for approvals of an Act 381 Work Plan and Michigan Community 
Revitalization Program Performance-Based Loan  

  

Request 
Midland DTH LLC is requesting to use both the Brownfield Act 381 Program and the Michigan 
Community Revitalization Program (MCRP) for the project located at 102-128 East Main Street and 108 
Ashman Street in the City of Midland. The City of Midland Brownfield Redevelopment Financing 
Authority has submitted an Act 381 Work Plan (Work Plan) request for the approval of local and school 
tax capture for eligible activities in the amount of $8,329,487. Additionally, Midland DTH LLC 
(Applicant) is requesting a Performance-Based Loan Incentive in the amount of $4,780,000.  The 
Applicant anticipates the project could result in approximately $20,372,749 in eligible investment and 
$22,966,749 in capital investment in the City of Midland. 
 
Background  
Midland DTH LLC is a single-purpose entity organized by SSP Associates, Inc. (SSP) to complete the 
Project. SSP has successfully developed numerous Brownfield projects—and is in the process of 
developing others—over the last five years including: 
 

• The Riverfront Medical Arts Development (including the Michigan Cardiovascular Institute 
Building, St. Mary’s of Michigan Riverfront Campus, Tri City Urology Group, State of 
Michigan Offices, Garber Management Group and Citizens Bank) located at 1015 Washington 
Avenue, Downtown Saginaw (180,000 square feet in three buildings). 

• Uptown at Rivers Edge (ongoing) – 43-acre development in Bay City, Michigan.  Corporate 
anchors for this development include Dow Corning Corporation, McLaren Bay Region, and 
Chemical Bank.   

• Midwestern Surgical, located at 912 South Washington Avenue, Saginaw, Michigan (20,000 
square foot building). 

• Michigan Works, located at 312 Genessee Street, Saginaw, Michigan. (17,500 square foot 
building). 

 
Several of these projects had utilized the previous brownfield tax credit program authorized by the 
Michigan Economic Growth Authority as well as the Brownfield Tax Increment Financing Program. This 
Applicant has not previously received any incentives from the MSF. 
 
The Applicant is proposing a mixed-use, five-story redevelopment in the heart of downtown Midland. 
The new building will have a 13,000 square foot footprint (65,000 square feet total) and an underground 
parking garage.  A restaurant, the Northwood Gallery, and the Midland County Visitors' Bureau are 
planned for the first floor. Condominium extended stay hotel suites operated by the adjacent H Hotel 
and/or office space are planned for the second floor.  The third through fifth floors will be occupied by 

 



 

approximately fifteen two and three-bedroom apartments.  The new development will occur on 
approximately 0.52 acres of property located at 102-128 East Main Street and 108 Ashman Street in the 
City of Midland.  The property in question is either currently owned by Midland DTH LLC or under 
executed purchase agreement. 
 
The project is located within the boundaries of the City of Midland, which is a Qualified Local 
Governmental Unit, and has been deemed a facility as verified by the Michigan Department of 
Environmental Quality (MDEQ). The property is the subject of a Brownfield Plan, duly approved by the 
City of Midland Brownfield Redevelopment Financing Authority on November 18, 2013 and concurred 
with by the City of Midland on December 16, 2013. 
 
The project’s statutory requirements are addressed in Appendix A and a project map is provided in 
Appendix B. 
 
Deal Structure 
Midland DTH, LLC will be developing the approximately 65,000 square foot condominium project. It is 
anticipated the financing sources for the project will consist of a Senior Debt Facility from a bank, Owner 
Equity Contribution equal to an amount of not less 7% of the total development cost, and a MCRP Loan 
from the MSF of up $4,780,000.  The MCRP Loan and the sale of the condominium spaces will be used 
exclusively to pay down a majority of the Senior Lending Facility with remaining portion (anticipated to 
be under $2,000,000) to be paid down through 50% of the anticipated TIF Reimbursement Income Stream 
until complete repayment.  Following repayment of the Senior Facility 50% of the TIF Reimbursements 
will go to the developer. During the duration of the MSF Loan Incentive 50% of the TIF Reimbursement 
will be used to repay the MSF with a lump sum payment required at expiration.  
 
A summary of the anticipated permanent financing sources to the project can be found here: 
 
TOTAL DEVELOPMENT SOURCES 
 
Senior Debt Facility $16,579,077 
Owner Equity Contribution $  1,607,672 
MCRP Loan $  4,780,000    
  Total Development Sources $22,966,749 
 
MSF LOAN FACILITY 
 
 
Applicant/Borrower: Midland DTH, LLC 

MCRP Incentive Type: Performance Based Loan 

Interest Rate: 0% 

MCRP Loan Amount Not to exceed the lesser of $4,780,000 or 25% or eligible 
investment 

Fees: One-Time Fee of equal to 1% of the Commitment Amount and 
an Annual Fee equal to $37,800. 
 

 



 

Term of Incentive: Note to exceed 15 years following disbursement. 

Repayment: Up to $1,000,000 to be forgiven at construction completion.  
Semi-annual payments equal to 50% of applicable TIF 
Reimbursement Revenue Stream.  Remaining balance due at 
expiration of the loan. 
 

Collateral: The loan will be secured by an assignment of the future TIF 
Reimbursement Revenue Stream. 
Subordination: MSF assignment will only be subordinated to 
the approximately $1,533,562 Loan from Chemical Bank to the 
Borrower. The amount may fluctuate based on the final selling 
price of the condominiums.  In no instance will the assignment 
of TIF be subordinated greater than $2,000,000. 
 

Guarantee(s): Unlimited corporate guarantee of SSP Associates, Inc. and 
personal guarantees of Dr. Samuel Shaheen, Peter Shaheen and 
Sabrina Shaheen-Cronin and any 100% controlled Living 
Trusts. 
 

 
The Applicant's financial need for a community revitalization incentive: 
The applicant has secured permanent senior financing in the amount of $21,900,000 (prior to MCRP 
investment) or approximately 95% of the total project cost.  Additionally, the owners are expected to 
contribute a minimum approximately $1,607,672 in equity to the project.  MEDC staff is recommending a 
$4,780,000 “Performance Based” loan which will be used to pay down a portion of the Senior debt 
financing and allow the project to provide the owner with a minimal rate of return.   
 
Whether the project is financially and economically sound: 
The project is a high-risk proposition for the applicant that is anticipated to generate a minimal return on 
investment.  The risk profile is created by the large portion of the project that is dedicated to speculative 
premium priced residential condominiums.  The MEDC looked to mitigate its risk in the project by taking 
an assignment of the future TIF Reimbursement Income Stream and requiring guarantees from financially 
able personal and corporate guarantors. 
 
Recommendation 
The MEDC staff recommends approval of an MCRP performance-based loan in the amount of 
$4,780,000 for Midland DTH LLC. The commitment will remain valid until July 27, 2014 (180 days after 
approval) with approval for the MSF Fund Manager to extend the commitment an additional 180 days. 
Staff also recommends approval of school tax capture for the Act 381 eligible activities totaling 
$8,329,487 described above.   
 

 



 

APPENDIX A 
 

MCRP PROGRAM AND ITS GUIDELINES 
On December 21, 2011, the MSF Board approved the Michigan Community Revitalization Program 
(MCRP) and its guidelines. The primary intended objective of the MCRP is to provide incentives to 
persons that make eligible investments on eligible property in Michigan. 
 
SOURCE OF INFORMATION 
It is the role of the Project Management staff (MEDC Staff) to review for eligibility, completeness, and 
adherence to MCRP guidelines, the information provided by the applicant and to manage the MSF’s 
investment. Explanatory and background information is supplied in summary form to provide context for 
the request and is drawn exclusively from materials submitted by the applicant, and, as applicable, from 
other relevant third party sources utilized by staff. 
 
As required under the program, the following statutory criteria shall be considered by the MSF, as MEDC 
Staff believes each is reasonably applicable to proposed project:  
 

A. The importance of the project to the community in which it is located: 

The creation of increased residential living options and the reactivation of commercial spaces in 
downtown Midland are helping to fuel new business growth in the downtown and offering new 
housing choices for a mix of incomes and ages.  This dynamic is helping to fuel the renaissance 
of the downtown area. 
 

B. If the project will act as a catalyst for additional revitalization of the community in which it 
is located: 

The construction of this development in downtown Midland will help create a demand for 
additional downtown businesses and services by promoting downtown living and walkability. 
 

C. The amount of local community and financial support for the project: 

The City of Midland has offered financial support in the form of an approved Brownfield Plan 
estimated at $4,651,186 in eligible activities to be reimbursed by local tax capture. 

 
D. The extent of reuse of vacant buildings, reuse of historical buildings, and redevelopment of 

blighted property: 

All of the existing buildings on the eligible property will be demolished, and none are designated 
as historic.  
 

E. Creation of jobs and areas of high unemployment: 

This project is expected to create approximately 46 new, full-time jobs in the City of Midland, 
with average hourly wage being estimated at $17.50. The City of Midland’s unadjusted 
unemployment rate was 5.5% in August 2013. 
 

F. The level of private sector and other contributions, including, but not limited to, federal 
funds and federal tax credits: 

A minimum equity contribution in the amount $1,607,672 and a bank loan in the amount of 
$17,134,562 (following MCRP investment take-out) is anticipated to be contributed to the 
project. 

 

 



 

G. Whether the project increases the density of the area: 

This project will increase the density of the area by creating new residential living options in 
downtown Midland while adding increased commercial spaces as well. 
 

H. Whether the project promotes mixed-use development and walkable communities: 

This project promotes mixed-use development by providing residential units and reactivating the 
commercial/retail components on the first floor.  The project is located in downtown Midland and 
promotes walkability by offering residents’ service, retail, and entertainment options within a five 
minute walk of their doorstep. 
 

I. Whether the project converts abandoned public buildings to private use: 

This project does not involve any abandoned public buildings. 
 

J. Whether the project promotes sustainable development: 

This project promotes sustainable development by utilizing a Brownfield site in downtown 
Midland. The reuse of Brownfield sites generally utilizes already existing public infrastructure, 
decreasing the need for the development of new infrastructure often at the cost of public entities. 
 

K. Whether the project involves the rehabilitation of a historic resource: 

This project does not involve the rehabilitation of a historic resource. 
 

L. Whether the project addresses area-wide redevelopment: 

The creation of market-rate residential space and increased commercial spaces in downtown 
Midland will act as a catalyst for other projects in the area by increasing the density of people 
living in and visiting downtown. 
 

M. Whether the project addresses underserved markets of commerce: 

This project does not address underserved markets of commerce. 
 

N. The level and extent of environmental contamination: 

Contamination is evident on the subject properties as they are classified as a facility by the 
MDEQ.  The Property will be prepared to make it suitable for development, and appropriate due 
care and additional response activities will be performed to prevent exposure to materials 
hazardous to human health, safety, and the environment. 
 

O. If the rehabilitation of the historic resource will meet the federal Secretary of the Interior's 
standards for rehabilitation and guidelines for rehabilitating historic buildings 
(36 CFR 67): 

This project does not involve the rehabilitation of a historic resource. 
 

P. Whether the project will compete with or affect existing Michigan businesses within the 
same industry: 

This project is not expected to negatively affect any existing businesses within the industry. 
 

 



 

Q. Any other additional criteria approved by the board that are specific to each individual 
project and are consistent with the findings and intent of this chapter: 

There are no additional criteria approved by the board specific to this project. 
 
ADDITIONAL STATUTORY CRITERIA UNDER ACT 381: 

a) Reuse of functionally obsolete buildings and/or redevelopment of blighted property: 
 
This Project consists of redevelopment of economically obsolete property. The buildings on the 
Property underperform economically due to age, structural condition, and the inability to upgrade 
and modify the structures to serve the commercial markets at generally accepted market rates. 
Therefore, the existing buildings will be demolished. 

 
b) Cost gap that exists between the property and a similar greenfield property: 
 

The Brownfield tax increment financing is needed to alleviate Brownfield conditions to make the 
property suitable for redevelopment.  The utilization of the Act 381 program will assist in 
activities such as BEA Activities (Phase I ESA, Phase II ESAs, and BEA), due care activities, 
additional response activities, preparation of Brownfield and Act 381 work plans, lead and 
asbestos survey and abatement, building demolition, site preparation, and infrastructure 
improvements.  No alternative Greenfield site was considered for the project. 

  
c) Whether project will create a new brownfield property in the State: 

 
No new Brownfields will be created by this project. 
 

d) Other Factors Considered 
 
No additional factors need to be considered for this project. 

 
INCENTIVE OPPORTUNITY 
Act 381 TIF:  There are 54.3524 non-homestead mills available for capture, with school millage equaling 
24 mills (44.16%) and local millage equaling 30.3524 mills (55.84%).  The requested tax capture for 
eligible activities breaks down as follows:  
 School tax capture (44.16%)  $ 3,678,301 
 Local tax capture (55.84%)  $ 4,651,186 
 TOTAL  $ 8,329,487 
 
COST OF ELIGIBLE ACTIVITIES 
 Demolition  $ 350,000 
 Lead or Asbestos Abatement   100,000 
 Infrastructure Improvements   1,420,000 
 Site Preparation  + 3,137,500 

 Sub-Total  $ 5,007,500 
Contingency (15%)  + 751,125 
 Sub-Total  $ 5,758,625 
Interest (5%)    + 2,563,362 
 Sub-Total  $ 8,321,987 
Brownfield/Work Plan Preparation   +      7,500 

 TOTAL  $ 8,329,487 
 
 

 



 

 
APPENDIX B 

 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 



 

APPENDIX A 
 

MCRP PROGRAM AND ITS GUIDELINES 
On December 21, 2011, the MSF Board approved the Michigan Community Revitalization Program 
(MCRP) and its guidelines. The primary intended objective of the MCRP is to provide incentives to 
persons that make eligible investments on eligible property in Michigan. 
 
SOURCE OF INFORMATION 
It is the role of the Project Management staff (MEDC Staff) to review for eligibility, completeness, and 
adherence to MCRP guidelines, the information provided by the applicant and to manage the MSF’s 
investment. Explanatory and background information is supplied in summary form to provide context for 
the request and is drawn exclusively from materials submitted by the applicant, and, as applicable, from 
other relevant third party sources utilized by staff. 
 
As required under the program, the following statutory criteria shall be considered by the MSF, as MEDC 
Staff believes each is reasonably applicable to proposed project:  
 

A. The importance of the project to the community in which it is located: 

The creation of increased residential living options and the reactivation of commercial spaces in 
downtown Midland are helping to fuel new business growth in the downtown and offering new 
housing choices for a mix of incomes and ages.  This dynamic is helping to fuel the renaissance 
of the downtown area. 
 

B. If the project will act as a catalyst for additional revitalization of the community in which it 
is located: 

The construction of this development in downtown Midland will help create a demand for 
additional downtown businesses and services by promoting downtown living and walkability. 
 

C. The amount of local community and financial support for the project: 

The City of Midland has offered financial support in the form of an approved Brownfield Plan 
estimated at $4,651,186 in eligible activities to be reimbursed by local tax capture. 

 
D. The extent of reuse of vacant buildings, reuse of historical buildings, and redevelopment of 

blighted property: 

All of the existing buildings on the eligible property will be demolished, and none are designated 
as historic.  
 

E. Creation of jobs and areas of high unemployment: 

This project is expected to create approximately 46 new, full-time jobs in the City of Midland, 
with average hourly wage being estimated at $17.50. The City of Midland’s unadjusted 
unemployment rate was 5.5% in August 2013. 
 

F. The level of private sector and other contributions, including, but not limited to, federal 
funds and federal tax credits: 

A minimum equity contribution in the amount $1,607,672 and a bank loan in the amount of 
$17,134,562 (following MCRP investment take-out) is anticipated to be contributed to the 
project. 

 

 



 

G. Whether the project increases the density of the area: 

This project will increase the density of the area by creating new residential living options in 
downtown Midland while adding increased commercial spaces as well. 
 

H. Whether the project promotes mixed-use development and walkable communities: 

This project promotes mixed-use development by providing residential units and reactivating the 
commercial/retail components on the first floor.  The project is located in downtown Midland and 
promotes walkability by offering residents’ service, retail, and entertainment options within a five 
minute walk of their doorstep. 
 

I. Whether the project converts abandoned public buildings to private use: 

This project does not involve any abandoned public buildings. 
 

J. Whether the project promotes sustainable development: 

This project promotes sustainable development by utilizing a Brownfield site in downtown 
Midland. The reuse of Brownfield sites generally utilizes already existing public infrastructure, 
decreasing the need for the development of new infrastructure often at the cost of public entities. 
 

K. Whether the project involves the rehabilitation of a historic resource: 

This project does not involve the rehabilitation of a historic resource. 
 

L. Whether the project addresses area-wide redevelopment: 

The creation of market-rate residential space and increased commercial spaces in downtown 
Midland will act as a catalyst for other projects in the area by increasing the density of people 
living in and visiting downtown. 
 

M. Whether the project addresses underserved markets of commerce: 

This project does not address underserved markets of commerce. 
 

N. The level and extent of environmental contamination: 

Contamination is evident on the subject properties as they are classified as a facility by the 
MDEQ.  The Property will be prepared to make it suitable for development, and appropriate due 
care and additional response activities will be performed to prevent exposure to materials 
hazardous to human health, safety, and the environment. 
 

O. If the rehabilitation of the historic resource will meet the federal Secretary of the Interior's 
standards for rehabilitation and guidelines for rehabilitating historic buildings 
(36 CFR 67): 

This project does not involve the rehabilitation of a historic resource. 
 

P. Whether the project will compete with or affect existing Michigan businesses within the 
same industry: 

This project is not expected to negatively affect any existing businesses within the industry. 
 

 



 

Q. Any other additional criteria approved by the board that are specific to each individual 
project and are consistent with the findings and intent of this chapter: 

There are no additional criteria approved by the board specific to this project. 
 
ADDITIONAL STATUTORY CRITERIA UNDER ACT 381: 

a) Reuse of functionally obsolete buildings and/or redevelopment of blighted property: 
 
This Project consists of redevelopment of economically obsolete property. The buildings on the 
Property underperform economically due to age, structural condition, and the inability to upgrade 
and modify the structures to serve the commercial markets at generally accepted market rates. 
Therefore, the existing buildings will be demolished. 

 
b) Cost gap that exists between the property and a similar greenfield property: 
 

The Brownfield tax increment financing is needed to alleviate Brownfield conditions to make the 
property suitable for redevelopment.  The utilization of the Act 381 program will assist in 
activities such as BEA Activities (Phase I ESA, Phase II ESAs, and BEA), due care activities, 
additional response activities, preparation of Brownfield and Act 381 work plans, lead and 
asbestos survey and abatement, building demolition, site preparation, and infrastructure 
improvements.  No alternative Greenfield site was considered for the project. 

  
c) Whether project will create a new brownfield property in the State: 

 
No new Brownfields will be created by this project. 
 

d) Other Factors Considered 
 
No additional factors need to be considered for this project. 

 
INCENTIVE OPPORTUNITY 
Act 381 TIF:  There are 54.3524 non-homestead mills available for capture, with school millage equaling 
24 mills (44.16%) and local millage equaling 30.3524 mills (55.84%).  The requested tax capture for 
eligible activities breaks down as follows:  
 School tax capture (44.16%)  $ 3,678,301 
 Local tax capture (55.84%)  $ 4,651,186 
 TOTAL  $ 8,329,487 
 
COST OF ELIGIBLE ACTIVITIES 
 Demolition  $ 350,000 
 Lead or Asbestos Abatement   100,000 
 Infrastructure Improvements   1,420,000 
 Site Preparation  + 3,137,500 

 Sub-Total  $ 5,007,500 
Contingency (15%)  + 751,125 
 Sub-Total  $ 5,758,625 
Interest (5%)    + 2,563,362 
 Sub-Total  $ 8,321,987 
Brownfield/Work Plan Preparation   +      7,500 

 TOTAL  $ 8,329,487 
 
 

 



 

 
APPENDIX B 

 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 



MICHIGAN STRATEGIC FUND 
RESOLUTION 2014-  

 
APPROVAL OF A MICHIGAN COMMUNITY REVITALIZATION PROGRAM LOAN 

AWARD TO MIDLAND DTH LLC 
 

 
 WHEREAS, the Michigan legislature amended the Michigan Strategic Fund Act, MCL 125.2011 
et. seq.,  to add Chapter 8C (being MCL 125.2090a – MCL 125.2090d, as later amended) to enable the 
Michigan Strategic Fund (“MSF”) to create and operate the Michigan Community Revitalization Program 
(“MCRP”) to provide incentives in the form of grants, loans and other economic assistance for 
redevelopment of communities in Michigan;  
  
 WHEREAS, the Michigan Economic Development Corporation (“MEDC”) provides 
administrative services to the MSF for the MCRP; 
 
 WHEREAS, on December 21, 2011, by Resolution 2011-185, the MSF (i) created the MCRP, 
(ii) adopted the guidelines for the MCRP, as later amended (“Guidelines”), and (iii) approved the MSF 
Fund Manager to negotiate the final terms and conditions of the written agreements to be used to 
memorialize MCRP awards on the MSF’S behalf in accordance with the Guidelines (“Transaction 
Documents”); 
 
 WHEREAS, the Guidelines require that MCRP awards over $1 million must be approved by the 
MSF Board; 
 
 WHEREAS, Midland DTH LLC has requested a performance based loan of up to $4,780,000 
(“Award Request”), along with other general terms and conditions which are outlined in the term sheet 
attached as Exhibit A (“Term Sheet”); 
 
 WHEREAS, the MEDC has recommended that the MSF approve the Loan Award Request in 
accordance with the Term Sheet, subject to: (i) available funding, (ii) final due diligence performed to the 
satisfaction of the MEDC; and (iii) execution of the Transaction Documents for the Loan Award Request 
within 180 days of the date of this Resolution (“Time Period”), or this Resolution shall have no effect; 
provided however, at the sole discretion of the MSF Fund Manager, the Time Period may be extended for 
up to an additional 180 days (“MCRP Award Recommendation”); and  
 
 WHEREAS, the MSF Advisory Committee has indicated its support of the MCRP Award 
Recommendation. 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, the MSF Board approves the MCRP Award Recommendation; 
and 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, the MSF Fund Manager, in coordination with MEDC Staff, is 
authorized to negotiate the final terms and conditions of, and sign, the Transaction Documents necessary 
to effectuate the MCRP Award Recommendation. 
 . 
 
 Ayes: 
 
 Nays:  
 
 Recusals:  
  
Lansing, Michigan 
January 28, 2014  

 



MICHIGAN STRATEGIC FUND 
RESOLUTION 2014-  

 
APPROVAL OF A MICHIGAN COMMUNITY REVITALIZATION PROGRAM LOAN 

AWARD TO MIDLAND DTH LLC 
 

 
 WHEREAS, the Michigan legislature amended the Michigan Strategic Fund Act, MCL 125.2011 
et. seq.,  to add Chapter 8C (being MCL 125.2090a – MCL 125.2090d, as later amended) to enable the 
Michigan Strategic Fund (“MSF”) to create and operate the Michigan Community Revitalization Program 
(“MCRP”) to provide incentives in the form of grants, loans and other economic assistance for 
redevelopment of communities in Michigan;  
  
 WHEREAS, the Michigan Economic Development Corporation (“MEDC”) provides 
administrative services to the MSF for the MCRP; 
 
 WHEREAS, on December 21, 2011, by Resolution 2011-185, the MSF (i) created the MCRP, 
(ii) adopted the guidelines for the MCRP, as later amended (“Guidelines”), and (iii) approved the MSF 
Fund Manager to negotiate the final terms and conditions of the written agreements to be used to 
memorialize MCRP awards on the MSF’S behalf in accordance with the Guidelines (“Transaction 
Documents”); 
 
 WHEREAS, the Guidelines require that MCRP awards over $1 million must be approved by the 
MSF Board; 
 
 WHEREAS, Midland DTH LLC has requested a performance based loan of up to $4,780,000 
(“Award Request”), along with other general terms and conditions which are outlined in the term sheet 
attached as Exhibit A (“Term Sheet”); 
 
 WHEREAS, the MEDC has recommended that the MSF approve the Loan Award Request in 
accordance with the Term Sheet, subject to: (i) available funding, (ii) final due diligence performed to the 
satisfaction of the MEDC; and (iii) execution of the Transaction Documents for the Loan Award Request 
within 180 days of the date of this Resolution (“Time Period”), or this Resolution shall have no effect; 
provided however, at the sole discretion of the MSF Fund Manager, the Time Period may be extended for 
up to an additional 180 days (“MCRP Award Recommendation”); and  
 
 WHEREAS, the MSF Advisory Committee has indicated its support of the MCRP Award 
Recommendation. 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, the MSF Board approves the MCRP Award Recommendation; 
and 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, the MSF Fund Manager, in coordination with MEDC Staff, is 
authorized to negotiate the final terms and conditions of, and sign, the Transaction Documents necessary 
to effectuate the MCRP Award Recommendation. 
 . 
 
 Ayes: 
 
 Nays:  
 
 Recusals:  
  
Lansing, Michigan 
January 28, 2014  

 



Exhibit A 

Terms Sheet 

 

Company Name: Midland DTH LLC 

MCRP Incentive Type: Performance Based Loan 

Interest Rate: 0% 

MCRP Loan Amount Not to exceed the lesser of $4,780,000 or 25% or eligible 
investment 

Fees: One-Time Fee of equal to 1% of the Commitment Amount and 
an Annual Fee equal to $37,800. 
 

Term of Incentive: Note to exceed 15 years following disbursement. 

Repayment: Up to $1,000,000 to be forgiven at construction completion.  
Semi-annual payments equal to 50% of applicable TIF 
Reimbursement Revenue Stream.  Remaining balance due at 
expiration of the loan. 
 

Collateral: The loan will be secured by an assignment of the future TIF 
Reimbursement Revenue Stream. 
 
Subordination: MSF assignment will only be subordinated to 
the approximately $1,533,562 Loan from Chemical Bank to the 
Borrower. In no instance shall the subordination exceed 
$3,000,000. 
 

Guarantee(s): Unlimited corporate guarantee of SSP Associates, Inc. and 
personal guarantees of Dr. Samuel Shaheen, Peter Shaheen and 
Sabrina Shaheen-Cronin and any 100% controlled Living 
Trusts. 
 

 



RESOLUTION 2014- 
MICHIGAN STRATEGIC FUND 

 
City of Midland Brownfield Redevelopment Authority 

Downtown Midland Redevelopment Project 
City of Midland 

 
 At the meeting of the Michigan Strategic Fund (“MSF”) held on January 28, 2014, in 
Lansing, Michigan. 
 
 WHEREAS, Michigan Economic Growth Authority (“MEGA”) has been established 
by 1995 PA 24, as amended (the “Act”); 
 
 WHEREAS, 2002 PA 727 amended 1996 PA 381, MCL 125.2651 et seq, to 
empower local brownfield redevelopment authorities to request the MEGA Board to approve 
a brownfield project work plan and, thereby, capture taxes levied for school operating 
purposes for the project; 
 
  WHEREAS,  Executive Order 2012-9 transferred all the authority, powers, duties, 
functions, responsibilities, records, personnel, property, unexpended balances of 
appropriations, allocations or other funds of the MEGA to the MSF; 
 
 WHEREAS, captured school operating tax revenues may be used under 1996 PA 
381 as amended, for infrastructure improvements that directly benefit eligible property, for 
lead or asbestos abatement, and for structure demolition and site preparation that are not 
response activities under the Natural Resources and Environmental Protection Act, 1994 PA 
451; 
 
 WHEREAS, the City of Midland Brownfield Redevelopment Authority (the 
“Authority”) has submitted a work plan for property located at 102, 110, 114, 124 & 128 East 
Main Street and 108 Ashman Street within the City of Midland, known as the Downtown 
Midland Redevelopment Project (the “Project”); 
 

WHEREAS, the City of Midland is a “qualified local governmental unit” and is 
eligible to provide for a) demolition; b) lead and asbestos abatement; c) public infrastructure 
improvements; d) site preparation; e) brownfield work plan preparation and review costs and 
f) interest  as provided under 2007 PA 204 and;   
 
 WHEREAS, the Authority is requesting MSF approval to capture additional taxes 
levied for school operating purposes to provide for the reimbursement of the cost of eligible 
activities on an eligible property; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Michigan Economic Development Corporation (“MEDC”) provides 
administrative services to the MSF, and has reviewed the application and recommends 
approval of the Brownfield Work Plan by the MSF Board. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the MSF Board authorizes the 
Authority to capture taxes levied for school operating purposes in substantially the same 
proportion as the 44.16% to 55.84% ratio currently existing between school and local taxes 



for non-homestead properties, to reimburse the cost of site preparation, demolition, lead and 
asbestos abatement and infrastructure improvements as presented in the revised Work Plan 
dated November 21, 2013.  Any change in millage that increases the capture percentage of 
school operating taxes by more than 5 percentage points must be approved by the MSF 
Board.  The authorization is based on the Authority capturing all available local operating 
mills for the term of the capture period.  The authorization for the capture of taxes levied for 
school operating purposes is based on a maximum of $5,758,625 for the principal activity 
costs of non-environmental activities and a contingency, a maximum of $2,563,362 in 
interest, and a maximum of $7,500 for Brownfield/Work Plan preparation, and with the 
capture of taxes levied for school operating purposes being limited to a maximum of 
$3,678,301.  
  

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the MSF Board authorizes the MSF Fund 
Manager, to provide written notification to the Authority, in the form of a letter which 
incorporates the terms set forth in this Resolution and consistent with the limitations of the 
Act, and that this approval is further conditioned upon the Authority, or the City of Midland 
as appropriate, maintaining adequate records regarding: a) all taxes captured for the project; 
and b) receipts or other appropriate documentation of the cost of eligible activities.  The 
records shall be made available for review upon request by MSF or MEDC staff.  Eligible 
activities authorized by this resolution must be completed within three (3) years.  
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the MSF Board is authorizing that capture of 
taxes levied for school operating purposes for the payment of interest, up to a maximum of 
$2,563,362 related to the eligible activities for the Project. 
 
 

Ayes:    
 
 Nays:    

 
 Recused: 
 
 
January 28, 2014 
Lansing, Michigan
 
 



MEMORANDUM  

Date:   January 28, 2013 

To:  Michigan Strategic Fund Board  

From:  Karla Campbell 
 Fund Manager 
 
Subject:   Michigan Strategic Fund 
  Consent Agenda Guidelines  
  

Request:  The Michigan Strategic Fund (MSF) and Michigan Economic Development Corporation 
(MEDC) staff requested authority to implement the use of a Consent Agenda at their November 2013 
meeting.  This request was approved by Resolution 2013-203. 
 
Background  
Attached to this memo are Guidelines outlining how the Consent Agenda will be developed each month 
as well as how the Consent Agenda is approved by the MSF, how items are removed from the Consent 
Agenda to the general agenda, and how they will be recorded for the official record. 
 
Recommendation 
Staff recommends that the Guidelines for the Consent Agenda be approved.   
 
  



 
 

Guidelines for Preparation and Approval of Consent Agendas for the MSF 
 

The Michigan Strategic Fund approved the use of a Consent Agenda on November 20, 2013 (Resolution 
2013-203).     
 
The MSF Fund Manager may place items on the Consent Agenda when that item, in the normal and usual 
course of business of the MSF Board, is routine, is not anticipated to be controversial, and is not 
anticipated to prompt deliberations or discussions by the MSF Board.  Items appropriate for placement on 
the Consent Agenda include, but are not limited to: 
   

1. Approval of meeting minutes; 
2. Amendments to projects that do not impact the scope and are otherwise permitted:  

a. Extension of a timeline or milestone,  
b. Addition of a qualified taxpayer,  
c. Location changes that do not impact a local commitment related to an approved project, 
d. Other routine adjustments. 

3. Administrative items such as: 
a. Routine requests for the continuation of funds 
b. Revocation of benefits such as tax credits. 

4. Reissuance of Memorandums of Understanding and other documents with minimal changes. 
5. Projects less than $1,000,000 in cumulative benefit from the MSF, and where cumulative 

delegation to staff has not previously been approved. 
 
Developing the Consent Agenda for Approval 

1. The MSF Fund Manager will coordinate the Consent Agenda in conjunction with MSF and 
MEDC Staff.   

2. If MEDC Staff and the MSF Fund Manager are not in agreement on whether the item will be 
placed on the consent agenda, the item will be moved to the general agenda for individual 
consideration.  Staff may also remove items based on changes to the project or the discovery of 
new information.   

 
Consideration of the Consent Agenda 

1. The Consent Agenda will have a separate tab under the general agenda.   
2. The Consent Agenda will usually be placed after the Call to Order and Public Comment, and will 

be approved pursuant to a single Consent Agenda Resolution in a form similar to the attached 
Exhibit A.  Supporting documentation for each Consent Agenda item should be included with the 
Consent Agenda Resolution.   

3. When the Consent Agenda is taken up during the meeting, the Chair (or acting Chair) should 
inquire whether any MSF member would like an item removed from the Consent Agenda and 
placed on the regular agenda.  

a. If a member makes this request, no vote is required; the item is removed from the 
Consent Agenda and placed at the appropriate place on the agenda. 

b. If no request is made, or once any items objected to are removed, the Consent Agenda 
Resolution, in its then-current form (objectionable items removed), must be approved.  

c. Items under the Consent Agenda are approved with one vote. 
d. Approval of the Consent Agenda Resolution must be unanimous, subject to any recusals.  

If there is doubt, then a roll call vote should be taken.   
e. A single no vote indicates that the Consent Agenda items are not collectively approved, 

and that all items will be placed on the general agenda individually.   
 
Documentation of Items Approved or Removed from the Consent Agenda 

1. When the Consent Agenda Resolution is approved, the official minutes will reflect all items 
included in the final Consent Agenda as approved.   



2. When items are removed from the Consent Agenda and placed on the regular agenda, this will be 
reflected in the minutes, including discussion of those items and the recording of votes, where 
applicable. 

 



MICHIGAN STRATEGIC FUND 
 

RESOLUTION 2013- 
 

APPROVAL FOR THE USE OF CONSENT AGENDAS 
FOR THE MICHIGAN STRATEGIC FUND BOARD MEETINGS 

 
 

WHEREAS, the Michigan Strategic Fund (“MSF”) and the Michigan Economic Development 
Corporation (“MEDC”) work together to provide economic opportunities for the State of Michigan; 

 
WHEREAS, the MEDC provides administrative services to the MSF; and 
 
WHEREAS, in order to support and streamline the MSF Board meetings, it is the desire of the 

MEDC and MSF staff to approve a process to use Consent Agendas for items that are routine and simple, 
as well as non-controversial in nature. 

  
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, the MSF approves the use of a Consent Agenda 

and the attached process.   
 
 Ayes: 
 
 Nays: 
 
 Recused: 
 
Lansing, Michigan 
November 20, 2013 
 



 

MEMORANDUM  

Date:   January 28, 2014 

To:  Michigan Strategic Fund  

From:  Joseph Martin, Manager, Community Revitalization and Brownfield Programs 

Subject:  Mid Towne Hospitality, LLC and Mercantile Bank of Michigan 
  Michigan Community Revitalization Program  

Request for Reauthorization of Approval of a $3,000,000 Performance-based Loan 
Participation  

 
Action 
MEDC staff is seeking reauthorization of the original approval of the Michigan Community 
Revitalization Program incentive in the amount of $3,000,000 in the form of a performance-based loan 
participation for Mid Towne Hospitality, LLC (Applicant) and Mercantile Bank of Michigan (Lender).   
 
Background 
On August 28, 2013, the Michigan Strategic Fund board approved a $3,000,000 performance-based loan 
participation for Mid Towne Hospitality, LLC under the Michigan Community Revitalization Program 
(MCRP). The project involves the demolition of a surface parking lot to make room for the construction 
of a 5 story, 148 room hotel with a two-level, 200-car parking garage under it.  The project is located at 
433 Dudley Place NE and 431 Paris Avenue NE in the City of Grand Rapids.  The total square footage of 
the hotel will be over 94,000 square feet while the parking deck will be approximately 72,200 square feet. 
Please find attached a project area map and the original MSF approval. 
 
The original approval provided a maximum of 120 days to complete all due diligence and finalize all 
MCRP transaction documents. During the allotted time period, a final agreement was not executed.  
MEDC Project Management staff has been working with the Applicant and the Lender to finalize the due 
diligence and other documentation necessary to execute an agreement. Mercantile Bank anticipates 
closing on the senior loan transaction in early February, which will permit the MSF to execute the 
participation agreement and purchase a share of the loan. 
 
Recommendation 
The MEDC staff recommends approval of the reauthorization of the MCRP commitment, as outlined 
above and in the attached briefing memo dated August 28, 2013, with the commitment to remain valid 
until April 28, 2014 (90 days after approval) with approval for the MSF Fund Manager to extend the 
commitment an additional 30 days. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 



 

PROJECT MAP 

 
  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 2 



 

 
 3 



 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 4 



 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 5 



 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 6 



 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 7 



 

 

 8 



 
MICHIGAN STRATEGIC FUND 

RESOLUTION 2014- 
 

APPROVAL OF A MICHIGAN COMMUNITY REVITALIZATION PROGRAM LOAN PARTICIPATION 
AWARD TO MID TOWNE HOSPITALITY, LLC 

 
 WHEREAS, the Michigan legislature amended the Michigan Strategic Fund Act, MCL 125.2011 et. seq.,  to add 
Chapter 8C (being MCL 125.2090a – MCL 125.2090d) to enable the Michigan Strategic Fund (“MSF”) to create and 
operate the Michigan Community Revitalization Program (“MCRP”) to provide incentives in the form of grants, loans and 
other economic assistance for redevelopment of communities in Michigan;  
  
 WHEREAS, the Michigan Economic Development Corporation (“MEDC”) provides administrative services to 
the MSF for the MCRP; 
 
 WHEREAS, on December 21, 2011, by Resolution 2011-185, the MSF (i) created the MCRP, (ii) adopted the 
guidelines for the MCRP, as later amended (“Guidelines”), and (iii) approved the MSF Fund Manager to negotiate the 
final terms and conditions of the written agreements to be used to memorialize MCRP awards on the MSF’S behalf in 
accordance with the Guidelines (“Transaction Documents”); 
 
 WHEREAS, the Guidelines require that MCRP awards over $1 million must be approved by the MSF Board; 
 
 WHEREAS, by Resolution No. 2013-134, at the request of Mid Towne Hospitality, LLC (“Company”) and 
Mercantile Bank of Michigan (“Lender”) and upon the recommendation of the MEDC, the MSF Board approved a 
performance based loan participation under the MCRP of up to $3 million (“2013 Approval”);   
 
 WHEREAS, the Company and Lender have pursued senior private lending and due to the complexities 
surrounding the closing of the senior loan, the MSF participation has not been able to close within the time frame 
authorized by the 2013 Approval;   
 
 WHEREAS, the Company has again requested a performance based loan participation under the MCRP of up to 
$3 million (“Award  Request”), along with other general terms and conditions which are outlined in the term sheet 
attached as Exhibit A (“Term Sheet”); 
 
 WHEREAS, the MEDC has recommended to the MSF Advisory Committee that the MSF approve the 
Company’s Award Request in accordance with the Term Sheet, subject to: (i) available funding, (ii) final due diligence 
performed to the satisfaction of the MEDC; and (iii) execution of the Transaction Documents within 90 days of the date of 
this Resolution (“Time Period”), or this Resolution shall have no effect; provided however, at the sole discretion of the 
MSF Fund Manager, the Time Period may be extended for up to an additional 30 days (“MCRP Award 
Recommendation”);  
 
 WHEREAS, the MSF Advisory Committee has indicated its support of the MCRP Award Recommendation. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, the MSF Board approves the MCRP Award Recommendation; and 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, the MSF Fund Manager, in coordination with MEDC Staff, is authorized to 
negotiate the final terms and conditions of, and sign, the Transaction Documents necessary to effectuate the MCRP Award 
Recommendation. 
 

ADOPTED 
 
Ayes:  
 
Nays:   
 
Recused:  
 

Lansing, Michigan 
January 28, 2014 
 



EXHIBIT A 
 
 
LOAN FACILITY  
 
MSF Facility  MCRP Loan Participation and Servicing Agreement 
   Under “other economic assistance” 

Borrower:   Mid Towne Hospitality, LLC 

Lender:  Mercantile Bank 

Loan Amount:  Currently estimated at $19,134,043 

Lender Share:  Currently estimated at $16,134,043 

MSF Share:  Up to $3,000,000 

Payment Terms            Not to exceed 84 Months  

On the Lender Share payment terms are currently projected as monthly payments 
of interest only during construction (up-to 15-months) followed by monthly 
principal and interest amortized over 19 years  

 On the MSF Share monthly payment of interest only during first three years 
followed by monthly principal and interest amortized over 19 years with a 
balloon payment of all remaining principal due no later than the 84th month 

Interest Rate: On the Lender Share the interest rate is currently anticipated at a fixed rate of 300 
bps above the cost of the Lender’s funds 

On the MSF share 1.00% per annum 

Collateral: Shall match that of the Senior Lender.  Currently, anticipated to be a mortgage 
lien on the property, the MSF Share in collateral will be subordinate to the Senior 
Lender in an event of default 

Guarantee: Shall match that of the Senior Lender.  Currently, anticipated to be the unlimited 
unsecured personal guarantees of project investors. The MSF Share guarantee 
will be subordinate to the Senior Lender 

Fee: One-time fee equal to 1.00% of the MSF’s Share of the loan 

Funding: The MSF will fund up to $3,000,000 to be disbursed following closing of the 
Loan and other  performance criteria 

 



 

MEMORANDUM 

Date:  January 28, 2014 

To:  Michigan Strategic Fund Board 

From:  Jacob Schroeder, Director, Pure Michigan Business Connect Services 

Subject:   Manufacturing Services Request for Proposals    
 
 
Action 
The MEDC requests that the MSF Board approve the Manufacturing Services Request for Proposals 
(“RFP”). 

Background 
The proposed Manufacturing Services RFP seeks a contractor to provide services to the Michigan 
manufacturing (and related) industry.   With the goal of increasing sales, profitability, the Michigan tax 
base, as well as creating and retaining jobs, these services will include: 

• Matchmaking assistance in support of Pure Michigan Business Connect (“PMBC”) initiatives. 
• Research and consultation as it relates to the MEDC’s Economic Gardening (second stage 

growth) program. 
• Consulting and training related to process improvement and efficiency. 
• Provide business outreach and services in support of the MEDC Business Development efforts. 

In order to foster the growth of Michigan’s manufacturing-related economy, funding (in the form of a 
grant) will be awarded to one or more non-profit organizations through a competitive process in which all 
submitted proposals will be reviewed by a Joint Evaluation Committee (“JEC”).  Results from the JEC 
review will be provided, in the form of numerical scores and award recommendation(s), to the MSF 
Board. 

The MEDC recommends that the MSF Board approve appointing a Joint Evaluation Committee (“JEC”) to 
review the proposals submitted and make recommendations to the MSF Board. The following individuals are 
recommended to be appointed to the JEC to review proposals: 
 

• Eric Shreffler-MEDC 
• Susan Holben-MEDC 
• Robert Luce-Detroit Regional Chamber 
• Dan Radomski-Next Energy 
• Christine Roeder-MEDC (If any of the above four are unable to participate) 

 
The MEDC also recommends that the MSF Board approve the scoring and evaluation criteria attached as 
Exhibit B to the resolution to be used by the JEC members in their review of proposals submitted in response 
to the RFP.  

Recommendation 

 



 

MEDC Staff recommends that the MSF Board approve the following actions.   

1) Allocation of $1.38 million for the program;  
2) Approval of the RFP attached as Exhibit A to the resolution; 
3) Appointment of the JEC listed above; and 
4) Approval of the scoring and evaluation criteria attached as Exhibit A to the resolution appointing the JEC 

and approving the scoring criteria. 

 
 
 

2 



 

REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS 
 

Michigan Strategic Fund 
 

2014 MANUFACTURING SUPPORT SERVICES 
RFP-CASE-____ 

i 



 
REMINDER 
 
REMINDER 
 
Please check your proposal to make sure you have included all of the specifications in the Request for 
Proposals.  In addition, please submit an electronic version of each of the following: 
 

• Technical Proposal (Section II-A); and 
 

• Conflicts of Interest Disclosure (if applicable) (Section II-G). 
 

APPLICANTS ARE RESPONSIBLE FOR ASSURING THAT THE FOLLOWING IDENTIFYING 
INFORMATION APPEARS IN THE SUBJECT LINE OF YOUR EMAIL: “RFP-CASE-____ Proposal” 
with Company Name, and “message 1 of 3” as appropriate if the submission consists of 
multiple emails. 
 
The MSF will not respond to telephone inquiries, or visitation by Applicants or their 
representatives.  Applicant’s sole point of contact concerning the RFP is below and any 
communication outside of this process may result in disqualification. 
 

Contracts and Grants 
Michigan Strategic Fund 
300 North Washington Square, 3rd Floor 
Lansing, Michigan  48913 
contractsandgrants@michigan.org 

 
IMPORTANT DUE DATES 
 

• February 10, 2014 at 3:00 p.m.:  Questions from potential Applicants are due via email to 
contractsandgrants@michigan.org.  Please note:  The Michigan Strategic Fund (“MSF”) will not 
respond to questions that are not received by the above date and time.  In addition, questions 
that are phoned, faxed or sent through regular mail will not be accepted. 

 
• February 14, 2014 by close of business:  Responses to all qualifying questions will be posted 

on the MSF’s website, http://www.michiganbusiness.org/public-notices-rfps/  
 

• February 18, 2014, at 3:00 p.m.:  Electronic versions of your Proposal due to the MSF via 
email to contractsandgrants@michigan.org.  Proposals will not be accepted via U.S. mail or 
any other delivery method. 

ii 

mailto:contracts&grants@michigan.org
http://www.michiganbusiness.org/public-notices-rfps/
mailto:contracts&grants@michigan.org


 
 

Table of Contents 
 

Section I –Work Statement.............................................................................................. 1 
A - Purpose ............................................................................................................... 1 
B - Background Statement and Objectives ................................................................ 1 
C - Qualifications ....................................................................................................... 2 
D - Deliverables ......................................................................................................... 2 

Section II – Proposal Format ........................................................................................... 3 
A - Proposal Content ................................................................................................. 3 
B - Proposal Submittal ............................................................................................... 4 

Section III – RFP Process and Terms and Conditions ..................................................... 5 
A - Pre-Bid Meeting/Questions .................................................................................. 5 
B - Proposals............................................................................................................. 5 
C - Economy of Preparation ...................................................................................... 5 
D - Selection Criteria ................................................................................................. 5 
E - Applicants Costs .................................................................................................. 6 
F - Taxes ................................................................................................................... 6 
G - Conflict of Interest ............................................................................................... 6 
H - Breach of Contract ............................................................................................... 7 
I - Disclosure of Litigation .......................................................................................... 7 
J - False Information.................................................................................................. 8 
K - Disclosure ............................................................................................................ 8 
L - Clarification/Changes in the RFP ......................................................................... 8 
M - Electronic Submission ......................................................................................... 8 
N - Reservation of MSF Discretion ............................................................................ 8 
O - Jurisdiction .......................................................................................................... 9 
P - Additional Certification ......................................................................................... 9 

Section IV – Contractual Terms and Conditions ............................................................ 10 
A - MSF Required Terms ........................................................................................ 10 
B - Contractor Responsibilities ................................................................................ 11 
C - Limitation on Fees ............................................................................................. 11 
D - Acceptance of Proposal Content ....................................................................... 12 
E - Project Control and Reports ............................................................................... 12 

 

iii 



 
 

REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL 
_______________________ 

RFP-CASE-____ 
 
 
 
This Request for Proposals (“RFP”) is issued by the Michigan Strategic Fund (the “MSF”), Contracts 
and Grants Unit (“C&G”).  The Michigan Economic Development Corporation (the “MEDC”) provides 
administrative services associated with the programs and activities of the Michigan Strategic Fund Act 
on behalf of the MSF.  C&G is the sole point of contact with regard to all bidding and contractual 
matters relating to the services described in this RFP.  C&G is the only office authorized to change, 
modify, amend, alter, clarify, etc. the specifications, terms and conditions of this RFP and any 
contract(s) awarded as a result of this RFP (the “Contract”).  Contracts and Grants will remain the 
SOLE POINT OF CONTACT throughout the bidding process.  The MSF will not respond to 
telephone inquiries, or visitation by Applicants or their representatives.  Applicant’s sole point 
of contact concerning the RFP is below and any communication outside of this process may 
result in disqualification. 
 

Contracts and Grants 
Michigan Strategic Fund 
300 North Washington Square, 3rd Floor 
Lansing, Michigan  48913 
contractsandgrants@michigan.org 

 
SECTION I 

WORK STATEMENT 
 

A) PURPOSE 
 

MSF is seeking a contractor to provide services to the Michigan manufacturing (and related) 
industry.  With the goal of increasing sales, profitability, the Michigan tax base, as well as creating 
and retaining jobs, these services will include: 
 

• Matchmaking assistance in support of Pure Michigan Business Connect (“PMBC”) 
initiatives; 

• Research and consultation as it relates to the MEDC’s Economic Gardening (second 
stage growth) program; 

• Consulting and training related to process improvement and efficiency; and 
• Provide business outreach and services in support of the MEDC Business Development 

efforts. 
  

B) BACKGROUND STATEMENT AND OBJECTIVES 
 

Under the umbrella of the 21st Century Jobs Fund, the MSF Board has been given the opportunity 
to foster the growth of Michigan’s manufacturing-related economy.  Funding (in the form of a 
grant) will be awarded to one or more non-profit organizations through a competitive process in 

1 

mailto:contracts&grants@michigan.org


 
which all submitted proposals will be reviewed by a Joint Evaluation Committee (“JEC”).  Results 
from the JEC review will be provided, in the form of numerical scores and award 
recommendation(s), to the MSF Board.  The budget for this service shall be $1.38 Million. 
 

C) QUALIFICATIONS 
Only non-profit organizations are eligible for funding under this RFP.  Additionally, 
to be eligible, the Applicant must demonstrate the ability to provide the following services: 
 

• Assist PMBC in matchmaking requests, including the broad search efforts as related to 
supplier summits; 

• Provide services to Michigan manufacturers that allow those businesses operate more 
effectively in order to create and retain jobs; 

• Support those firms (described in the above bullet) with a particular emphasize on 2nd 
stage growth companies; and 

• Have the ability to provide manufacturing specific research and search engine optimization 
(“SEO”) to support the MEDC’s Economic Gardening/Second Stage Growth Accelerator 
program. 

 
The Applicant must also have: 

• A minimum of  ten (10) years of experience providing manufacturing support services to all 
industries in the manufacturing sector (20+ years highly preferred); AND 

• Have a statewide reach and focus; AND 
• Have the administrative ability and desire to provide efficient, transparent operations and 

funding details on a systematic basis; AND 
• Have access to additional, non-MSF, funding to support operations; AND 
• Leverage federal and/or private sector funding sources to support the program/services 

  

D) DELIVERABLES 
 

Applicants must identify milestones/deliverables that the Applicant will commit to as a result of 
providing the proposed services.  If Applicant is awarded funding, progress reports are due 
quarterly every year throughout the award.  Identify how milestone completion will result in 
Economic Impact.  

  

2 



 
SECTION II 

PROPOSAL FORMAT 
 

To be considered, each Applicant must submit a COMPLETE proposal in response to this RFP 
using the format specified.  Applicant's proposal must be submitted in the format outlined below.  
There should be no attachments, enclosures, or exhibits other than those required in the RFP or 
considered by the Applicant to be essential to a complete understanding of the proposal.  Each 
section of the proposal should be clearly identified with appropriate headings: 

 
A) PROPOSAL CONTENT 
 

1. Business Organization and History – State the full name, address, and phone and facsimile 
number of your organization and, if applicable, the branch office or other subordinate element 
that will perform, or assist in performing, the work hereunder.  Indicate whether it operates as an 
individual, partnership, or corporation; if as a corporation, include the state in which it is 
incorporated.  If appropriate, the proposal must state whether the organization is licensed to 
operate in the State of Michigan. 

 
2. Statement of the Problem – State in succinct terms your understanding of the problem(s) 

presented by this RFP. 
 

3. Narrative – Include a narrative summary description of the proposed effort and of the 
services(s)/products(s) that will be delivered. 

 
4. Technical Work Plans – Provide a detailed research outline and timelines for accomplishing the 

work. 
 

5. Prior Experience – Describe the prior experience of your organization which you consider 
relevant to the successful accomplishment of the project defined in this RFP.  Include sufficient 
detail to demonstrate the relevance of such experience.  Proposals submitted should include, in 
this Section, descriptions of qualifying experience to include project descriptions, costs, and 
starting and completion dates of projects successfully completed; also include the name, 
address, and phone number of the responsible official of the client organization who may be 
contacted. 
 
The MSF may evaluate the Applicant’s prior performance with the MSF, and prior performance 
information may be a factor in the award decision. 

 
6. Project Staffing – The Applicant must be able to staff a project team which possesses talent and 

expertise in the field of the requirements of this RFP.  Identify a Project Manager and staff 
assigned by name and title.  Include biographies, experience and any other appropriate 
information regarding the work team’s qualification for this initiative.  Indicate staff turnover 
rates.  Show where the project team will be physically located during the time they are engaged 
in the work. Indicate which of these individuals you consider key to the successful completion of 
the work. Indicate the amount of dedicated management time for the Applicant’s Project 
Manager and other key individuals.  Do not include any financials for the contemplated work 
within the Technical Proposal. Resumes of qualifications should be supplied for proposed 
project personnel. 
 

Please Note:  The MSF further reserves the right to interview the key personnel assigned by the 

3 



 
Contractor to this project and to recommend reassignment of personnel deemed unsatisfactory. 

 
7. Subcontractors – List here all subcontractors that will be engaged to accomplish the project 

described in this RFP; include firm name and address, contact person and complete 
description of work to be subcontracted.  Include descriptive information concerning 
subcontractor's organization and abilities.  Also, the information provided in response to A-5, 
above, should include detailed information about each potential subcontractor. 

8. Applicant’s Authorized Expediter – Include the name and telephone number of person(s) in 
your organization authorized to expedite any proposed contract with the MSF. 

9. Additional Information and Comments – Include any other information that is believed to be 
pertinent, but not specifically asked for elsewhere. 

 
B) PROPOSAL SUBMITTAL 
 

Submit an electronic version of your Proposal to the MSF via email 
to contractsandgrants@michigan.org not later than 3:00 p.m. on February 18, 2014 The MSF has 
no obligation to consider any proposal that is not timely received.  Proposals will not be accepted 
via U.S. mail or any other delivery method. 

 
APPLICANTS ARE RESPONSIBLE FOR ASSURING THAT THE FOLLOWING IDENTIFYING 
INFORMATION APPEARS IN THE SUBJECT LINE OF YOUR EMAIL: “RFP-CASE-____ Proposal” 
with Company Name, and “message 1 of 3” as appropriate if the proposal consists of multiple 
emails. 

 
  

4 

mailto:contracts&grants@michigan.org


 
SECTION III 

RFP PROCESS AND TERMS AND CONDITIONS 
 
A) PRE-BID MEETING/QUESTIONS 
 

A pre-bid meeting will not be held.  Questions from Applicants concerning the specifications in this 
RFP must be received via e-mail no later than 3:00 pm on February 10, 2014. Questions must be 
submitted to: 

 
Contracts and Grants 
contractsandgrants@michigan.org  

 
B) PROPOSALS 
 

To be considered, Applicants must submit a complete response to this RFP, using the format 
provided in Section III of this RFP, by 3:00 p.m. on February 18, 2014.  No other distribution of 
proposals is to be made by the Applicant. 
 
The Proposal must be signed physically or electronically by an official of the Applicant 
authorized to bind the Applicant to its provisions. 
 

C) ECONOMY OF PREPARATION 
 

Each proposal should be prepared simply and economically, providing a straightforward, concise 
description of the Applicant’s ability to meet the requirements of the RFP.  Emphasis should be on 
completeness and clarity of content. 

 
D) SELECTION CRITERIA 
 

Responses to this RFP will be evaluated based upon a multi-step selection process.  The 
proposal must address the requirements described in Section II of this RFP. 

 
The first step is an evaluation of which proposals satisfactorily meet the requirements of this RFP 
as stated in Section II. 

 
1) Step I – Initial evaluation for compliance 

 
a) Proposal Content – Contracts and Grants will screen the proposals for technical 

compliance to include but not limited to: 
 

• Timely submission of the proposal. 
• Proposal clearly identified and sent in accordance with instructions provided in this RFP. 
• Proposal signed physically or electronically by an official of the Applicant authorized to 

bind the Applicant to its provisions. 
• Proposals satisfy the form and content requirements of this RFP. 

 
  

5 

mailto:contracts&grants@michigan.org


 
2) Step II – Criteria for Satisfactory Proposals 

 
a.) During the second step of the selection process, proposals will be considered by a Joint 

Evaluation Committee (“JEC”) comprised of individuals selected by the MSF.  Only those 
proposals that satisfy the requirements described in this RFP, as determined in the sole 
discretion of the JEC, will be considered for evaluation in Step II.  The JEC reserves the 
right to request additional information from any Applicant. 

 
b.) Competence, Experience and Staffing Capacity – The proposal should indicate the ability 

of the Applicant to meet the requirements of this RFP, especially the time constraints, 
quality, and recent projects similar to that described in this RFP.  The proposal should 
indicate the competence of the personnel whom the Applicant intends to assign to the 
project, including education and experience, with particular reference to experience on 
projects similar to that described in this RFP and qualifications of Applicant’s Project 
Manager and the Project Manager’s dedicated management time, as well as that of other 
key personnel working on this project. 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
c.) During the JEC’s review, Applicants may be required to make oral presentations of their 

proposals to the JEC.  These presentations provide an opportunity for the Applicants to 
clarify the proposals. The MSF will schedule these presentations, if required by the JEC. 
Only those proposals receiving a score of 70 points or more in the written review proposal 
evaluation will be invited to participate in the oral presentation, if determined necessary by 
the JEC. 

 
E) APPLICANTS COSTS 
 

The MSF is not liable for any costs incurred by any Applicant prior to signing of the Contract by all 
parties. 

 
F) TAXES 
 

The MSF may refuse to award a contract to any Applicant who has failed to pay any applicable 
taxes or if the Applicant has an outstanding debt to the State or the MSF. 

 
Expect as otherwise disclosed in an exhibit to the Proposal, Applicant certifies that all applicable 
taxes are paid as of the date the Applicant’s Proposal was submitted to the MSF and the Applicant 
owes no outstanding debt to the State or the MSF. 

 
G) CONFLICT OF INTEREST   
 

The Applicant must disclose, in an exhibit to the proposal, any possible conflicts of interest that 
may result from the award of the Contract or the services provided under the Contract. 

Weight 
1. Statement of Work  30 
2. Applicant Information  10 
3. Prior Experience  30 
4. Staffing  10 
5. Financial Stability  20 

TOTAL 100 

6 



 
 

Except as otherwise disclosed in the proposal, the Applicant affirms that to the best of its 
knowledge there exists no actual or potential conflict between the Applicant, the Applicant’s project 
manager(s) or its family’s business or financial interests (“Interests”) and the services provided 
under the Contract.  In the event of any change in either Interests or the services provided under 
the Contract, the Applicant will inform the MSF regarding possible conflicts of interest which may 
arise as a result of such change and agrees that all conflicts shall be resolved to the MSF’s 
satisfaction or the Applicant may be disqualified from consideration under this RFP.  As used in 
this Section, “conflict of interest” shall include, but not be limited to, the following: 

 
1. Giving or offering a gratuity, kickback, money, gift, or any thing of value to a MSF 

official, officer, or employee with the intent of receiving a contract from the MSF or 
favorable treatment under a contract; 

 
2. Having or acquiring at any point during the RFP process or during the term of the 

Contract, any contractual, financial, business or other interest, direct or indirect, that 
would conflict in any manner or degree with Applicant’s performance of its duties and 
responsibilities to the MSF under the Contract or otherwise create the appearance of 
impropriety with respect to the award or performance of the Contract; or 

 
3. Currently in possession of or accepting during the RFP process or the term of the 

Contract anything of value based on an understanding that the actions of the 
Applicant or its affiliates or Interests on behalf of the MSF will be influenced. 

 
H) BREACH OF CONTRACT 
 

Except as otherwise disclosed in an exhibit to Applicant’s proposal, Applicant is not in material 
default or breach of any contract or agreement that it may have with the State of Michigan or any of 
its departments, commissions, boards or agencies, or any other public body in the State of 
Michigan.  Further, Applicant represents and warrants that it has not been a party to any contract 
with the State or any public body that was terminated within the previous five (5) years because the 
Applicant failed to perform or otherwise breached an obligation of such contract. 

 
I) DISCLOSURE OF LITIGATION 
 

Except as otherwise disclosed in an exhibit to Applicant’s proposal, there is no criminal litigation, 
investigations or proceedings involving the Applicant (and each subcontractor, if subcontractors will 
be used to provide the goods/services requested under this RFP) or any of the Applicant’s officers 
or directors or any litigation or proceedings under the Sarbanes-Oxley Act.  In addition, Applicants 
must disclose in the exhibit requested under this Section of the RFP any civil litigation, arbitration or 
proceeding to which the Applicant (or, to the extent Applicant is aware, any subcontractor) is a party 
and which involves:  (1) disputes that might reasonably be expected to adversely affect the viability 
or financial stability of the Applicant (or subcontractor); or (2) a claim or written allegation of fraud or 
breach of contract against Applicant (or, to the extent Applicant is aware, subcontractor), by a 
governmental or public entity arising out of their business dealings with governmental or public 
entities.  Details of any settlements which Applicant is prevented from disclosing under the terms of 
the settlement may be annotated as such. 

 
 
 

7 



 
J) FALSE INFORMATION 
 

If the MSF determines that a Applicant purposefully or willfully submitted false information in 
response to this RFP, the Applicant will not be considered for an award and any resulting Contract 
that may have been executed may be terminated. 

 
K) DISCLOSURE 
 

All Applicants should be aware that proposals submitted to the MSF in response to this RFP may 
be subject to disclosure under the provisions of Public Act 442 of 1976, as amended, known as the 
Freedom of Information Act (“FOIA”).  Accordingly, confidential information should be excluded from 
Applicants’ proposals.  Applicants, however, are encouraged to provide sufficient information to 
enable the MSF to determine the Applicant’s qualifications and to understand or identify areas 
where confidential information exists and could be provided.  The FOIA also provides for the 
complete disclosure of the Contract and any attachments or exhibits thereto. 

 
L) CLARIFICATION/CHANGES IN THE RFP 
 

Changes made to the RFP as the result of responses made to qualifying questions or concerns will 
be posted on http://www.michiganbusiness.org/public-notices-rfps/.  Applicants are encouraged to 
regularly check this site for changes or other information related to the RFP. 

 
M) ELECTRONIC SUBMISSION  
 

ELECTRONIC VERSIONS OF YOUR PROPOSAL MUST BE RECEIVED AND TIME-STAMPED 
BY THE MSF TO contractsandgrants@michigan.org, ON OR BEFORE 3:00 p.m. on February 
18, 2014.  Applicants are responsible for timely submission of their proposal.  THE MSF HAS NO 
OBLIGATION TO CONSIDER ANY PROPOSAL THAT IS NOT RECEIVED BY THE APPOINTED 
TIME. 

N) RESERVATION OF MSF DISCRETION 
 

Notwithstanding any other statement in this RFP, the MSF reserves the right to: 
 

1) reject any and all proposals; 

2) waive any errors or irregularities in the application process or in any proposal; 

3) rebid the project; 

4) negotiate with any Applicant for a reduced or increased Award Amount; 

5) reduce the scope of the project, and rebid or negotiate with any Applicant regarding the 
revised project; or 

6) defer or abandon the project. 
 

The MSF’s decision is final and not subject to appeal. Any attempt by an applicant, collaborating 
entity, or other party of interest to the project to influence the awards process, to appeal, and/or 
take any action, including, but not limited to, legal action, regarding the proposal or awards process 
in general may result in the applicant’s disqualification and elimination form the award process. 
 

8 

http://www.michiganbusiness.org/public-notices-rfps/
mailto:contracts&grants@michigan.org


 
O) JURISDICTION 

 
In the event that there are conflicts concerning this RFP that proceed to court, jurisdiction will be in 
a Michigan court of law.  Nothing in this RFP shall be construed to limit the rights and remedies of 
the MSF that are otherwise available. 

 
 P) ADDITIONAL CERTIFICATION 
 

Pursuant to Public Act 517 of 2012, an Iran linked business is not eligible to submit a bid or 
proposal on a request for proposal, with a public entity. 
 
Applicants must include the following certification in the proposal: 
 
 “Applicant certifies that it is not an Iran-linked business as defined in MCL 129.312.” 
 
Failure to submit this certification will result in disqualification from consideration. 

 
  

9 



 
SECTION IV 

CONTRACTUAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS 
 

A) MSF REQUIRED TERMS AND CONDITIONS 
 
In addition to the final terms and conditions negotiated between the MSF and Awardee, the 
following terms and conditions shall be included in the final executed contract: 
 
1) The Awardee shall not use any portion of the Award for the development of a stadium or arena 

for use by a professional sports team or development of a casino or property associated or 
affiliated with the operation of a casino as prohibited by the Act (see MCL 125.2088(k)(5)(a) and 
(b)), or to induce the Awardee, a qualified business, or small business to leave the State of 
Michigan, or to contribute to the violation of internationally recognized workers’ rights, of 
workers in a country other than the United States, as prohibited by the MSF Act (see MCL 
125.2088(k)(6)(c) and (d)). 
 

2) The MSF, the State of Michigan, the MEDC, its Executive Committee and their respective 
directors, participants, officers, agents and employees (collectively, the “Indemnified Persons”) 
shall not be liable to the Awardee for any reason.  The Awardee shall indemnify and hold the the 
MSF, the State of Michigan and the MEDC and other Indemnified Person harmless against all 
claims asserted by or on behalf of any individual person, firm or entity (other than an 
Indemnified Person), arising or resulting from, or in any way connected with the final contract or 
any act or failure to act by the Awardee under the final contract, including all liabilities, costs and 
expenses, including reasonable counsel fees, incurred in any action or proceeding brought by 
reason of any such claim.  The Awardee shall also indemnify the State of Michigan, the MSF, 
the MEDC and other Indemnified Person from and against all costs and expenses, including 
reasonable counsel fees, lawfully incurred in enforcing any obligation of the Awardee under the 
final agreement. 
 

3) In connection with the Award, Awardee agrees not to discriminate against any employee or 
applicant for employment, with respect to their hire, tenure, terms, conditions or privileges of 
employment, or any matter directly or indirectly related to employment, because of race, color, 
religion, national origin, ancestry, age, sex, height, weight, marital status, physical or mental 
disability unrelated to the individual’s ability to perform the duties of the particular job or position. 
further agrees that every subcontract entered into for performance of this Agreement will contain 
a provision requiring nondiscrimination in employment, as specified in this Agreement, binding 
upon each subcontractor.  This covenant is required under the Elliot Larsen Civil Rights Act, 
1976 PA 453, MCL 37.2101, et seq., and the Persons with Disabilities Civil Rights Act, 1976 PA 
220, MCL 37.1101, et seq., and any breach thereof may be regarded as a material breach of 
the final contract. 
 
Under 1980 PA 278, MCL 423.321, et seq., the State of Michigan shall not award a contract or 
subcontract to an employer whose name appears in the current register of employers failing to 
correct an unfair labor practice compiled under MCL 423.322.  The United States Labor 
Relations Board compiles this information.  The Awardee shall not enter into a contract with a 
subcontractor, manufacturer, or supplier whose name appears in this register.  Under MCL 
423.324, the State of Michigan may void any contract if, subsequent to the award of the 
contract, the name of the Awardee as an employer, or the name of a subcontractor, 
manufacturer, or supplier of the Awardee appears in the register. 

 

10 



 
4) If the State Legislature or the State government fails to provide or terminates the funding 

necessary for the MSF to fund the Award, the MSF may terminate the final contract by providing 
notice to the Awardee not less than thirty (30) calendar days before the date of cancellation 
provided, however, that if the action of the State Legislature or State government results in an 
immediate absence or termination of funding, the final contract may be terminated effective 
immediately upon delivery of written notice to the Awardee.  Upon such termination of funding, 
the MSF shall have no further obligation to make any additional disbursements to the Awardee 
beyond the date of termination. 
 

5) To the best of Awardee’s knowledge, neither Awardee nor any of its affiliates, subsidiaries, 
officers, directors and any person who, directly or indirectly, holds a pecuniary interest in the 
Awardee of 20% or more: (i) have any criminal convictions incident to the application for or 
performance of a state contract or subcontract, and (ii) have any criminal convictions or have 
been held liable in any civil proceeding that negatively reflects on the person’s business 
integrity, including without limitation, based on a finding of embezzlement, theft, forgery, bribery, 
falsification or destruction of records, receiving stolen property or violation of state or federal 
antitrust statutes. 
 

6) During the term of the award, there will be frequent contact between the Grant Manager, or 
other MEDC, MSF or representatives of the State, and the Awardee, including possible site 
visits. In addition, to enable the Auditor General, the Department of Technology, Management 
and Budget (the “DTMB”), the MSF, or the MEDC to monitor and ensure compliance with the 
terms of the final contract, the Awardee shall permit the Auditor General, the DTMB, the MSF, 
or the MEDC to visit the Awardee, and any other location where books and records of the 
Awardee are normally kept, to inspect the books and records, including financial records and all 
other information and data relevant to the terms of the final contract, including the expenditure 
of any funds; provided, however, that such audit right shall survive the end of the term of the 
final contract by three (3) years.  In connection with any such audit, the Awardee shall 
cooperate with the chief compliance officer, if contacted, as provided in MCL 125.2088i(6)(h).  
At such visits, the Awardee shall permit the Auditor General, the DTMB, the MSF, or any 
member, employee or agent of the MSF, the Grant Manager or any employee or agent of the 
MEDC to make copies or extracts from information and to discuss the affairs, finances and 
accounts of the Awardee related to this Agreement with its officers, employees or agents. 
Notwithstanding anything to the contrary, any information and data that the Awardee reasonably 
determines is confidential information shall be reviewed by the Auditor General, the DTMB, the 
MSF, and the MEDC at the offices of the Awardee and the Auditor General, the DTMB, the 
MSF, or the MEDC shall have the right to remove, photocopy, photograph or otherwise record in 
any way any part of such books and records only with the prior written consent of the Awardee, 
which consent shall not be unreasonably withheld. 

 
B) CONTRACTOR RESPONSIBILITIES 
 

The selected  will be required to assume responsibility for all contractual activities offered in this 
RFP whether or not the  performs them.  Further, the MSF will consider the selected  to be the sole 
point of contact with regard to contractual matters, including payment of any and all charges 
resulting from the Contract. 
 

C) LIMITATION ON FEES 
 
The MSF’s contribution to management fees, overhead, expenses and other administrative costs is 

11 



 
limited to 25% of the Award Amount. 
 

D) ACCEPTANCE OF PROPOSAL CONTENT 
 

If awarded a grant, the contents of this RFP and Applicant’s proposal will become contractual 
obligations. In the event of any discrepancies between the RFP, the proposal and the final executed 
agreement, the final executed contract shall control.  Failure of the successful Applicant to accept 
these obligations may result in cancellation of the award. 

 
D) PROJECT CONTROL AND REPORTS 
 

1) Project Control 

a) The selected Applicant (the “Awardee”) will carry out this project under the direction and 
control of the Business Support Unit of the MSF. 

b) The MSF will appoint a Grant Manager for this project.  Although there will be continuous 
liaison with the Awardee team, the Grant Manager will meet with the Awardee's project 
manager for the purpose of reviewing progress and providing necessary guidance to the 
Awardee in solving problems which arise. 

c) The Awardee will be required to submit progress reports, together with supporting 
documentation, to the Grant Manager on a regular basis in order to assist the MSF in 
complying with the reporting requirements of the MSF Act. The Grant Manager may request 
such other documentation or information as may be necessary to effectively administer the 
award.  

 
 

(remainder of page intentionally left blank) 

12 



Exhibit  A 
Proposal Evaluation Form 

2014 Manufacturing Support Services 
 
Name of Applicant:   

       
Name of Reviewer:            
 

Criteria Reviewer’s 
Comments 

Points  

Statement of Work: 
• Does the applicant effectively demonstrate the capacity and ability to provide the 

following: 
o Assist Pure Michigan Business Connect (PMBC) in matchmaking 

requests, including the broad search efforts as related to supplier summits 
o Provide services to Michigan manufacturers that allow those businesses 

operate more effectively in order to create and retain jobs 
o Support those firms (described in the above bullet) with a particular 

emphasize on 2nd stage growth companies  
o Have the ability to provide manufacturing specific research and search 

engine optimization (SEO) to support the MEDC’s Economic 
Gardening/Second Stage Growth Accelerator program 

 

Max. Possible Points: 30 
 
Score:   

Bidder Information: 
• Have a statewide reach and focus 
• Identified milestones/deliverables 
• Deliverables result in positive economic impact 

 
 
Max. Possible Points: 10 
 
Score:   

Prior Experience: 
• The Applicant should indicate past experience with Manufacturing Support Services, and 

specifically discuss how the STATEMENT OF WORK that the Applicant fulfilled and 
its success will play a role in this project 

  
Max. Possible Points: 30 
 
Score:  

Staffing: 
• Identified key players 
• Identified collaborators 
• Have the administrative ability and desire to provide efficient, transparent operations and 

funding details on a systematic basis 

 
 
Max. Possible Points: 10 
Score:  
 

Financial Stability: 
• Have access to additional, non-MSF, funding to support operations  
• Leverage federal and/or private sector funding sources to support the program/services 

 

  
Max. Possible Points: 20 
Score:  
 

Total Score: 
 

 Max. Possible Points: 100 
Score:  
 

 



 

 
MEMORANDUM 
 
Date: January 13, 2014 
 
To: Michigan Strategic Fund Board 
 
From: Robert Jackson, Deputy Director, Michigan Energy Office 
 
Subject: Advanced Energy Acceleration Services RFP – JEC & Scoring Criteria Approval 
 
Action 
The Michigan Economic Development Corporation (MEDC) is requesting the Michigan Strategic Fund 
(MSF) Board approval of the Joint Evaluation Committee (JEC) Members, the JEC Propsoal Evaluation 
Form and JEC Instructions for the Advanced Energy Acceleration Services Request For Proposals (RFP) 
that was approved during the December 2013 Board Meeting released on December 19, 2013. 
 
The MEDC anticipates the following timeline for the AEAS grant: 
 

• Proposals Due: January 17, 2014 
• Joint Evaluation Committee (JEC) Review Process Completed: February 7, 2014 
• Results of JEC Review to MSF Board: February 2014 MSF Board (date TBD) 
• Project Start Date: March 1, 2014 

 
The MEDC requests the MSF approve a JEC comprised of MEDC Staff and external partners to review 
the proposals submitted and make award recommendations to the MSF Board, including: 
 

• Frank Murray, Director - New York State Energy Research and Development Authority 
• Maurice Kaya, VP - Hawaii Renewable Energy Development Venture 
• Martin Dober, Invest Detroit 
• Nadia Abunasser, Federal & Development Projects Manager - MEDC 
• Roger Doherty, Engineer - Michigan Energy Office 

 
The MEDC requests the MSF approve the attached The JEC Instructions (Attached as Exhibit A to the 
resolution) and the JEC Proposal Evaluation Form (Attached as Exhibit B to the resolution) to be used by 
the JEC to evaluate proposals. 
 
Background  
The Advanced Energy Acceleration Services grant will provide funding to accomplish the following: 
 

• Commercialization of New and Innovative Technologies - Provide  support for advanced energy 
technology development by validating new and emerging alternative energy technologies and 

 



 

connecting them to funding sources for further research and development. The grant will also 
provide resources for technology demonstrations such as: testing, validation and research-
laboratory space. The recipient will support the commercialization of technology by leveraging 
industry, federal, and philanthropic resources. 

• Industry and Venture Development - Assist energy ventures by performing commercialization 
gap analysis (market landscape, technology or supply chain needs, etc). Assess strengths and 
weaknesses and decide appropriate level of support to start-up companies. Help existing 
Michigan suppliers to transition into energy industry by connecting them to specific opportunities 
that fit their expertise. Connecting global alternative energy equipment manufacturers to 
opportunities for strategic partnerships in Michigan. 

• Supply Chain Mapping - Increase understanding of industry sector supply chains. Conduct 
analysis of Michigan’s energy technology development and product manufacturing market with 
the goal of outlining all major contributors and understanding the full economic impact value of 
the market. 

• Technology Roadmapping - Help guide Michigan companies by looking at market driving 
influences, where R&D is being conducted, existing technology roadmaps, and development of 
future performance and/or cost requirements and/or targets. 

• Industry Convening - Convene industry-sector stakeholders to work toward common goals. 
Deepen sector knowledge and intelligence through industry focused events. 

• Technical Assistance in Advanced Energy Sectors (i.e. smart grid, power electronics, energy 
storage, energy efficiency, etc.) 

 
Recommendation 
Staff makes the following recommendations with respect to the program: 
 

1. Approval of the JEC Members. 
2. Approval of the JEC Instructions (Exhibit A to the resolution) and the JEC Proposal Evaluation 

Form (Exhibit B to the resolution). 

 



MICHIGAN STRATEGIC FUND 
 

RESOLUTION 
2014- 

 
JOINT EVALUATION COMMITTEE AND SCORING AND EVALUATION CRITERIA 

FOR THE ENERGY ACCELERATION SERVICES RFP 
 

WHEREAS, Public Acts 215 and 225 of 2005 (“Act”) established the 21st Century Jobs 
Trust Fund initiative;  
 

WHEREAS, MCL 125.2088k created the Strategic Economic Investment and 
Commercialization Board (“SEIC Board”) for the purposes of awarding grants and loans for 
basic research, applied research, university technology transfer, and commercialization of 
products, processes and services to encourage the development of competitive edge technologies 
to create jobs within the State of Michigan;  
 

WHEREAS, pursuant to Executive Order 2010-8, the Governor ordered the SEIC Board 
abolished and all powers, duties, and functions of the SEIC Board transferred to the Michigan 
Strategic Fund (“MSF”), including those powers, duties, and functions provided under MCL 
125.2088k;  

 
WHEREAS, the Michigan Economic Development Corporation (“MEDC”) provides 

administrative services to the MSF; 
 
WHEREAS, on December 28, 2013, the MSF Board authorized the issuance of a request 

for proposals (“RFP”) for awarding a grant to a non-profit corporation to provide energy 
acceleration services to businesses in Michigan (the “Energy Acceleration Services RFP”); 

 
WHEREAS, the Act requires that proposals received in response to the Energy 

Acceleration Services RFP be reviewed by a joint evaluation committee (“JEC”); 
 
WHEREAS, the MEDC recommends and the MSF desires to appoint the following 

individuals to the JEC for the Energy Acceleration Services RFP:  
 
Frank Murray, Director - New York State Energy Research and Development Authority 
Maurice Kaya, VP - Hawaii Renewable Energy Development Venture 
Martin Dober, Invest Detroit 
Nadia Abunasser, Federal & Development Projects Manager - MEDC 
Roger Doherty, Engineer - Michigan Energy Office 
 
WHEREAS, the MEDC also recommends and the MSF desires to approve the scoring 

and evaluation criteria contained in Attachment A for use by the JEC in its review of proposals 
(the “Energy Acceleration Services RFP Scoring Criteria”). 

 



NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, the MSF Board approves the JEC set forth 
above and approves the Energy Acceleration Services RFP Scoring Criteria attached as Exhibit 
A to this resolution. 

 
Ayes: 
 
Nays: 
 
Recused: 

 
Lansing, Michigan 
January 28, 2014 

 
 



EXHIBIT A 
 

REVIEWER SCORING INSTRUCTIONS 
FOR 

ADVANCED ENERGY ACCELERATION SERVICES GRANT PROGRAM 
 

 
Using the Reviewer Score Sheet, identify strengths and weaknesses in each project proposal. 
Be sure to complete a Reviewer Score Sheet for each provided proposal. Please use the 
general comments sections of the form to provide candid comments on each proposal and 
identify critical deficiencies or needed information.  
 
All completed Reviewer Score Sheets should be electronically provided to the Program 
Manager prior to meeting of the Joint Evaluation Committee (JEC) and a signed paper copy of 
each form is to be provided to the Program Manager on completion of the JEC 
recommendations for funding (see below). 
 
General Background 
 
Public Act 215 of 2005, Section 88k(2) and Executive Order 2010-8, allows the MSF Board to 
award grants and loans from the 21st Century Jobs Fund for “…basic research, applied 
research, university technology transfer and commercialization of products, processes and 
services to encourage the development of competitive-edge technologies to create jobs in the 
state.” The RFP, attached for your reference, solicited applications for funding to accomplish the 
following: 

• Commercialization of New and Innovative Technologies - Provide  support for advanced 
energy technology development by validating new and emerging alternative energy 
technologies and connecting them to funding sources for further research and 
development. The grant will also provide resources for technology demonstrations such 
as: testing, validation and research-laboratory space. The recipient will support the 
commercialization of technology by leveraging industry, federal, and philanthropic 
resources. 

• Industry and Venture Development - Assist energy ventures by performing 
commercialization gap analysis (market landscape, technology or supply chain needs, 
etc). Assess strengths and weaknesses and decide appropriate level of support to start-
up companies. Help existing Michigan suppliers to transition into energy industry by 
connecting them to specific opportunities that fit their expertise. Connecting global 
alternative energy equipment manufacturers to opportunities for strategic partnerships in 
Michigan. 

• Supply Chain Mapping - Increase understanding of industry sector supply chains. 
Conduct analysis of Michigan’s energy technology development and product 
manufacturing market with the goal of outlining all major contributors and understanding 
the full economic impact value of the market. 

• Technology Roadmapping - Help guide Michigan companies by looking at market driving 
influences, where R&D is being conducted, existing technology roadmaps, and 
development of future performance and/or cost requirements and/or targets. 



• Industry Convening - Convene industry-sector stakeholders to work toward common 
goals. Deepen sector knowledge and intelligence through industry focused events. 

• Technical Assistance in Advanced Energy Sectors (i.e. smart grid, power electronics, 
energy storage, energy efficiency, renewable energy, communications and controls, etc.) 

 
The Michigan Energy Office (MEO) will oversee the Award. Funding (in the form of a grant) will 
be awarded to one non-profit organization. All applications have undergone a prescreening 
process to determine if they were eligible for grant funding prior to be advanced to the review 
committee for scoring. Please note some applications may have been determined to be eligible 
but not complete. It is the policy of the MEO to score eligible but not complete applications. 
 
Application Content and Format 
 
The applicants were required to follow the instructions given in Section II within the Advanced 
Energy Acceleration Services RFP. 
 
Proposal Scoring and Evaluation Criteria 
 
The applications are evaluated using a numerical scoring technique ranging from zero (0) to one 
hundred (100) with those having the highest total score being considered for funding. Each 
application is evaluated using the same set of criteria, with each criterion assigned a value from 
zero (for unacceptable or exceptionally poor/weak) to a maximum designated value (for 
exceptionally or uniquely good/strong). [The maximum value allowed for each criterion is given 
on the Reviewer Score Sheet.] A total score for the application is obtained by summing the 
values assigned to each criterion. 
 
The minimum value that can be assigned to each criterion is zero (0), which should be used if 
you believe the proposed project is incapable of achieving, or fails to meet the 
definition/requirement of the particular criterion. 
 
The maximum value that can be assigned to each criterion is designated on the form.  The 
maximum value should be used if the proposed project is likely to achieve an exceptional 
outcome for the particular criterion based on your professional judgment and experience.  
 
The Reviewer Score Sheet contains the four criterion used for evaluating the applications. You 
are asked to assign each criterion a value from zero (0) to its allowed maximum. Use your 
professional judgment and experience in assigning a value to each criterion. Please use the 
general comments section following each criterion to provide candid comments on each 
proposal and identify critical deficiencies or needed information. 
 
Experience of Organization & Project Team (0-30) 
 
Applicants must be able to staff a project team that clearly possesses talent and experience in 
conducting the type of work proposed. The narrative should identify the authorized contact 
person and key personnel to be involved with this project, by name and title, and provide their 
qualifications.  

If other organizations will be playing a role in the proposed project in coordination with this 
grant, applicant must provide sufficient background information on them in order to give the 

2 



Reviewer a reasonable understanding of their qualifications. Applicant must describe how the 
organization will coordinate with other organizations to accomplish set goals. 
 

Organization should have experience in the following areas:  
• Leveraging industry, federal, and philanthropic resources at to support Advanced 

Energy Technology commercialization: AND 
• Attracting/leveraging federal funding with Michigan entities to support technology 

demonstrations, collaborative research and development, industry, and venture 
growth within Advanced Energy Technology; AND 

• Supporting the MEDC and regional economic development authorities with 
business attraction, retention and growth of advanced energy companies; AND 

• Supporting Advanced Energy Technology commercialization with both early 
stage and mature companies; AND 

• Providing technology testing, demonstration and validation services to support 
commercialization of Advanced Energy Technologies; AND 

• Advanced Energy asset mapping, cluster development strategy and industry 
convening; AND 

• Development and execution of industry focused events to accelerate activities 
within Advanced Energy Technologies. 

 
Proposal Quality & Completeness (0-15) 
 
Proposal(s) should follow the format detailed under Section II of the RFP. Proposal(s) should be 
scored based on the degree of completeness, level of detail, and overall quality of information 
contained within the proposal documents. 
 
Work Plan (0-15) 
 
Proposal(s) should: 
 

1. Describe in narrative form the work plan and project schedule with required tasks for 
accomplishing the work proposed. 

2. Clearly define the project objectives. 
3. Provide a discussion of the proposed timeline which is correlated with the task required 

to complete the work. For each task identified include a title and planned completion 
date, milestone should be quantitative and show progress toward budget period and/or 
project goals. 

4. Indicate and justify the estimated number of staff (managers/supervisors) that will spend 
time working on the project, and provide a description of the work to be performed. 

 
Project Deliverables (Metrics) (0-25) 
 
Proposal should describe how the project will be measured and evaluated to determine 
success. Projected metrics should include (but not be limited to) the following: 
 

o Jobs Created or Retained (#) 
o Private Investment Leveraged ($) 

3 



o New Business Quoted/Won ($) 
o Capital Investment ($) 
o Plant Expansions ($) 
o Patents, Copyrights, Trademarks Filed (#) 
o Licensing Agreements Entered (#) 
o Products Commercialized (#) 
o Related Events Hosted and Attendance (#) 
o Companies Served (#) 
o Technical Evaluations (#) 
o Company/Opportunity Evaluations (#) 
o Business to Business Connections (#) 
o Introductions to Private Investors (#) 
o Engagements with Local Economic Development Agencies (#) 

 
Score proposal(s) overall impact of the project based on the projected metrics and the ability to 
measure those projected metrics. 
 
Project Feasibility and Likelihood of Success (0-15) 
 
Use your own professional experience to score the proposed project on the likelihood of 
success and feasibility to achieve the purpose, outcomes, and tasks required by this RFP within 
the established timeframe. 
 
Overall Score 
 
For each application, sum the values assigned to each criterion to achieve the Overall Score.  
Please note that the maximum score possible is 100.  
 
Conclusions/Recommendations 
 
For each application, provide any final comments, conclusions, or recommendations regarding 
the proposed project.  Specifically indicate any significant strengths or weaknesses not 
otherwise addressed, or failed to be captured by the scoring.  Additionally list any missing 
information critical to properly evaluating what otherwise appears to be a high scoring fundable 
project.   
 
Overall Recommendation and Justification 
 
On the front page of the Reviewer Score Sheet, please indicate if you recommend or do Not 
Recommend the application for further funding consideration.  Provide the justifications for your 
recommendation in the space provided. 
 
Project Summary 
 
On the front page of the Reviewer Score Sheet, please provide a brief summary of the proposed 
project based on your review of the application.  

4 



 
Reviewer Signature 
 
Print your name, provide the date the review was completed, and sign in the spaces provided 
on the front page of the Reviewer Score Sheet. 

5 



EXHIBIT B 
 

ADVANCED ENERGY ACCELERATION SERVICES  
 

 
Reviewer Score Sheet for Candidate Application 

 
 
Proposal Tracking Number: ___________________ Date of Review:  ________________________ 
 
Name of Proposal: 
 
 
 
Project Summary: 

 
  

  
 

Justification: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Name of Reviewer: 
 
 
 
Signature of Reviewer: 
 
 

 
Form Revised: January 8, 2014 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

  Recommend Not Recommend 



ADVANCED ENERGY ACCELERATION SERVICES  
Reviewer Score Sheet 

 
Proposal Tracking Number: ____________         

  
Reviewer: _________________ Date of Review: ____________  

 
  

1. Experience of Organization and Project Team.   
A. Score the proposal on the effectiveness and adequacy of the project’s management 

structure and the experience and qualifications of the organization and project team. 
  
SCORE (Out of 30, where 0=unacceptable, 15=average/typical and 30=exceptional): 
 

Score: 

 
Comments: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

2. Proposal Quality and Completeness 
 
A. Score the proposal based on the degree of completeness, level of detail, and overall 

quality of information contained within the proposal documents. 
 

SCORE (Out of 15, where 0=unacceptable and 15=exceptional): 
Score: 

 
Comments: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
3. Work Plan 

 

2 



ADVANCED ENERGY ACCELERATION SERVICES  
Reviewer Score Sheet 

 
Proposal Tracking Number: ____________         

  
Reviewer: _________________ Date of Review: ____________  

 
A. Score the proposal based on the overall quality of the Work Plan to implement the 

project. 
 

SCORE (Out of 15, where 0=unacceptable and 15= exceptional): 
Score: 

 
Comments: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
4. Project Deliverables (Metrics).   

A. Score the project on the overall magnitude of impact based on proposed metrics. 
 
SCORE (Out of 25, where 0=unacceptable and 25=exceptional):  

Score: 

 
Comments: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
5. Project Feasibility and Likelihood of Success. 

A. Score the proposed project on the likelihood of success and feasibility to achieve the 
purpose, outcomes, and tasks required by this RFP within the established timeframe. 

 
SCORE (Out of 15, where 0=unacceptable and 15=exceptional):  

3 



ADVANCED ENERGY ACCELERATION SERVICES  
Reviewer Score Sheet 

 
Proposal Tracking Number: ____________         

  
Reviewer: _________________ Date of Review: ____________  

 
 Score: 

 
Comments: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

OVERALL SCORE (out of 100) 
 

 
Conclusions/Recommendations (use additional sheets as needed): 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

4 



 

MEMORANDUM 

Date: January 28, 2014 

To: MSF Advisory Committee 

From: Paula Sorrell, Vice President Entrepreneurship, Innovation & Venture Capital 
 
Subject: University of Michigan, Advanced Transportation Technology Translation Program 

Action 
The MEDC requests the MSF approve allocating $1,000,000 for continuation of the Michigan 
Translational Research and Commercialization (“MTRAC”) University of Michigan, Advanced 
Transportation Technology Translation Program. 
 
Background 
At its September 27, 2012 board meeting, the MSF Board approved the creation of the Michigan 
Translational Research and Commercialization Program (the “MTRAC Program”) allocating $6,000,000 
from the 21st Century Jobs Fund to the program. The MTRAC Program is based on the success of the 
Coulter Process, a nation-wide best practice that facilitates and enables the translation of cutting-edge 
university research and knowledge into economic impact through technology transfer.  
 
On February 27, 2013 the MSF selected the Grantee – University of Michigan, Advanced Transportation 
Technology Translation Program to receive a grant in the amount of $150,000 for a six-month pilot 
program with the option to award the full amount that was requested in the proposal ($1,000,000) to be 
disbursed under the grant agreement.  
 
Project Success 
The six-month pilot project included hiring the program manager, putting in place an oversight committee 
to review projects and soliciting proposals from faculty. There were 8 applications reviewed with 4 
finalists who have the potential to receive funding of which 2 will be selected. The program was able to 
accomplish a significant amount during the pilot program and has met all of their milestones and 
reporting requirements.  
 
Recommendation 
MEDC Staff recommends that the MSF Board approves allocating an additional $1,000,000 to the 
University of Michigan, Advanced Transportation Technology Program grant.  

 

 



MICHIGAN STRATEGIC FUND 
RESOLUTION 

 
2014- 

 
MTRAC PROGRAM AWARD 

 
WHEREAS, Public Acts 215 and 225 of 2005 (“Act”) established the 21st Century Jobs Trust 

Fund (the “21st Century Jobs Fund”) initiative; 
 
WHEREAS, the Michigan Economic Development Corporation (“MEDC”) provides 

administrative services for the Michigan Strategic Fund (“MSF”); 
 
WHEREAS, at its September 27, 2012 meeting, the MSF Board approved the creation of the 

Michigan Translational Research and Commercialization Program (the “MTRAC Program” or 
“Program”) under Section 88o of the Act and allocated $6 million from the 21st Century Jobs Fund to the 
Program; 

 
WHEREAS, also at its September 27, 2012 meeting, the MSF issued a Request for Proposals 

(“RFP”) under the MTRAC Program, approved an application and scoring process for the RFP, and 
appointed a Joint Evaluation Committee (“JEC”) to review proposals received in response to the RFP; 

 
WHEREAS, the JEC received and reviewed proposals from seven (7) institutions of higher 

education under the RFP in accordance with the requirements of the RFP, including all statutory 
requirements, and the scoring and evaluation criteria adopted by the MSF Board;  

 
WHEREAS, the MSF awarded a grant to the University of Michigan in an initial amount of 

$150,000 for a pilot project in advanced transportation, with an option to award up to $1,000,000 as 
requested in the University’s proposal upon successful completion of the milestones for the pilot 
program; 

 
WHEREAS, the University of Michigan has successfully completed the milestones under the 

UM Grant and MEDC Staff recommends that the MSF Board exercise its option to award up to an 
additional $1,000,000 to the University of Michigan under the MTRAC Program (the “UM Grant”); and 

 
WHEREAS, the MSF Board wishes to approve the UM Grant. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the MSF Board approves the UM Grant; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that MSF Fund Manager or the MSF Chairperson, with only 

one required to act and in coordination with MEDC Staff, is authorized to the negotiate final terms and 
conditions of the UM Grant and to execute all documents necessary to effectuate the UM Grant. 
 

Ayes:  
 

Nays:   
 

Recused:  
 
Lansing, Michigan 
January 28, 2014 



 



 

 

MEMORANDUM 

Date:  January 28, 2014 

To:  Michigan Strategic Fund Board 

From:  Roselyn Zator, Managing Director, Entrepreneurial Services 

Subject:   FY 2014 Business Incubator Programs Request for Proposals   
    
 
Action 
The MEDC requests that the MSF Board approve the 2014 Business Incubator Programs Request for 
Proposals. 

Background  
Since 2009 the Michigan Strategic Fund (“MSF”) has provided funding to business incubators to stimulate the 
creation and continued growth of technology-based businesses and jobs by capitalizing on the State of 
Michigan's growing base of high technology industry, its skilled labor force, its nationally recognized 
university system, its SmartZones, and its business incubators.  For the 2013 fiscal year, the business 
incubators reported the following results occurred as a result of their activities: 145 companies created, 3,869 
companies served, 587 jobs created, and $135 million investment. These results reflect levels at or improved 
over 2012 results.  The Michigan Economic Development Corporation (“MEDC”) provides administrative 
services for the business incubator grants. 

The MEDC requests that the MSF release the 2014 Business Incubator Request for Proposals (“RFP”) in the 
amount of $4,535,000 to solicit proposals from organizations that have received prior MSF funding and 
require additional funding to support them in reaching self-sustainability.  Applicants must provide a 
sustainability plan clearly indicating how and when sustainability will occur. 
 
The MEDC anticipates the following proposed timeline for the execution of this RFP: 

 
Issue RFP to the Public: January 29, 2014 
Questions due from the Public: February 3, 2014 
Answers posted to the MEDC web page: February 7, 2014 
Applications Deadline: February 19, 2014 
 

The MEDC recommends that the MSF Board approve appointing a Joint Evaluation Committee (“JEC”) to 
review the proposals submitted and make recommendations to the MSF Board. The following individuals are 
recommended to be appointed to the JEC to review proposals: 
 

Roselyn Zator – Entrepreneurial Services Managing Director, MEDC 
Nadia Abunasser – Federal and Development Projects Director, MEDC 
Andrew Meadow – Biotech and Medical Device Venture Director, MEDC 
Gabe Yancho – Portfolio Manager, MEDC 
 
 

The MEDC recommends that the MSF Board approve the scoring and evaluation criteria attached as Exhibit B 
to the resolution to be used by the JEC members in their review of proposals submitted in response to the RFP.  

 



Recommendation 
MEDC Staff recommends that the MSF Board approve the following actions.   

1) Allocation of $4.535 million for the program;  
2) Approval of the RFP attached as Exhibit A to the resolution; 
3) Appointment of the JEC listed above; and 
4) Approval of the scoring and evaluation criteria attached as Exhibit A to the resolution appointing the JEC 

and approving the scoring criteria. 
 



 

 
EXHIBIT A 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS 
 

Michigan Strategic Fund 
 

BUSINESS INCUBATOR PROGRAMS 
 

RFP-CASE-____



 
REMINDER 
 
Please check your proposal to make sure you have included all of the specifications and required 
documents listed in the Request for Proposals.  Please email one document that includes contact page, 
check list page, and proposal. 

 
APPLICANTS ARE RESPONSIBLE FOR ASSURING THAT THE FOLLOWING IDENTIFYING 
INFORMATION APPEARS IN THE SUBJECT LINE OF YOUR EMAIL: “RFP-CASE-000” with Company 
Name. 
 
The MSF will not respond to telephone inquiries, or visitation by Applicants or their representatives. 
APPLICANTS OR ANY OF THEIR AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVES MAY NOT INITIATE CONTACT 
WITH MEDC OR MSF STAFF OR ANY MEMBER OF THE APPOINTED JOINT EVALUATION 
COMMITTEE (JEC), OTHER THAN THE CONTACT LISTED BELOW, FOR ANY REASON DURING THE 
RFP OR PROPOSAL EVALUATION PROCESS. Applicant’s sole point of contact concerning the RFP 
is below and any communication outside of this process may result in disqualification. 
 

Contracts and Grants 
Michigan Strategic Fund 
300 North Washington Square, 3rd Floor 
Lansing, Michigan  48913 
contractsandgrants@michigan.org 

 
IMPORTANT DUE DATES 
 

• Feruary 3, 2014 3:00 p.m.:  Questions from potential Applicants are due via email to 
contractsandgrants@michigan.org.  Please note:  The Michigan Strategic Fund (“MSF”) will not 
respond to questions that are not received by the above date and time.  In addition, questions that 
are phoned, faxed or sent through regular mail will not be accepted. 

 
• February 7, 2014, by close of business:  Responses to all qualifying questions will be posted on 

the MSF’s website, http://www.michiganadvantage.org/Public-Notices-Requests-for-Proposals 
 

• February 19, 2014, at 3:00 p.m.:  Electronic versions of your Proposal due to the MSF via email to 
contractsandgrants@michigan.org.  Proposals will not be accepted via U.S. mail or any other 
delivery method. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

mailto:contracts&grants@michigan.org
http://www.michiganadvantage.org/Public-Notices-Requests-for-Proposals
mailto:contracts&grants@michigan.org


 
 
 
 

 

Table of Contents 
SECTION I ................................................................................................................................................ 1 
WORK STATEMENT .............................................................................................................................. 1 

A) PURPOSE ................................................................................................................................. 1 
B) BACKGROUND STATEMENT AND OBJECTIVES ........................................................... 1 
C) ELIGIBILITY ........................................................................................................................... 2 
D) QUALIFICATIONS ................................................................................................................. 2 

SECTION II ............................................................................................................................................... 3 
PROPOSAL FORMAT ............................................................................................................................ 3 

A) COMPLETE PROPOSAL ........................................................................................................ 4 
B) PROPOSAL SUBMITTAL ...................................................................................................... 6 

SECTION III .............................................................................................................................................. 6 
RFP PROCESS AND TERMS AND CONDITIONS ........................................................................... 6 

A) QUESTIONS ............................................................................................................................ 6 
B) PROPOSALS ............................................................................................................................ 6 
C) ECONOMY OF PREPARATION ........................................................................................... 6 
D) SELECTION CRITERIA ......................................................................................................... 7 
E) TAXES ..................................................................................................................................... 8 
F) CONFLICT OF INTEREST ..................................................................................................... 8 
G) BREACH OF CONTRACT ..................................................................................................... 9 
H) FALSE INFORMATION ......................................................................................................... 9 
I) DISCLOSURE ............................................................................................................................. 9 
J) CLARIFICATION/CHANGES IN THE RFP .............................................................................. 9 
K) ELECTRONIC RECEIPT OF PROPOSALS ........................................................................... 9 
L) RESERVATION OF MSF DISCRETION ............................................................................. 10 
M) PROTEST PERIOD ............................................................................................................... 10 
N) JURISDICTION ..................................................................................................................... 11 
O) ADDITIONAL CERTIFICATION ......................................................................................... 11 

 
 

 



 
 

REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL 
BUSINESS INCUBATOR PROGRAMS 

RFP-CASE-XXXXXXXXXXXX 
 
 
 
This Request for Proposals (“RFP”) is issued by the Michigan Strategic Fund (the “MSF”), Contracts and 
Grants Unit (“C&G”).  The Michigan Economic Development Corporation (the “MEDC”) provides 
administrative services associated with the programs and activities of the Michigan Strategic Fund Act on 
behalf of the MSF.  C&G is the sole point of contact with regard to all application and contractual matters 
relating to the services described in this RFP.  The MSF is the only office authorized to change, modify, 
amend, alter, clarify, etc. the specifications, terms and conditions of this RFP and any contract(s) awarded 
as a result of this RFP (the “Contract”).  Contracts and Grants will remain the SOLE POINT OF CONTACT 
throughout the application process.  The MSF will not respond to telephone inquiries, or visitation by 
Applicants or their representatives.  Applicant’s sole point of contact concerning the RFP is below 
and any communication outside of this process may result in disqualification. 
 

Contracts and Grants 
Michigan Strategic Fund 
300 North Washington Square, 3rd Floor 
Lansing, Michigan  48913 
contractsandgrants@michigan.org 

 
SECTION I 

WORK STATEMENT 
 

A) PURPOSE 
 
Public Act 215 of 2005, Section 88k(2) allows the Strategic Economic Investment and Commercialization 
(“SEIC”) Board to award grants and loans from the 21st Century Jobs Fund for “ … basic research, applied 
research, university technology transfer and commercialization of products, processes and services to 
encourage the development of competitive-edge technologies to create jobs in the state.”  Under Executive 
Order 2010-8, the Governor ordered the SEIC Board abolished and all powers, duties and functions of the 
SEIC Board transferred to the Michigan Strategic Fund (“MSF”). 
 
Through this 2014 Business Incubator Request for Proposals, the MSF Board desires to allocate up to 
$4.535 million (“Award Amount”), disbursed up to 2 years, to non-profit organizations/universities that 
operate business incubator/accelerator programs AND fulfill the ELIGIBILITY and QUALIFICATIONS below. 
 
This RFP is focused on providing funding for organizations that have received prior MSF funding and 
require additional funding to support them in reaching self-sustainability.  Applicants must provide a 
sustainability plan clearly indicating how and when sustainability will occur.    

B) BACKGROUND STATEMENT AND OBJECTIVES 
 
Since 2009 the MSF has provided funding to business incubators to stimulate the creation and continued 
growth of technology-based businesses and jobs by capitalizing on the State of Michigan's growing 

1 
 

mailto:contracts&grants@michigan.org


 
base of high technology industry, its skilled labor force, its nationally recognized university system, its 
SmartZones, and its business incubators.  The MSF through this RFP continues to encourage this activity. 
 
Funding (in the form of a grant) will be awarded to non-profit organizations/universities through a 
competitive process in which all submitted proposals will be reviewed by a Joint Evaluation Committee 
(“JEC”).  Results from the JEC review will be provided, in the form of numerical scores and award 
recommendation(s), to the MSF Board.  

C) ELIGIBILITY 
• Only organizations that FULFILL one of the following criteria are eligible to apply and 

must be able to provide documented success.  DO NOT APPLY IF YOU DO NOT FULFILL 
ONE OF THE FOLLOWING CRITERIA. 

o Received Retention of Pfizer Assets Funds (documented through a MEDC grant 
agreement) and can document success OR 

o A business incubator associated with a SmartZone that was designated after January 1, 
2005 (documented through a MEDC SmartZone agreement dated after January 1, 2005) 
and can document success OR 

o Provides business incubator/accelerator services REGIONALLY (defined as serving at 
least 8 counties), and received past funding from the MSF/MEDC for business incubator 
activities (documented through a MEDC grant agreement), and can document success 

“Success” is the program identified above resulted in additional companies created, additional 
jobs created, follow-on funding by the companies served, or the organization leveraged the 
program funding and received additional funding to support technology commercialization 
activities. 

D) QUALIFICATIONS 
IF ELIGIBILE, MUST ALSO FULFILL the following criteria:   
 

• Purpose 
Proposals submitted MUST substantiate that the requested funds will lead to sustainability of the business 
incubator/accelerator and the applicant must provide the plan for this sustainability. 
 

• Technology Sectors  
Proposals submitted MUST be to foster the growth of Michigan’s technology based economy by supporting 
early stage companies and entrepreneurs to create jobs and commercialize product(s) within one or more of 
the competitive edge technology sectors defined in Section 125.2088a of the MSF Act, as amended, and as 
approved by the MSF Board, including Advanced Automotive, Manufacturing, Materials, Information, and 
Agricultural Processing Technology, Alternative Energy, Homeland Security and Defense Technology, Life 
Sciences, and Other Innovative Technologies.  
 

• Non-Profit and University Entities  
Only non-profit organizations and Michigan universities are eligible to receive funding through this RFP. To 
be eligible as a non-profit corporation, an applicant must, at the time the award is made, be: (i) a non-profit 
corporation duly organized under the laws of Michigan; or (ii) a foreign non-profit corporation duly authorized 
to transact business in Michigan. The principal site for the applicant’s management must be a facility located 
in Michigan. Such a facility must be either: (i) owned or leased by the non-profit organization; or (ii) owned or 
leased by an organization collaborating on the project. If the principal site is owned or leased by a 
collaborating organization, the organization must meet the “principal site of the project” requirement for a 
non-profit corporation, as defined in this section.  Eligible non-profit organizations must be authorized to 
conduct business in the State of Michigan.  Universities must be Michigan universities. 

2 
 



 
 

• Leverage and Match  
The MSF Board encourages applicants to leverage other resources as a condition of the award.  Each 
proposal must provide specific financial or in-kind contribution committed to, or available for, the direct 
support of the proposed plan. Although the proportion or the amount of the leveraged resources is not 
specified in this RFP, applicants are highly encouraged to maximize the contribution committed for their 
organization. Cash match is favored. 1:1 match is preferred. Other State of Michigan grant funds are not 
eligible for match.  Letters of financial commitment and proposal support are not required in the proposal 
though may be requested during the award process. 
  

• Award and Grant Agreements  
All grant agreements approved by the MSF Board will contain a provision that the Auditor General has 
access to the books and records, including financial records and all other information and data relevant to 
the terms of the grant agreement related to the use of the funds.  
 
Successful proposals approved for funding by the MSF Board are subject to the final execution of a legal 
grant agreement and successful completion of a due diligence review including, among other things: 
criminal and civil background checks of the applicant. Background checks will include, without limitation, 
affiliates, subsidiaries, officers, directors, managerial employees, and any person who directly or indirectly 
holds a pecuniary interest in that business entity of 20 percent or more.  
 
Insufficient or inappropriate proposals will not be funded. 
 

• Award Reporting Requirements 
Progress Reports are due every six (6) months, due in October and April throughout the term of the grant 
agreement, though metrics reporting is for five (5) years.  After the term of the grant agreement the reports 
are annual reports.  For Progress Reports, grantees must report on Milestones, Budget, and Metrics.  For 
the annual reporting, grantees must report on metrics. The grantee is responsible for timely submission of 
reports that must be submitted electronically though the MEDC Portal. 
 
Monthly Metrics are due monthly and include the following: dollars leveraged (match dollars), new 
companies created, companies expanded, companies served, jobs created, jobs retained, new investments 
in companies served (MEDC Funds, federal funds, venture capital, angel funds, bank/loan, owner 
investment, new sales, other), companies/people attending events.  The grantee is responsible for timely 
submission of reports that must be submitted electronically though MEDC’s Google Docs process. 
 
Delayed, incomplete, or incorrect reporting filed will likely result in a loss of funding to the 
incubator/accelerator. 
 
Annual site visits are conducted by the MEDC Grant Manager. 
 

• Overhead Rates  
The overhead rate (indirect administration costs) for the award recipient is limited to reflect actual overhead, 
but not greater than 15 percent of the Award Amount over the lifetime of the grant agreement. Preference 
will be given to proposals that are able to leverage outside funding sources to reduce overhead expenses 
for the award recipient. 

 
SECTION II 

PROPOSAL FORMAT 
 

3 
 



 
To be considered, each Applicant must submit a COMPLETE proposal in response to this RFP using 
the format specified.  APPLICANTS MUST NOT COMMUNICATE REGARDING THIS RFP WITH MEDC 
PERSONNEL OR JEC MEMBERS DURING THE ENTIRE PROCESSS THROUGH THE APPROVAL OF 
THE MSF BOARD APPROVAL. Applicant's proposal must be submitted in the format outlined below. 
There should be no attachments, enclosures, or exhibits other than those required in the RFP or 
considered by the Applicant to be essential to a complete understanding of the proposal. All 
proposals must be signed by an individual authorized by the Applicant to submit the application on 
its behalf. Each section of the proposal should be clearly identified with appropriate headings: 
 

A) COMPLETE PROPOSAL 
 

1)  Contact Page – State the Organization’s full name, address, and phone and facsimile number.  
Also included should be contact information, including phone number, email, cell phone 
number, and fax numbers.  Also include signature of the authorized signor of the applicant 
organization. 

2) Check List Page – Include a checklist of the required sections of the proposal, as listed in this 
Section II-A) 3 a-g and an indication that the section is included in the proposal.  And include as 
indicated in Section III.O. below the following:    “Applicant certifies that it is not an Iran-linked 
business as defined in MCL 129.312.” 

 
3) Proposal (up to 10 pages) – Provide a proposal and include the required elements a-h, as 

described here.  In the Proposal clearly identify the following sections as headers.   
a)   Eligibility 
The Applicant must clearly identify how they are eligible to apply under one of the following 
criteria: 
•    Received Retention of Pfizer Assets Funds (documented through a MEDC grant 

agreement) and can document success OR 
•    A business incubator associated with a SmartZone that was designated after January 1, 

2005 (documented through a MEDC SmartZone agreement dated after January 1, 2005) 
and can document success OR 

•    Provides business incubator/accelerator services REGIONALLY (defined as serving at 
least 8 counties), and received past funding from the MSF/MEDC for business incubator 
activities (documented through a MEDC grant agreement), and can document success.  
The Applicant must identify the services that they provide in each county and the amount 
of funding that is dedicated to provide services in each county and the source of the 
funding.   

 
“Success” is the program identified above resulted in additional companies created, additional 
jobs created, follow-on funding by the companies served, or the organization leveraged the 
program funding and received additional funding to support technology commercialization 
activities. 

 
b)   Executive Summary  
The Executive Summary should summarize the information provided in response to paragraphs 
(a) above and (c) through (h) below.  And specifically indicate: 

• THE NAME OF THE APPLICANT ORGANIZATION 
• THE ELIGIBILITY CRITERIA (See Section 1.C. above) AND PROOF OF 

4 
 



 
SUCCESS 

• THE AMOUNT OF FUNDS REQUESTED 
• THE AMOUNT OF MATCHING FUNDS 
• THE TERM (up to 2 years) 
• THE PURPOSE OF THE FUNDING 
• TARGETED NUMBERS FOR: 

o Companies Created  
o Jobs Created 
o Increase Investment/Revenue 

 
c)   Purpose of Funds 
The Applicant must clearly indicate whether the organization is a non-profit or university.  The 
Applicant must clearly describe how the proposed use of funds will lead to sustainability and 
must include a sustainability plan clearly indicating how and when sustainability will occur.  The 
Applicant must clearly describe how the proposed use of funds will be to foster the growth of 
Michigan’s technology based economy and clearly identify the specific competitive edge 
technology sectors that the Applicant will serve. 

 
d)   Past Experience  
The Applicant should indicate past experience with business iincubation/acceleration, and 
specifically discuss how the ELIGIBILITY CRITERIA that the Applicant fulfilled and its success 
will play a role in this project. 
 

e)  Team  
Summarize key personnel, their time commitment to the project, their specific responsibilities, 
and their value.  Identify collaborative partners, their responsibilities, and value. 
 
f)   Milestones/Deliverables  
Identify semi-annual milestones/deliverables that the Applicant will commit to as a result of 
providing the proposed services.  If Applicant is awarded funding, Progress Reports are due 
April 15 and October 15 every year throughout the award, therefore provide 
milestones/deliverables that will be completed in April and October over the course of the 
proposal.  Identify how milestone completion will result in specific Economic Impact 
identified in (h). 
 
Additionally, Applicants selected for funding will be required to submit monthly performance 
metrics to measure the effectiveness of the program; these metrics include, but are not 
limited to: dollars leveraged, new companies created, companies expanded, companies 
served, jobs created, jobs retained, new sales, and funding obtained by client companies, 
including amount and source of such funding (sources including state funds, federal funds, 
venture capital, angel funds, bank/loan, owner investment, other), as well as the names and 
amounts of companies funded by the program. 
  
g)   Budget Request  
Attach a schedule of all expenses covering each of the services and activities identified in your 
proposal. Specifically identify THE AMOUNT OF FUNDS REQUESTED, the TERM 
REQUESTED, PUBLIC AND/OR PRIVATE LEVERAGED FUNDS, and what the Applicant 
proposes to do with FUNDS APPLIED THROUGH THIS RFP and the TIMING OF THE 
FUNDS.  Progress Reports are due in April and October so proposals should include 6-month 
budgets of relevant line items that align with these dates.  Include the budget in a table format 

5 
 



 
with column headings, Start of grant-–4/1/2014-9/30/2014, etc. and rows should include the 
expense line-items.  Preference is that this funding should not overlap other MSF Board 
approved funding.  And if requesting funding that does overlap other MSF approved funding, 
applicant must provide explicit justification for this overlap. 
 

    h)   Economic Impact  
 Identify the targeted number of companies created, jobs created, and increases in 

investment/revenue resulting from the services.  Include justification and assumptions related 
to these expectations.  You will be held responsible for delivering these specific numbers in 
your semi-annual Progress Reports.  Explain how you define success and will deliver a 
successful program. Identify how you will make an economic development impact and be 
sustainable. 

 

B) PROPOSAL SUBMITTAL 
 

Submit an electronic version of your proposal (one document that includes contact page, check list page 
and proposal) to the MSF via email to contractsandgrants@michigan.org not later than 3:00 p.m. on 
Februay 19, 2014.  The MSF has no obligation to consider any proposal that is not timely received.  
Proposals will not be accepted via U.S. mail or any other delivery method. 

 
APPLICANTS ARE RESPONSIBLE FOR ASSURING THAT THE FOLLOWING IDENTIFYING 
INFORMATION APPEARS IN THE SUBJECT LINE OF YOUR EMAIL: “RFP-CASE-000xxx” with 
Company Name. 

 
SECTION III 

RFP PROCESS AND TERMS AND CONDITIONS 
 

A) QUESTIONS 
 

Questions from Applicants concerning the specifications in this RFP must be received via e-mail no 
later than 3:00 pm on February 3, 2014.  Questions must be submitted to: 

 
Contracts and Grants 
contractsandgrants@michigan.org  

 

B) PROPOSALS 
 

To be considered, Applicants must submit a complete response to this RFP, using the format provided 
in Section II of this RFP, by 3:00 p.m. on February 19, 2014.  No other distribution of proposals is to 
be made by the Applicant.  

 

C) ECONOMY OF PREPARATION 
 

Each proposal should be prepared simply and economically, providing a straightforward, concise 
description of the Applicant’s ability to meet the requirements of the RFP.  Emphasis should be on 

6 
 

mailto:contracts&grants@michigan.org
mailto:contracts&grants@michigan.org


 
completeness and clarity of content. 

 

D) SELECTION CRITERIA 
 

Responses to this RFP will be evaluated based upon a two-step review process.  The proposal must 
address the requirements described in Section II of this RFP. 

 
The first step is an evaluation of which proposals satisfactorily meet the requirements of this RFP as 
stated in Section II. Incomplete proposals will not be accepted or reviewed.  

 
1) Step I – Initial evaluation for compliance 

 
a) Proposal Content – Contracts and Grants will screen the proposals for technical compliance to 

include but not limited to: 
 

• Timely submission of the proposal 
• Eligibility 
• Executive Summary  
• Purpose 
• Past Experience 
• Team  
• Milestones/deliverables 
• Budget 
• Economic impact – Expected number of businesses created, jobs created, and private 

investment leveraged. 
• Proposal signed physically or electronically by an official of the Applicant authorized to bind 

the Applicant to its provisions. 
• Proposals satisfy the form and content requirements of this RFP. 

 
2) Step II – Criteria for Satisfactory Proposals 

 
a.) During the second step of the selection process, proposals will be considered by a Joint 

Evaluation Committee (“JEC”) comprised of individuals selected by the MSF.  Only those 
proposals that satisfy the technical requirements described in this RFP, as determined in the 
sole discretion of the JEC, will be considered for evaluation in Step II.  The JEC reserves the 
right to request additional information from any Applicant. 

 
b.) Competence, Experience and Staffing Capacity – The proposal should indicate the ability of 

the Applicant to meet the requirements of this RFP, especially the time constraints, quality, and 
recent projects similar to that described in this RFP. The proposal should indicate the 
competence of the personnel whom the Applicant intends to assign to the project, including 
education and experience, with particular reference to experience on projects similar to that 
described in this RFP and qualifications of Applicant’s Project Manager and the Project 
Manager’s dedicated management time, as well as that of other key personnel working on this 
project. 

 

7 
 



 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
c.) During the JEC’s review, Applicants may be required to make oral presentations of their 

proposals to the JEC.  These presentations provide an opportunity for the Applicants to clarify 
the proposals. The MEDC will schedule these presentations, if required by the JEC. Only those 
Applicants that score 70 points or higher on the written review will be invited for an oral 
presentation if the JEC determines that an oral presentation is necessary.  

 

E) TAXES 
 

The MSF may refuse to award a contract to any Applicant who has failed to pay any applicable taxes 
or if the Applicant has an outstanding debt to the State or the MSF. 

 
Except as otherwise disclosed in an exhibit to the Proposal, Applicant certifies that all applicable taxes 
are paid as of the date the Applicant’s Proposal was submitted to the MSF and the Applicant owes no 
outstanding debt to the State or the MSF. 

 

F) CONFLICT OF INTEREST   
 

The Applicant must disclose, in an exhibit to the proposal, any possible conflicts of interest that may 
result from an award under this RFP. 
 
Except as otherwise disclosed in the proposal, the Applicant affirms that to the best of its knowledge 
there exists no actual or potential conflict between the Applicant, the Applicant’s project manager(s) or 
its family’s business or financial interests (“Interests”) and the MSF or MEDC.  In the event of any 
change in the RFP, the Applicant will inform the MSF and the MEDC regarding possible conflicts of 
interest which may arise as a result of such change and agrees that all conflicts shall be resolved to the 
MSF’s satisfaction or the Applicant may be disqualified from consideration under this RFP.  As used in 
this Section, “conflict of interest” shall include, but not be limited to, the following: 

 
1. Giving or offering a gratuity, kickback, money, gift, or anything of value to an official, officer, 

or employee of the MSF or the MEDC with the intent of receiving an award from the MSF or favorable 
treatment under a contract; 

 
2. Having or acquiring at any point during the RFP process or during the term of the award, any 

contractual, financial, business or other interest, direct or indirect, that would conflict in any manner or 
degree with Applicant’s performance of its duties and responsibilities to the MSF under the award or 
otherwise create the appearance of impropriety with respect to the award or performance of the award; 
or 

 

Weight 
1. ELIGIBILITY 25 
2. Executive Summary 5 
3. Purpose 15 
4. Past Experience  10 
5. Team 10 
6. Milestones/Deliverables 10 
7. Budget 10 
8. Economic Impact 15 

TOTAL 100 

8 
 



 
3. Currently in possession of or accepting during the RFP process or the term of the award 

anything of value based on an understanding that the actions of the Applicant or its affiliates or Interests 
on behalf of the MSF will be influenced. 

 

G) BREACH OF CONTRACT 
 

Except as otherwise disclosed in an exhibit to Applicant’s proposal, Applicant is not in material default or 
breach of any contract or agreement that it may have with the State of Michigan or any of its 
departments, commissions, boards or agencies, or any other public body in the State of Michigan.  
Further, Applicant represents and warrants that it has not been a party to any contract with the State or 
any public body that was terminated within the previous five (5) years because the Applicant failed to 
perform or otherwise breached an obligation of such contract. 

 

H) FALSE INFORMATION 
 

If the MSF determines that a Applicant purposefully or willfully submitted false information in response to 
this RFP, the Applicant will not be considered for an award and any resulting Contract that may have 
been executed may be terminated. 

 

I)   DISCLOSURE 
 

All Applicants should be aware that proposals submitted to the MSF in response to this RFP may be 
subject to disclosure under the provisions of Public Act 442 of 1976, as amended, known as the 
Freedom of Information Act (“FOIA”).  Accordingly, confidential information should be excluded from 
Applicant’s proposals.  Applicants, however, are encouraged to provide sufficient information to enable 
the MSF to determine the Applicant’s qualifications and to understand or identify areas where 
confidential information exists and could be provided.  The FOIA also provides for the complete 
disclosure of the contract and any attachments or exhibits thereto. 

 

J)   CLARIFICATION/CHANGES IN THE RFP 
 

Any change or update to the acceptance of proposals will be posted on the MEDC website. Such 
postings shall constitute constructive notice to the general public and to all Applicants of any 
modifications or alterations of the deadline for proposals. Therefore, Applicants are strongly encouraged 
to continuously check the MEDC website at http://www.michiganadvantage.org/Public-Notices-
Requests-for-Proposals/. 
 
 

K) ELECTRONIC RECEIPT OF PROPOSALS  
 

AN ELECTRONIC VERSION OF YOUR PROPOSAL MUST BE RECEIVED AND TIME-STAMPED BY 
THE MSF TO contractsandgrants@michigan.org, ON OR BEFORE 3:00 p.m. on February 19, 2014.  
Applicants are responsible for timely submission of their proposal.  THE MSF HAS NO OBLIGATION 
TO CONSIDER ANY PROPOSAL THAT IS NOT RECEIVED BY THE APPOINTED TIME. 

9 
 

http://www.michiganadvantage.org/Public-Notices-Requests-for-Proposals/
http://www.michiganadvantage.org/Public-Notices-Requests-for-Proposals/
mailto:contracts&grants@michigan.org


 
L) RESERVATION OF MSF DISCRETION 
 

Notwithstanding any other statement in this RFP, the MSF reserves the right to: 
 

1) reject any and all proposals; 

2) waive any errors or irregularities in the application process or in any proposal; 

3) reissue the RFP; 

4) negotiate with any Applicant for a different award amount; 

5) reduce the scope of the project, and reissue the RFP or negotiate with any Applicant regarding the 
revised project 

6) extend the term of the project and add additional funding as necessary or appropriate; or 

7) defer or abandon the project. 
 

Decisions by the MSF are final and not subject to appeal.  
 
Any attempt by an Applicant, collaborating entity, or other party of interest to the project to influence 
the awards process, to appeal, and/or take any action, including, but not limited to, legal action, 
regarding the proposal or awards process in general may result in the Applicant’s disqualification 
and elimination form the award process. 
 

M) PROTEST PERIOD 
 

If an Applicant wishes to initiate a protest of the award recommendation, the Applicant must submit a 
protest in writing by 5:00 p.m. within (10) ten calendar days from the date of the notice of award sent by 
the MSF.  The written protest should include the RFP number, clearly state the facts believed to 
constitute an error in the award recommendation, and describe the desired remedy.  Only the 
information provided within the protest period will be considered in arriving at a decision.  The MSF is 
not required to take into consideration any material filed by any party after the protest deadline.  The 
MSF Fund Manager or MSF Chairperson will provide a written decision to the protesting party after 
investigating the matter or, if more information is needed, will schedule an informal meeting before 
issuing a decision.  This decision is final. 

 
To maintain the integrity of the procurement process and to ensure that procurements are received 
without undue delay, protests requesting a waiver of the following omissions and requirements cannot 
be granted: 

 
1. Failure of an Applicant to properly complete proposal return envelope instructions; 
2. Failure of a Applicant to submit the proposal by the due date and time; 
3. Failure of a Applicant to provide samples, descriptive literature or other required documents by 

the date and time specified; 
4. Failure of a Applicant to submit a protest within the time stipulated in the notice to award or as 

determined by the MSF. 
 

In fairness to Applicants who meet the RFP specifications and to prevent delays in program 
implementation, the MSF will not withdraw an award or re-evaluate proposals when a protest maintains 
that the RFP specifications were faulty. 

10 
 



 
 

N) JURISDICTION 
 
In the event that there are conflicts concerning this RFP that proceed to court, jurisdiction will be in a 
Michigan court of law.  Nothing in this RFP shall be construed to limit the rights and remedies of the 
MSF or the MEDC that are otherwise available.  

 

O) ADDITIONAL CERTIFICATION 
 

Pursuant to Public Act 517 of 2012, an Iran linked business is not eligible to submit an application or 
proposal to a request for proposal issued by a public entity. 
 
Applicants must include the following certification in the proposal: 
 
 “Applicant certifies that it is not an Iran-linked business as defined in MCL 129.312.” 
 
Failure to submit this certification will result in disqualification from consideration. 

 
 
 

11 
 



MICHIGAN STRATEGIC FUND 
RESOLUTION 

 
2014- 

 
BUSINESS INCUBATORS REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS  

AND FUNDING ALLOCATION 
 

WHEREAS, Public Acts 215 and 225 of 2005 (“Act”) established the 21st Century Jobs Trust 
Fund initiative;  
 

WHEREAS, MCL 125.2088k created the Strategic Economic Investment and 
Commercialization Board (“SEIC Board”) for the purposes of awarding grants and loans for basic 
research, applied research, university technology transfer, and commercialization of products, processes 
and services to encourage the development of competitive edge technologies to create jobs within the 
State of Michigan;  
 

WHEREAS, pursuant to Executive Order 2010-8, the Governor ordered the SEIC Board 
abolished and all powers, duties, and functions of the SEIC Board transferred to the Michigan Strategic 
Fund (“MSF”), including those powers, duties, and functions provided under MCL 125.2088k;  

 
WHEREAS, the Michigan Economic Development Corporation (“MEDC”) provides 

administrative services to the MSF; 
 

WHEREAS, MCL 125.2088k requires that the MSF Board establish a competitive process to 
award grants and make loans for competitive edge technologies; 
 

WHEREAS, the MSF has reviewed a RFP form, which includes provisions required by the Act 
and establishes a competitive proposal process for awarding grants to business incubators to stimulate the 
creation and continued growth of technology-based businesses and jobs (the “Business Incubators RFP”). 
A copy of this RFP form is attached to this Resolution;  
 

WHEREAS, the MSF desires to initiate the competitive proposal process to award grants to 
business incubators and authorizes the issuance of the Business Incubators RFP; and 

 
WHEREAS, the MEDC recommends and the MSF Board the MEDC recommends and the MSF 

Board desires that $3.5 million from the 21st Century Jobs Trust Fund FY 2014 appropriation for 
Innovation and Entrepreneurship be allocated to the Business Incubators RFP and that $1 million 
previously allocated to the Centers of Energy Excellence (“COEE”) program and $35,000 previously 
allocated to the 2011 and 2012 Business Incubators be reallocated to the Business Incubators RFP, for a 
total allocation of $4.535 million (collectively, the “Business Incubators Funding Allocation”).  
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the MSF approves the attached Business 
Incubators RFP and authorizes its issuance; 

 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the MSF Board approves the Business Incubators Funding 

Allocation;  
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED,  the MSF Board requests the State Treasurer to transfer $4.535 

million from the 21st Century Jobs Trust Fund to the MSF for the Business Incubators RFP; and  
 



BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the MSF authorizes the MSF Fund Manager, in 
coordination with MEDC Staff, to modify the Business Incubators RFP as may be necessary or 
appropriate, so long as the modifications are not material or adverse to the interests of the MSF.  
 

Ayes:  
 
Nays:  
 
Recused:  
 

Lansing, Michigan  
January 28, 2014 
 
 



MICHIGAN STRATEGIC FUND 
RESOLUTION 

 
2014- 

 
APPROVAL OF THE JOINT EVALUATION COMMITTEE AND SCORING AND 
EVALUATION CRITERIA FOR THE BUSINESS INCUBATORS REQUEST FOR 

PROPOSALS  
 

WHEREAS, Public Acts 215 and 225 of 2005 (“Act”) established the 21st Century Jobs 
Trust Fund initiative;  
 

WHEREAS, MCL 125.2088k created the Strategic Economic Investment and 
Commercialization Board (“SEIC Board”) for the purposes of awarding grants and loans for 
basic research, applied research, university technology transfer, and commercialization of 
products, processes and services to encourage the development of competitive edge technologies 
to create jobs within the State of Michigan;  
 

WHEREAS, pursuant to Executive Order 2010-8, the Governor ordered the SEIC Board 
abolished and all powers, duties, and functions of the SEIC Board transferred to the Michigan 
Strategic Fund (“MSF”), including those powers, duties, and functions provided under MCL 
125.2088k;  

 
WHEREAS, the Michigan Economic Development Corporation (“MEDC”) provides 

administrative services to the MSF; 
 
WHEREAS, on January 28, 2014, the MSF issued a Request for Proposals (“RFP”) to 

make grants to business incubators to stimulate the creation and continued growth of technology-
based businesses and jobs (the “Business Incubators RFP”); 
 

WHEREAS, the Act requires that proposals received in response to the Business 
Incubators RFP be reviewed by a joint evaluation committee (“JEC”); 

 
WHEREAS, the MEDC recommends and the MSF desires to appoint the following 

individuals to the JEC for the Business Incubators RFP:  
 
Roselyn Zator – Entrepreneurial Services Managing Director, MEDC 
Nadia Abunasser – Federal and Development Projects Director, MEDC 
Andrew Meadow – Biotech and Medical Device Venture Director, MEDC 
Gabe Yancho – Portfolio Manager, MEDC. 
 
WHEREAS, the MEDC also recommends and the MSF desires to approve the scoring 

and evaluation criteria contained in Attachment A for use by the JEC in its review of proposals 
(the “Business Incubators RFP Scoring Criteria”). 

 



NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, the MSF Board approves the JEC set forth 
above and approves the Business Incubators RFP Scoring Criteria attached as Exhibit A to this 
resolution. 

 
Ayes: 
 
Nays: 
 
Recused: 

 
Lansing, Michigan 
January 28, 2014 
 



Exhibit  A 
Proposal Evaluation Form 

2014 Business Incubator RFP 
 
Name of Applicant:   

       
Name of Reviewer:            
 

Criteria Reviewer’s 
Comments 

Points  

Eligibility: 
• Received Retention of Pfizer Assets Funds (documented through a MEDC grant 

agreement) and can document success OR 
•  A business incubator associated with a SmartZone that was designated after January 1, 

2005 (documented through a MEDC SmartZone agreement dated after January 1, 2005) 
and can document success OR 

• Provides business incubator/accelerator services REGIONALLY (defined as serving at 
least 8 counties), and received past funding from the MSF/MEDC for business incubator 
activities (documented through a MEDC grant agreement), and can document success 

 

Max. Possible Points: 25 
 
Score:   

Executive Summary: 
Overview 

• NAME OF THE APPLICANT ORGANIZATION 
• ELIGIBILITY CRITERIA 
• AMOUNT OF FUNDS REQUESTED 
• AMOUNT OF MATCHING FUNDS 
• TERM 
• PURPOSE 
• The TARGETED NUMBERS FOR: 

o Companies Created  
o Jobs Created 
o Increase Investment/Revenue 

 

 
Max. Possible Points: 5 
 
Score:   

Purpose: 
• The Applicant must clearly indicate whether the organization is a non-profit or 

university. 
• The Applicant must clearly describe how the proposed use of funds will lead to 

sustainability and must include a sustainability plan clearly indicating how and when 
sustainability will occur. 

• The Applicant must clearly describe how the proposed use of funds will be to foster the 
growth of Michigan’s technology based economy and clearly identify the specific 
competitive edge technology sectors that the Applicant will serve. 

 

 
Max. Possible Points: 15 
 
Score:  

Past Experience: 
• The Applicant should indicate past experience with business incubation/acceleration, and 

specifically discuss how the ELIGIBILITY CRITERIA that the Applicant fulfilled and 
its success will play a role in this project. 

  
Max. Possible Points: 10 
Score:  
 

Team: 
• Identified key players 
• Identified collaborators 

  
Max. Possible Points: 10 
Score:  
 

Milestones/Deliverables: 
• Identified meaningful milestones/deliverables 
• Achievable and leading to economic impact 

  
Max. Possible Points: 10 
Score:  

 
Budget: 
• Identified meaningful budget for proposal  
• Organization budget clearly indicates need for funding 
• Indicates how and when will achieve sustainability 

  
Max. Possible Points: 10 
Score:  

 
Economic Impact: 
• Realistic assumptions and expectations based on industry knowledge and incubator’s past 

reported performance 
• Identified targeted metrics: 

o Companies Created  

  
Max. Possible Points: 15 
 
Score:  

 



Exhibit  A 
o Jobs Created 
o Increase Investment/Revenue  

Total Score: 
 

 Max. Possible Points: 100 
Score:  
 

 



 

MEMORANDUM 

Date: January 28, 2014 

To: Michigan Strategic Fund (“MSF”) Board Members 

From: Marcia Gebarowski, Senior Development Finance Manager 

Subject:   McLaren Performance Technologies, Inc. (“Company” or “Applicant”) 
  Amendment of MEGA Job Creation MBT Credit 

 

  

Request   
McLaren Performance Technologies. Inc. (“McLaren”) is requesting an amendment to their high 
technology/high wage MEGA job creation credit to increase the maximum eligible qualified new job 
total.  The Company proposed expanding operations in the City of Livonia, which was successfully done.  
McLaren is currently proposing to consolidate their sales office in Southfield and their engineering center 
in Livonia to create a Sales and Engineering Center.  The Company’s parent, Linamar, plans to invest 
approximately $28 million to construct a second facility and add machinery and equipment on the 
existing property in Livonia.   This consolidation will also result in the creation of 75 new jobs.  The City 
of Livonia has committed to a PA 198 for the new real and personal property investment as well. 
 
Background  
McLaren Performance Technologies, Inc. is an engineering firm well known for its analysis and testing 
capabilities.  The Company has traditionally focused on the racing and high performance markets.  
Linamar, headquartered in Geulph, Ontario, is a global supplier of driveline and powertrain components 
in the automotive, commercial vehicle, agricultural and energy industries.  Linamar purchased McLaren 
in 2003 and uses McLarens skillset to support Linamar’s internal engineering and testing.  

The original project was approved in 2009 to incent McLaren to expand and grow in Livonia as a result of 
new testing equipment being acquired and to support growth in their New Power Transfer Unit business. 
For this project, the Company received a high technology/high wage MEGA job creation credit for a term 
of ten years.  McLaren has collected their credit through 2012 and has already reached their ceiling of 34 
Qualified New Jobs.  The City of Livonia approved a twelve year PA 198 tax abatement related to the 
project.  The credit was amended in August, 2011 to add related entities to the MEGA agreement eligible 
to count Qualified New Jobs. 
 
 
Recommendation 
The MEDC Staff recommends that the Michigan Economic Growth Authority (MEGA) job creation 
credits awarded to McLaren Performance Technologies, Inc. by the MEGA on February 17, 2009, be 
amended to include the following: 
 

(i) Increase the number of Qualified New Jobs by 75 from 34 to 109 beginning in tax year 
2015 through 2019. 

 

 



MICHIGAN STRATEGIC FUND 

Resolution 2014- 
 

McLaren Performance Technologies Inc. 
High Technology/High Wage Credit (Amendment #2) 

WHEREAS, the Michigan Legislature created the Michigan Economic Growth Authority (“MEGA”) under 
the Michigan Economic Growth Authority Act, 1995 PA 24, as amended, with the authority to authorize tax credits 
under the Michigan Business Tax Act, 2007 PA 36, as amended; 

 
WHEREAS, Executive Order 2012-9 transferred all the authority, powers, duties, functions, responsibilities, 

records, personnel, property, unexpended balances of appropriations, allocations, or other funds of the MEGA to the 
Michigan Strategic Fund (“MSF”); 

 
WHEREAS, in Resolution 2009-23 adopted on  February 17, 2009 , the MEGA Board authorized a Tax 

Credit for McLaren Performance Technologies Inc. (the “Company”) of 100 percent for a period of ten consecutive 
years, beginning no later than the Company’s tax year ending December 31, 2010 to expand its engineering facility 
and create jobs in the City of Livonia, Wayne County (the “Project”); 

WHEREAS, the MEGA agreement was amended on August 8, 2011 to define average weekly wage, quarter 
ending date and the addition of Associated and Subsidiary entities; 

WHEREAS, the Company is expanding the project scope in the City of Livonia, Wayne County, by 
consolidating and growing their operations and creating additional jobs; 

WHEREAS, the Company requests that the Tax Credit and Agreement be amended to (the following, 
collectively, “Amendment”): 

(i) Increase the number of Qualified New Jobs from 34 to 109 over the Company’s Base Employment 
Level of 109 beginning fiscal year 2015; 

(ii) This amendment is effective as of February 17, 2009; 

WHEREAS, the Michigan Economic Development Corporation provides administrative services to the 
MSF, and recommends approval of the Amendment to the Standard Tax Credit by the MSF Board. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the Amendment is approved; and 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that all other provisions of Resolution 2009-23, are reaffirmed and the 
MSF authorizes the MSF Fund Manager to implement the terms of this resolution. 

 

Ayes:  
 
Nays:   
 
Recused:  

January 28, 2014 
Lansing, Michigan 
 



 

MEMORANDUM 

Date: January 21, 2014 

To: Michigan Strategic Fund (“MSF”) Advisory Committee Members 

From: Marcia Gebarowski, Senior Development Finance Manager 

Subject:   The Minacs Group (USA) Inc. (“Company” or “Applicant”) 
  Amendment of MEGA Job Creation MBT Credit 

 

  

Request   
The Minacs Group (USA) Inc. (“Minacs”) is requesting an amendment to their MEGA job creation 
standard credit.  The Company proposed opening operations in the City of Southfield, which was 
successfully done.  The proposed space in Southfield has since exceeded capacity and the Company has 
had to add new jobs at other sites in the region including their facility in Farmington Hills and customer 
locations in Dearborn, Auburn Hills and Warren.  There is a new opportunity for Minacs to add an 
additional 200 jobs in Michigan as a result of new contracts awarded.  Per the Company’s amendment 
application, the decision to add these 200 additional jobs will be based on the Company’s ability to utilize 
their MEGA credit for all jobs created in the state and not isolated to the City of Southfield alone. 
 
Background  
Minacs is a business process outsourcing company focused on Fortune 500 clients.  The Minacs Group 
(USA) INC., based in Michigan, is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Aditya Birla Minacs Worldwide, Inc., 
which is based in Canada.  Minacs provides marketing solutions, finance and accounting outsourcing, and 
contact centers for businesses in various industries, including manufacturing, finance, insurance, and 
others. 

The original project was approved in 2010 to incent The Minacs Group (USA) Inc. to place new contracts 
and growth in Southfield, which has been accomplished.  For this project, the Company received a 
standard MEGA job creation credit for a term of four years and has not yet collected on this credit.  The 
company currently has 2,438 employees in Michigan.  They have created 542 jobs at the project site, 
which is located in Southfield, Oakland County and have created 1,470 additional jobs in other facilities.  
The City of Southfield approved a three year PA 328 tax abatement related to the project.  The credit was 
amended in July, 2011 to grant a time extension for the Company to enter into the MEGA agreement. 
 
MEGA legislation defines a Qualified New Job (QNJ) as an employee whose wages and company 
provided benefits exceed 150% of federal minimum wage.  A majority of these new employees hired by 
the Company opted out of the company healthcare plan, and by definition, those employees do not qualify 
as a QNJ based on wages alone.  Despite creating over 1,000 new jobs, by statute, the Company will not 
have enough QNJ to meet the requirements of their agreement in 2011 and 2012. 
 
 
 
 
 

 



 

 
 
Recommendation 
The MEDC Staff recommends that the Michigan Economic Growth Authority (MEGA) job creation 
credits awarded to The Minacs Group (USA) INC. by the MEGA on April 20, 2010, be amended to 
include the following: 
 

(i) Remove threshold that the “Company must create at least 750 Qualified New Jobs by the 
end of the second year of the Tax Credit.  Failure to do so will result in the remaining two 
years of the Tax Credit to be forfeited.” 

(ii) Revise the Project Description to include Southfield, Farmington Hills, Auburn Hills, 
Warren and Dearborn as locations eligible for Company to create Qualified New Jobs. 

 

The Minacs Group (USA) Inc. 

2 



MICHIGAN STRATEGIC FUND 

Resolution 2014- 
 

The Minacs Group (USA) Inc. 
Standard Credit (Amendment #2) 

WHEREAS, the Michigan Legislature created the Michigan Economic Growth Authority (“MEGA”) under 
the Michigan Economic Growth Authority Act, 1995 PA 24, as amended, with the authority to authorize tax credits 
under the Michigan Business Tax Act, 2007 PA 36, as amended; 

 
WHEREAS, Executive Order 2012-9 transferred all the authority, powers, duties, functions, responsibilities, 

records, personnel, property, unexpended balances of appropriations, allocations, or other funds of the MEGA to the 
Michigan Strategic Fund (“MSF”); 

 
WHEREAS, in Resolution 2010-054 adopted on  April 20, 2010, the MEGA Board authorized a Tax Credit 

for The Minacs Group (USA) Inc. (the “Company”) of 100 percent for a period of four consecutive years, beginning 
no later than the Company’s tax year ending March 31, 2012 to expand its business processing outsourcing 
services and create jobs in the City of Southfield, Oakland County (the “Project”); 

WHEREAS, in Resolution 2011-100 adopted on  July 19 2011, the MEGA Board authorized a time 
extension be amended to provide the Company and MEGA enter into an Agreement within 60 days of the resolution; 

WHEREAS, the Company is expanding the project scope in the City of Auburn Hills,Oakland County, 
City of Warren, Macomb County, City of Dearborn, Wayne County and City of Farmington Hills, Oakland 
County, by expanding their service operations and creating additional jobs; 

WHEREAS, the Company requests that the Tax Credit and Agreement be amended to (the following, 
collectively, “Amendment”): 

 
(i) Remove threshold that the “Company must create at least 750 Qualified New Jobs by the end of the 

second year of the Tax Credit.  Failure to do so will result in the remaining two years of the Tax Credit to 
be forfeited”; 

(ii) Revise the Project Description to include Southfield, Farmington Hills, Auburn Hills, Warren and 
Dearborn as locations eligible for Company to create Qualified New Jobs; 

(iii) This amendment is effective as of August 3, 2011; 

WHEREAS, the Michigan Economic Development Corporation provides administrative services to the 
MSF, and recommends approval of the Amendment to the Standard Tax Credit by the MSF Board. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the Amendment is approved; and 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that all other provisions of Resolution 2010-054, are reaffirmed and the 
MSF authorizes the MSF Fund Manager to implement the terms of this resolution. 

 

Ayes:  
 
Nays:   
 
Recused:  

January 28, 2014 
Lansing, Michigan 
 



STATE OF MICHIGAN

OFFICE OF THE CHIEF COMPLIANCE OFFICER
LANSING

300 NORTH WASHINGTON SQUARE

LANSING, MICHIGAN 48913

RICK SNYDER
GOVERNOR

KEVIN FRANCART, ESQ.
CHIEF COMPLIANCE OFFICER

M E M O R A N D U M

January 13, 2014

TO: Honorable Richard D. Snyder
Governor and Chairperson of the State Administrative Board.

Michael A. Finney
Chairperson
Michigan Strategic Fund Board

FROM: Kevin L. Francart
Chief Compliance Officer

RE: FY2014 Q1 Report of the Chief Compliance Officer.

The Chief Compliance Officer is required to report quarterly to the State Administrative Board
and the Michigan Strategic Fund Board regarding compliance with internal policies and
procedures and with applicable laws related to 21st century jobs fund programs. I am pleased to
report that all compliance matters that were addressed during the first quarter of the 2014 fiscal
year were successfully resolved or are being appropriately addressed.

The last quarterly report presented by the Chief Compliance Officer was for the third quarter of
FY2011. The former Chief Compliance Officer, John Walter, retired on June 30, 2011, and the
office of the Chief Compliance Officer was vacant until the current Chief Compliance Officer
assume office on November 11, 2013. A review of major programs established in the fourth
quarter of FY2011, FY2012, or FY2013, will be conducted by the Chief Compliance Officer and
any compliance matters not satisfactorily resolved will be reported in future reports.

With respect to the Michigan Strategic Fund Board, work was done this quarter on the further
implementation of an internal compliance program. A review of the policies and procedures was
started and a complete survey of each program area will be conducted to ensure that staff is
familiar with the Board's policies and that the policies and procedure are being complied with.
Additionally, the Fund Manager, the Department of Attorney General, and the Chief Compliance
Officer are reviewing and drafting updates to the bylaws, conflict of interest policy, and an ethics
policy for presentment to the Board.

The Chief Compliance Officer issued an Opinion that an RFP process that includes the
requirements of MCL 125.2088k(3)(a)-(k) is sufficient to comply with the requirement that the
grants and loans be awarded through a competitive process and that issuing an RFP is not the



FY2014 Q1 Report of the Chief Compliance Officer
January 13, 2014
Page 2

establishment of a program under MCL 125.2088k and does not trigger the notice requirements
and public hearing requirement under subsection (8).

Finally, during this quarter, the Chief Compliance Officer coordinated with the appropriate
legislative liaison to review and offer advice regarding legislation impacting compliance issues
and the protection of state assets.



 

MEMORANDUM 
 
DATE:  January 28, 2013 
 
TO: Michigan Strategic Fund (“MSF”) Board Members 
 
FROM:  Josh Hundt, Director, Development Finance 
  Joseph Martin, Manager, Brownfield and MCRP 
   
SUBJECT: Quarterly Report of Delegated Approvals on Michigan Business Development Program 

& Michigan Community Revitalization Program  
 
 
On December 21, 2011, the MSF Board approved the Michigan Business Development Program 
(“MBDP”) and the Michigan Community Revitalization Program (“MCRP”).  Both programs allow for 
delegated approval of projects that have incentives of $1 million or less.  Listed below is a synopsis of the 
delegated deals that were approved during the 4th quarter of the 2013 fiscal year.       
 
Detailed information is now sent to all Board Members as they are approved.  As such, the detailed 
informational sheet on each approval is not included in this memo.  If you would like additional 
information on a project, please let us know.   
 
MBDP APPROVALS 
 
Project Name Approval 

Date Location Incentive 
Approved Jobs  Investment  

Universal Marketing Group  10/1/2013 Ann Arbor  $600,000 411 $568,662 

JCIM US, LLC 10/2/2013 
Frenchtown 
Township $800,000 182 $16,927,000 

Triumph Gear Systems 10/7/2013 
Macomb 
Township $250,000 60 $15,180,000 

Chi – Charter House 
Innovations 10/15/2013 Zeeland $200,000 60 $3,052,000 
Comprehensive Logistics 10/17/2013 Detroit $800,000 402 $18,140,000 
Navitas Advanced 
Solutions Group 10/17/2013 Ann Arbor $1,000000 125 $9,287,000 
Pillar Technology Group 11/1/2013 Ann Arbor $350,000 45 $1,425,000 
Ventra Grand Rapids 5 11/5/2013 Kentwood $650,000 181 $16,296,797 
Cooper Standard 
Automotive 11/6/2013 Fairview $1,000,000 177 $6,359,817 
Fontijne Formitt, Inc. 11/14/2013 Niles $300,000 31 $2,618,000 
Lauren Plastics 11/15/2013 Spring Lake $300,000 71 $7,063,000 
Mahindra GenZe 11/25/2013 Ann Arbor $300,000 34 $2,010,000 

Industrial Services Group 12/4/2013 
Vergennes 
Township $175,000 50 $1,630,000 

North American Lighting 12/10/2013 Farmington Hills $300,000 76 $6,842,000 
Circuit Controls 12/11/2013 Petoskey $180,000 36 $21,722,000 

 



 

Corporation 
Vectorform LLC 12/12/2013 Royal Oak $375,000 75 $2,240,455 
Medimpact Healthcare 
Systems, Inc. 12/19/2013 

Van Buren 
Township $150,000 75 $2,074,000 

 
MCRP APPROVALS 
 

Project Name 
Approval 
Date Location 

Incentive 
Approved Jobs Investment 

3411 E. Michigan, LLC 11/14/2013 Lansing $450,000 2 $7,473,541 
CWD 50 Louis LLC 11/6/2013 Grand Rapids $1,000,000 50 $9,356,604 
Hall Street Partners, LLC 10/9/2013 Grand Rapids $310,000 5 $1,387,246 

 

2 



 
MEMORANDUM 
 
Date:   January 8, 2014 
 
To:  Michigan Strategic Fund Board 
 
From:  Christine Whitz, Manager, Community Development Block Grant  
 
Subject: Community Development Block Grant Program 

Quarterly Report of Delegated Approvals  
October 23, 2013- January 1, 2014 

 
 
On October 23, 2013, the MSF Board approved the Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) 
program delegated approval of projects that have incentives of one million dollars or less.  Listed below is 
a synopsis of the delegated deals that were approved during the previous quarter.  If you would like 
additional information on a project, please let us know.   
  

Grantee 
Approval 
Date 

CDBG 
Funds Brief Summary of Project  

City of Manistique 11/8/13 $57,267 

The City of Manistique previously received a grant 
in the amount of $231,170 for water and sewer 
replacement. Upon opening up the street for 
construction, the City became aware that a section 
of storm sewer thought to have been replaced in the 
1990’s, had not been done and was deteriorated 
and crumbling.  Therefore, the City is asking for 
additional funding by this amendment request to 
address the unexpected costs.  The increase of 
$90,900 will be split with the City contributing 
37% of the increased cost. 

Charter Township of 
DeWitt 11/25/13 $183,425 

The Charter Township of DeWitt requested 
$183,425 for acquisition and demolition needed at 
16164 South US-27. The total project costs are 
anticipated at $366,850 with a 50% local match 
from the community. 

Village of Metamora 12/13/13 $570,000 

The Village of Metamora requested $570,000 for 
rehabilitation of the Historic White Horse Inn 
located in Lapeer County, Michigan. The Village 
expects that this project will result in private 
investment of $1,835,250 and the creation of 38 
jobs. There is a local contribution of $300,000 to 
the project. 

Total CDBG Funds Approved  $810,692 
 

 

 



 

MSF DELEGATED AUTHORITY QUARTERLY UPDATE 
MSDF AND SSBCI PROGRAMS 

CAPITAL SERVICES TEAM 
October 1 – December 31, 2013 

 
BACKGROUND 
On May 20, 2009, the MSF Board approved the Michigan Loan Participation Program (“MLPP”) 
guidelines, and on June 24, 2009, the Michigan Collateral Support Program (“MCSP”). Both programs 
are housed under the Michigan Supplier Diversification Fund (“ MSDF”), and are funded by the state’s 
21CJF initiative. The MSF Board must approve MSDF requests over $2.5 million, and as delegated by 
the MSF Board on March 28, 2012, requests for collateral support or loan participation of $2.5 million or 
less may be approved by any two of the following: MSF Chairperson, or the MSF Fund Manager, or the 
MSF State Treasurer Director.  
 
On May 25, 2011, the MSF Board approved the Michigan Business Growth Fund (“MBGF”), and its two 
programs, the Collateral Support Program (“MBGF-CSP”), and the Loan Participation Program (“MBGF-
LPP”).  The MBGF, and its programs were created under, and funded by, the federal government’s State 
Small Business Credit Initiative (“SSBCI”).  The MSF Board must approve MBGF requests over $2.5 
million, and as delegated by the MSF Board on May 25, 2011, requests for collateral support or loan 
participation of $2.5 million or less may be approved by any two of the following: MSF Chairperson, or 
the MSF Fund Manager, or the MSF State Treasurer Director.  
 
APPROVALS BY AUTHORIZED DELEGATES 
Between October 1, 2013 and December 31, 2013 the following actions were approved by the MSF 
Chairperson and MSF Fund Manager, subject to due diligence, and available funding:  
 

 
 

 

SSBCI - MBGF:
Organization Request Type MSF Support Loan Amount Action Date Approved Closed

National Nail Corp. MBGF-CSP 2,500,000$            20,000,000$     
Approved by Chair 
and Fund Manager November 1, 2013 Y

Althaus Family Investors, LTD. MBGF-CSP 1,000,000$            2,932,937$        
Approved by Chair 
and Fund Manager November 2, 2013 Y

Sterling Investment Properties L.L.C. MBGF-CSP 160,000$                600,000$           
Approved by Chair 
and Fund Manager November 14, 2013 N

Total 3,660,000$            23,532,937$     

MSDF:
Organization Request Type MSF Support Loan Amount Action Date Approved Closed

Innovative Composites, Inc. MSDF-CSP 748,500$                1,500,000$        
Approved by Chair 
and Fund Manager October 25, 2013 Y

Full Spectrum Solutions, Inc. MSDF-CSP 220,000$                448,000$           
Approved by Chair 
and Fund Manager November 1, 2013 Y

Total 968,500$                1,948,000$        

 






	MSF January 2014 Board Meeting Agenda
	December 18, 2013 Proposed Meeting Minutes

	A. Business Investment
	A1. Entrepreneurship
	2014 Entrepreneurial Support Services RFP - Award Recommendations
	2014 Early Stage Funding RFP - Award Recommendations
	A2. Business Growth
	Kalitta Air, LLC - MBDP
	A3. Access to Capital
	Canton Renewables, LLC-Sauk Hills Project - Bond Authorization
	Detroit Venture Partners Award - PM Venture Development Fund
	B. Community Vitality
	Strathmore Apartments LDHA, LLC - MCRP
	Ashley Owner, LLC - MCRP/Brownfield TIF
	Midland DTH, LLC - MCRP/Brownfield TIF
	D. Administrative
	Guidelines for MSF Consent Agenda
	E. Consent Agenda
	Mid Towne Hospitality, LLC
	Manufacturing Support Services RFP
	Energy Office RFP
	MTRAC - Advanced Transportation Amendment
	2014 Business Incubator RFPs
	McLaren Performance Technologies, Inc.
	The Minacs Group (USA), Inc.
	F. Informational
	CCO Quarterly Report
	Quarterly Report - MBDP & MCRP
	Quarterly Report - CDBG

